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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIV[SION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Lori A. Shibinette 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501
Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Patricia M. Tilley www.dhhs.nh.cov
Director -
April 6, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing agreement with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Community Health Institute (Vendor #161611-B001), Bow, NH, to continue providing professional
support services to the Department’s Oral Health Program in order to implement activities funded
through federal grants, including enhanced access to preventive and reparative dental treatment
for individuals in statewide community-based and school-based oral health programs, by
increasing the price limitation by $375,000 from $4,695,833 to $5,070,833 with no change to the
contract completion date of August 31, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 13, 2019, item
#12, as amended with Governor and Council approval on March 25, 2020, item #15, and most
recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 19, 2021, item #25.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to increase the number of underserved children who receive
oral health services in a school setting. The Contractor will implement a pilot project to expand
access to and use of preventive oral health care and education in an effort to decrease the number
of elementary and middle school aged students with untreated tooth decay, as well as to increase
the number of students who receive dental sealants.

Oral health programs include evidence-based clinical services for tooth decay prevention,
screenings, and referrals to restorative care. The Department has supported New Hampshire's
school-based oral health programs for more than 10 years. Expanding services allows the
opportunity to develop and test a more cost effective and efficient care delivery model in school
settings.

The target populations for these services include students and adolescents who receive
oral health care in school settings; uninsured/underinsured adults who receive dental care in
community health centers; and adults who present to emergency departments for non-traumatic
dental conditions. Through August 31, 2023, the following individuals will be served:

» 9,695 eligible students in schools with 40% or more Free and Reduced Lunch
Program;

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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95,000 individuals served by Federally Qualified Health Centers in NH annually;
5,552 individuals who use the emergency department for oral health care;

6,000 NH Medicaid Insured Adults who receive Substance Use Disorders
treatment; and

1.3 million individuals impacted by statewide oral health surveillance and
professional development activities intended to change systems of care.

The Department will continue to monitor services by ensuring:

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the current programs
providing oral health services to children, teens and adults with low-incomes, as well as uninsured
families living in New Hampshire, will not be evaluated or modified as needed to ensure state and
federal funds are utilized in the most efficient way to reach the maximum number of individuals.

100% of patients referred to the program by the care coordinator are contacted,
or an attempt is made, to assess patients’ barriers to accessing dental care.

100% of care coordination patients referred to the program are offered an
appointment for dental care.

100% of eligible care coordination patients seeking care coordination program
services are assessed, evaluated and appropriately discharged.

Area served: Statewide
Source of Federal Funds: CFDA #93.354, FAIN NU90TP922144

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds

will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

DocuSigned by:

A &. (,:mAyv,

24BAB37EDBEB488

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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Oral Health Promotion Partner
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A03

FISCAL DETAILS

Funding Source 1

05-95-90-903510-2468 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC
HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF EMERGENCY PREP & RESPONSE, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS RSP-ARP 100%

FEDERAL

State Increased .
Fiscal A(i;l:szrl't Class Title Job Number gﬂgeztt (Decreased) F;e;\gsztti
Year 9 Amount 9
2022 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90027505 $0 $375,000 $375,000
Subtotals $0 $375,000 $375,000

Funding Source 2

05-95-90-901010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK

GRANT

State Increased ;

Fisial A?:;,zrl\t Class Title Job Number gﬂ:;:: (Decreased) Féi‘g;‘:f

Year Amount

2019 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2020 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2022 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2023 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 50 $15,000

2024 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $3,750 $0 $3,750
Subtotals $78,750 $0 $78,750

Funding Source 3

05-95-90-901010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK

GRANT
Fsltsactgl Ac'ass / Class Title Job Number | Gurrent (llar:accrri::ssi(:i) Hevised
Pany ccount Budget Amount Budget
2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $420,000 $0 $420,000
2020 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
2021 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
2022 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
2023 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
2024 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $50,000 $0 $50,000
Subtotals $2,870,000 $0 $2,870,000
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Oral Health Promotion Partner
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A03

FISCAL DETAILS

Funding Source 4

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, ORAL

HEALTH

State Increased .

Fiscal A(E:I::zrllt Class Title Job Number gt:;:tt (Decreased) R;:g;if

Year Amount

2019 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $166,369 $0 $166,369

2020 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $184,969 $0 $184,969

2021 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $184,969 $0 $184,969

2022 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $181,369 $0 $181,369

2023 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $181,369 $0 $181,369

2024 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $30,000 $0 $30,000
Subtotals $929,045 30 $929,045

Funding Source 5

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL
HEALTH - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State

Increased

; / . Current Revised

FYlsezz:l A?:lssznt Class Title Job Number Budget (D;:zziid) Budget
2019 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $136,238 $0 $136,238
2020 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $104,800 $0 $104,800
2021 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $154,800 $0 $154,800
2022 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $200,000 $0 $200,000
2023 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $178,200 $0 $178,200
2024 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Subtotals $784,038 $0 $784,038

Funding Source 6

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES.
COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Increased .
Fiscal | o1ass/ Class Title Job Number gﬂ:;:tt (Decreased) ';‘:J‘g;if
Year Amount

2019 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $0 $0 $0
2020 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $8,700 $0 $8,700
2021 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $8,700 $0 $8,700
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Oral Health Promotion Partner
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A03

FISCAL DETAILS

2022 [ 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $5,000 $0 $5,000
2023 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $5,000 $0 $5,000
2024 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $0 50 $0

Subtotals $27,400 $0 $27,400

Funding Source 7

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Increased :
Fiscal Ailsszr:t Class Title Job Number gng;:tt (Decreased) RBTJ\SZee?
Year Amount
2019 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $0 $0 $0
2020 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $300 $0 $300
2021 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $300 $0 $300
2022 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $3,000 $0 $3,000
2023 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $3,000 $0 $3,000
2024 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $0 $0 $0
Subtotals $6,600 $0 $6,600
TOTALS | $4,695,833 $375,000 | $5,070,833
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Oral Health Promotion Partner contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department”) and JS| Research &
Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 13, 2019 (ltem #12), as amended on March 25, 2020 (Item #15), and most recently amended on
May 19, 2021 (ltem #25), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$5,070,833

2. Modify Exhibit A — Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Services, by adding
Subsection 2.16 as follows:

2.16. Systems Framework for New Hampshire School-Based Caries Prevention and
Treatment Project

2.16.1 The Contractor shall, in consultation with subject matter experts and stakeholders,
develop and implement a centralized school-based preventive oral health care and
education Pilot Program in New Hampshire. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1.1. Develop a system for all current school-based preventive oral health
care and education programs operating independently to operate under
one (1) entity, as approved by the Department, to create a consistent
care delivery model for all children who receive oral health care in the
school setting.

2.16.1.2. Pilot the centralized school-based preventative oral health care and
education model in the highest need areas of Coos, Grafton, and Carroll
counties.

2.16.1.3. Assist the Department with project management activities, including, but
not limited to, the development and delivery of:

2.16.1.3.1. A comprehensive Pilot Program systems framework.
2.16.1.3.2. A statewide Pilot Program and implementation plan.
2.16.1.3.3. Program evaluation.

2.16.1.4. Convene and participate in a stakeholder group of oral health experts to
review the draft Pilot Program implementation plan. The stakeholder
group may include, but is not limited to:

2.16.1.4.1 Dental Insurers and dental organizations.
2.16.1.4.2 Public and Oral Health Agencies.

2.16.1.5. Convene the first stakeholder group meeting no later than thirty (30)
days after the Effective Date of this Contract Amendment.

DS
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials [
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2.16.1.6. Convene the stakeholder group thereafter on a quarterly basis either:
2.16.1.6.1. In person at a physical location; or

2.16.1.6.2. Via conference call utilizing a conference call-in number
provided by the Contractor.

2.16.1.7 Assist the Department with mapping:
2.16.1.7.1. Stakeholder group members; and

2.16.1.7.2. A social network to establish outreach connections
between individuals and organizations for statewide
adoption of the centralized delivery model.

2.16.1.8. Beginning on August 1, 2022, or as otherwise specified by the
Department, the Contractor shall assist the Department with collecting
quantitative and qualitative data for the first quarter of the Pilot Program.
Collected data shall include:

2.16.1.8.1. Quantitative data including patient health and education,
clinical experiences, and income.

2.16.1.8.2. Qualitative data including patient quality of life, stakeholder
perceptions, and social networks.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Amendment #2, Section 2, by
adding Subsection 2.7 and modifying Year 4 (SFY22) TOTAL as follows:

Source of Funds Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6
(SFY19) (SFY20) (SFY21) (SFY22) (SFY23) | (SFY24)

2.7 | 100% Federal $0 $0 $0 $375,000 $0 $0
Funds from
Bureau of
Emergency Prep
& Response,
Public Health
Crisis RSP-ARP,
as awarded on
August 24, 2020,
by the Centers for
Disease Control
and Prevention,
CFDA #93.354,
FAIN
NU90TP922144

TOTALS: | $737,607 | $913,769 | $963,769 | $1,379,369 | $982,569 | $93,750

4. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Amendment #2, Section 3,
Subsection 3.4, to read:

3.4. $1,379,369 for State Fiscal Year 2022.

Ds
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials [ K
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5. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment — Amendment #2, Section 7,
Subsection 7.1 to read:

7.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-21, Budget — Amendment #3.

6. Add Exhibit B-21, Budget — Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Ds
JSI| Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials [
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
4/6/2022 E:‘"" Wakt
D778BB63F9704C7..
Date Name: Iain watt
Title:

Deputy Director - DPHS

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

DocuSigned by:
4/5/2022 ‘ Latic Koburt
Date Name. katie Robert

Title:

Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A03 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
b ¥
4/8/2022 E? o Gutrino

748734844941460.

Date Name: Robyn Guarino
Title:

Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A03 Page 5 of 5
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B-21, Budget - Amendment #3 RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A03
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: JS/ Research and Training Institute, Inc.
Budget Request for: Oral Health Promotion Partner
Budget Period SFY 2022 (Amendment Effective Date - June 30, 2022)
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.23%
Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $8,184
2. Fringe Benefits $3,838
3. Consultants $3,600
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(e) Supplies Office $0
6. Travel $0
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Oral Health Program Materials and Supplies $5,000
Other (please specify) 30
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
9. Subrecipient Contracts $350,000
Total Direct Costs $370,622
Total Indirect Costs $4,378
TOTAL $375,000

Exhibit B-21, Budget - Amendment #3
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
Page 1 of 1

C
Contractor Initials

Date 4/5/2022
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NEGOTIATED INDIRECT COST RATE AGREEMENT

John Snow, Incorporated
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

44 Farnsworth Street

Boston, MA 02210-1211

September 30, 2021

Pursuant to §742.770 of the U.S. Agency for International Development Acquisition Regulation
(AIDAR), the rates in this Agreement are for use on grants, contracts and other agreements with

the Federal Government, subject to the conditions in Section II.A, below.

SECTION I: NEGOTIATED INDIRECT COST RATES

INDIRECT COST
EFFECTIVE PERIOD RATE
FRINGE OVERHEAD
TYPE FROM THROUGH (a) (b)

Provisional 01-01-16 12-31-16 N/A 79.25%
Provisional 01-01-17 12-31-17 N/A 83.77%
Provisional 01-01-18 12-31-18 N/A 85.02%
Provisional 01-01-19 12-31-19 N/A 87.56%
Provisional 01-01-20 12-31-20 N/A 90.00%
Provisional 01-01-21 12-31-21 N/A 88.56%
Provisional 01-01-22 | Until Amended 46.90% 21.23%

Base of Application

a) US payroll labor dollars

b) Direct labor dollars plus holiday, sick, and vacation

Effective 01/01/2022, the base of application is Total direct costs excluding subcontracts,
subgrants, and equipment costs over $5,000

U.S. Agency for Intemational Development

1300 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20523
www.usaid.gov

r

4/5/2022
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SECTION II: GENERAL

A. LIMITATIONS: Use of the rate(s) contained in this Agreement is subject to all statutory or
administrative limitations and is applicable to a given grant, contract or other agreement only
to the extent that funds are available. Acceptance of the rate(s) agreed to herein is predicated
upon the following conditions:

1. That no costs other than those incurred by the grantee/contractor or allocated to the
grantee/contractor via an approved central service cost allocation plan were included in its
indirect cost rate proposal and that such incurred costs are legal obligations of the
grantee/contractor and allowable under the governing cost principles,

2. That the information provided by the grantee/contractor which was used as a basis for
acceptance of the rate(s) to herein is not subsequently found to be materially inaccurate,

3. That the same costs that have been treated as indirect costs have not been claimed as direct
costs, and

4. That similar types of costs have been accorded consistent treatment.

B. ACCOUNTING CHANGES: The grantee/contractor is required to provide written
notification to the indirect cost negotiator prior to implementing any changes which could
affect the applicability of the approved rates. Any changes in accounting practice to include
changes in the method of charging a particular type of cost as direct or indirect and changes
in the indirect cost allocation base or allocation methodology require the prior approval of the
Office of Overhead, Special Cost and Closeout (OCC). Failure to obtain such prior written
approval may result in cost disallowance.

C. NOTIFICATION TO FEDERAL AGENCIES: A copy of this document is to be provided by
this organization to other Federal funding sources as a means of notifying them of the
Agreement contained herein.

D. PROVISIONAL-FINAL RATES: The grantee/contractor must submit a proposal to establish
a final indirect cost rate within six months after its fiscal year end. Billings and charges to
Federal awards must be adjusted if the final rate varies from the provisional rate. If the final
rate is greater than the provisional rate and there are no funds available to cover the
additional indirect costs, the organization may not recover all indirect costs. Conversely, if
the final rate is less than the provisional rate, the organization will be required to pay back

the difference to the funding agency. l {;ﬁs

4/5/2022
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E. SPECIAL REMARKS:

1. Indirect costs charged to Federal grants/contracts by means other than the rate(s) cited in the
agreement should be adjusted to the applicable rate(s) cited herein which should be applied to
the appropriate base to identify the proper amount of indirect costs allocable to the program.

2. Grants/contracts providing for ceilings as to the indirect cost rate(s) or amount(s), which are
indicated in Section I above, will be subject to the ceilings stipulated in the grant, contract or
other agreement. The ceiling rate(s) or the rate(s) cited in this Agreement, whichever is
lower, will be used to determine the maximum allowable indirect cost on the grant or
contract agreement.

3. The rates hereby approved are subject to periodic review by the Government at any time their
use i1s deemed improper or unreasonable. You are requested to advise the Government
promptly of any circumstances, which could affect the applicability of the approved rates.

4. You are directed to submit adjustment or final financial expenditure reports (SF-425) for all
flexibly priced grants and other agreements; or adjustment or final vouchers for all flexibly
priced contracts within 120 days after settlement of the final annual indirect cost rates. Audit
adjustments should be clearly delineated so as to be readily identifiable for verification by
this office. Care should be taken that amounts claimed do not exceed award limitations or
indirect cost rate ceilings. USAID will deobligate any remaining funds if the required
financial expenditure reports or vouchers are not submitted within 120 days. Once the
money is de-obligated, it will not be reinstated.

ACCEPTED: John Snow, Incorporated

JSI Research and Training ute, Inc. E u g en | a Digitally signed
by Eugenia Brown

Date: 2021.09.30
M Brown 640570400

g Eugenia L. Brown
Vhﬁ—Q A Contracting Officer

Overhead, Special Cost and Closeout Branch

"“"‘Ld r Typeg Name Cost, Audit and Support Division
Office of Acquisition and Assistance
Management Bureau

/ Tl}L U.S. Agency for International Development

j “cs\l
/ te

r
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING
INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,
2016. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507
Certificate Number: 0005748079

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
oy this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

Gon o

William M. Gardner

s

.

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY HEALTH
INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12, 2016. I further
certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business 1D: 742096
Certificate Number: 0005748075

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

[ hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

Do

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

1, Margaret M Crotty, of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby

* certify that;

1. Iam the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community

Health Institute;

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the
following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research &

Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated October 24, 2008;

RESOLVED: Appointment of Katherine Robert as Director of the Community Health Institute

with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.

3. 1 further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of April 7, 2022

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Institute,
Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute this 7" day of April 2022.

i

Margaret Crotty, President

STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Merrimack

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me

is 7th day of April 2022 by Margaret Crotty.

Notary Publi ustzce of the Peace

My Comm1 51 n Expires: DEBRA L. {.OVE; N% 02
J
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JOHNSNO-01 SANDERSON?1

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
9/3/2021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
AHT Insurance, A Baldwin Risk Partner

NRMEACT Judy Yeary

NG, Ext): (603) 733-4082
 kbbEss. Judy.Yeary@ahtins.com

FAX
(aTC, Noj:

_INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
o | nsurer A : Federal Insurance Company B 20281

INSURED John Snéw Inc. | nsurer B : ACE American Insurance Company 122667

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. | INSURERC: =

World Education, Inc. INSURER D :

44 Farnsworth Street _ o o

Boston, MA 02210-1206 | INSURERE. L

INSURER F : |

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR | ADDL/SUBR
| INSD | WVD

. ==
POLICY EFF POLé%Y EXP LIMITS

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY | EACH OCCURRENCE ! $ 1,000,000
| cLams-mape | X | occur 35873320 0192021 | oMmiz022 |PAMSCETORENTED . 1,000,000
] e ' | MED EXP (Any one person) 3 10,000
L | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ ~ 2,000,000
| POLICY D B @ Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § Included|
X | orher Combined Agg $10M $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY E'acageny oM | 1e00000
| | ANYAUTO 73546634 9/9/2021 9/9/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
OWNED X | SCHEDULED _
| | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
PROPERTY DAMAGE
X WSS onwy FS ROTERENTY | | (Peraccident) ~~ [$ =~ 00
|
]
A | X |umereratine | X | occur EACHOCCURRENCE |5 20,000,000
L EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 79861066 9/9/2021 9/9/2022 | AGGREGATE s 2%09,05]
pED | | RETENTIONS $
A |WORKERS COMPENSATION X ‘ PER [ otk
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE | | ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEREXECUTIVE [ 71733182 9/9/2021 | 9/9/12022 | ¢\ ey accipENT s 1,000,000
FFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED? ~ |[NTA 1.000.000
andatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE, § b ke
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 0,
B E&OQ/CYBER LIAB G46887694 11/30/2020 | 11/30/2021 |GENERAL AGGREGATE 5,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

=

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute’s mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire’s
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,

statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.
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Consolidated Financial Statements and
Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2020 and 2019
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o GrantThornton

GRANT THORNTON LLP

75 State Street, 13* Floor
Boston, MA 02109

D +1617723 7900
F +1617 7233640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc., (a nonprofit organization) and affiliates (the
“Entity”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

GT.COM

Grant Thornton LLP is the U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms
are separate legal entities and are not a worldwide partnership



DocusSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

o GrantThornton

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc., and affiliates as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in their net
assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Pt Thowdon LeF

Boston, Massachusetts
June 28, 2021
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30,
2020 2019
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 81,368,115 $ 98,563,248
Receivables for program work 109,113,563 45,130,388
Field advances - program 3,858,492 25,188
Employee advances 4,242 184,277
Prepaid expenses 2,008,128 1,665,471
Total current assets 196,352,540 145,568,572
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 3,157,102 70,862
OTHER ASSETS 264,930 36,945
Total assets $ 199,774,572 $ 145676,379
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and payroll withholdings $ 87,642,735 $ 59,600,173
Accrued vacation 2,213,551 1,464,584
Advances for program work 49,858,878 29,722,037
Loan payable - Paycheck Protection Program 1,074,400 -
Total current liabilities 140,789,564 90,786,794
NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions 58,666,358 54,585,599
With donor restrictions 318,650 303,986
Total net assets 58,985,008 54,889,585
Total liabilities and net assets $ 199,774,572 $ 145,676,379

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions
Public support and revenue
Grants and contracts:

Global Fund
U.S. Government
Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Other grants and contracts

Program income

Contributions

In-kind project contributions

Inherent contribution

Interest income

Total support and revenue
Expenses
Program services:
International programs
Domestic programs
Total program services
Supporting services
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other Expenses
Unallowable

Total other expenses

Total expenses

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

2020 2019

375,120,414 $ 570,358,986
151,964,600 196,939,720
4,808,744 5,739,415
85,693,370 101,715,710
47,603 280,588
293,006 265,399
3,079,352 9,678,628
- 778,482
430,032 852,026
621,437,121 886,608,954
553,307,084 818,431,255
27,079,411 27,263,690
580,386,495 845,694,945
36,680,902 36,428,678
153,799 2,806,595
36,834,701 39,235,273
135,166 288,094
135,166 288,094
617,356,362 885,218,312
4,080,759 1,390,642
14,664 46,777
4,095,423 1,437,419
54,889,585 53,452,166

58,985,008 $ 54,889,585

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2020

Program Services Supporting Services
International Domestic Management

Programs Programs Total and General Fundraising Total Expenses

Commodities $ 346,014,906 $ - $ 346,014,906 $ - $ . $ 346,014,906
Freight costs 30,675,639 - 30,675,639 - - 30,675,639
Salaries 23,366,288 13,225,452 36,591,740 11,325,821 78,701 47,996,262
Consultants 14,904,005 5,683,627 20,587,632 1,969,844 11,900 22,569,376
Cooperating national salaries 44,511,647 86,959 44,598,606 576,982 - 45,175,588
Travel 4,626,451 635,447 5,261,898 516,566 470 5,778,934
Allowance and training 3,785,928 37,980 3,823,908 112,359 - 3,936,267
Subgrants 17,121,298 499 449 17,620,747 29,086 27,073 17,676,906
Subgrants/subcontracts 22,639,383 4,466,833 27,106,216 417 - 27,106,633
Equipment, material and supplies 2,450,232 131,867 2,582,099 135,642 119 2,717,860
Other costs 39,252,289 2,311,797 41,564,086 21,234,136 35,536 62,833,758
Information technology 48,191 - 48,191 560,710 - 608,901
Non-commodity 631,430 - 631,430 - - 631,430
Quality assurance 200,293 - 200,293 - - 200,293
In-kind project expenses 3,079,104 - 3,079,104 - - 3,079,104
Depreciation - - - 219,339 - 219,339
Total expense $ 553,307,084 $ 27,079,411 $ 580,386,495 $ 36,680,902 $ 153,799 $ 617,221,196

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2019

Program Services Supporting Services
International Domestic Management

Programs Programs Total and General Fundraising Total Expenses

Commodities $ 544,556,844 $ - $ 544,556,844 3 1,421 $ 1,471 $ 544 559,736
Freight costs 39,652,513 - 39,652,513 - - 39,652,513
Salaries 24,532,253 12,172,719 36,704,972 11,085,659 2,353,165 50,143,796
Consultants 14,119,065 5,791,456 19,910,521 2,090,816 379,622 22,380,959
Cooperating national salaries 49,761,390 244 621 50,006,011 658,261 - 50,664,272
Travel 9,468,547 1,256,109 10,724,656 940,323 22,704 11,687,683
Allowance and training 7,052,172 46,360 7,098,532 236,650 250 7,335,432
Subgrants/subcontracts 83,262,033 5,191,198 88,453,231 - 22,267 88,475,498
Equipment, material and supplies 4,555,167 231,216 4,786,383 300,443 - 5,086,826
Other costs 31,154,814 2,330,011 33,484,825 20,713,133 24,233 54,222,191
Information technology 146,193 - 146,193 387,941 2,883 537,017
Non-commodity 277,348 - 277,348 - - 277,348
Quality assurance 184,863 - 184,863 (548) - 184,315
Incidence 29,423 - 29,423 1,382 - 30,805
In-kind project expenses 9,678,630 - 9,678,630 - - 9,678,630
Depreciation - - - 13,197 - 13,197
Total expense $ 818,431,255 $ 27,263,690 $ 845694945 $ 36,428,678 $ 2,806,595 $ 884,930,218

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets $
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to net cash

used in operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Receivables for program work
Field advances - program
Employee advances
Prepaid expenses
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and payroll withholdings
Accrued vacation
Advances for program work

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment
Inherent contribution net of cash acquired

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program loan

Net cash provided by investing activities

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $

2020 2019
4,095,423 1,437,419
219,339 19,685
(63,983,175) (26,553,124)
(3,833,304) 500,547
180,035 (79,414)
(342,657) (766,262)
(227,985) (22,609)
28,042,562 28,512,414
748,967 (210,087)
20,136,841 (18,507,594)
(14,963,954) (15,669,025)
(3,305,579) (52,342)
. 37,427,968
(3,305,579) 37,375,626
1,074,400 :
1,074,400 -
(17,195,133) 21,706,601
98,563,248 76,856,647
81,368,115 98,563,248

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

9
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (the Organization) was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11, 1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current
funding is principally from the United States Agency for International Development (USAID) and the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (Affiliates). JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is accorded with
such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and removal of the
Affiliates’ board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation,
and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of Affiliates.

World Education, Inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in
partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it
provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs.
These programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth
and national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education,
agricultural practices, literacy, and income generation. World Education, Inc’s financial data is consolidated
utilizing its fiscal year-end financial statements, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020, and 2019,
respectively.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management (PfSCM) was incorporated on February 14, 2005, under
the laws of Massachusetts. PF'SCM began operations on October 1, 2005 as a non-profit organization
established by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management Sciences for Health, Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences for Health, Inc. discontinued their relationship with PFSCM and
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. became the sole member of PfSCM.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE B - CHANGE IN CONTROL

As previously referred to in Note A, the Organization achieved a controlling interest in PfSCM during fiscal
year 2019. The net assets of PISCM as of October 11, 2018, totaling $778,482, were contributed to the
Organization and were recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities as an inherent
contribution. Details of the transaction are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,206,450
Accounts receivable . 2,608,518
Other assets 774,153
Liabilities (40,810,639)

$ 778,482

10
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. as
well as World Education, Inc. and PfSCM, its affiliates (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Net
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are classified and
reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the Organization
has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,420,690, and $3,483,206 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5 - 7 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased with
grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned to
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

11
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Recent Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal year 2020, the Organization adopted ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and Accounting Guidance
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). The FASB issued this update to clarify and
improve the scope and accounting guidance for contributions received and made. The amendments of this
update should assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions
(nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange
transactions subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. The
Organization applied the standard using a modified prospective approach as of October 1, 2019. This
guidance did not have a material impact on the Organization's consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

In addition, in fiscal year 2020, the Organization adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, which outlines a single comprehensive revenue model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. The guidance supersedes most current revenue recognition
guidance, including industry-specific guidance, and ensures that entities appropriately reflect the
consideration to which they expect to be entitled in exchange for goods and services, by allocating
transaction price to identified performance obligations, and recognizing that revenue as performance
obligations are satisfied. The Organization applied the standard using the modified retrospective transition
method. This guidance did not have a material impact on the Organization's consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and Contacts

The majority of the Organization’s revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria (the Global Fund), and U.S.
government agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human Services.
Revenues are recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying expenditures that are reimbursable
under the terms of the contracts, agreements or grants, or in accordance with the grantor’s restrictions.

The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for services provided under exchange
and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts, and contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period received in the appropriate net asset category, based on the existence or absence
of donor imposed restrictions. If donor imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase in net assets with restriction and are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions
when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the same
reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
entitlement and a refund of amounts paid (and a release from obligation to make future payments). The
Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2020, the Organization had $212,245,310 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognized as revenue in the consolidated statements of activities.

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. There were no
grants and contracts, for which the contractual performance obligations have not yet been made or the right
to recognize revenue is dependent on future events at September 30, 2020.

12
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Contributions

Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made or the
gift is received, whichever is earlier.

Contributions received are recorded as revenue without donor restrictions, or with donor restrictions
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions are reported as restricted
support and are then released to without donor restrictions upon expiration of the time and/or purpose of
the restriction. Restricted support, whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period, is shown as
support without restrictions.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and is not a private
foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to
the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,
federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., World Education, Inc. and PfSCM file separate unconsolidated
tax returns. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and PfSCM file tax returns based on a September 30
year end and World Education, Inc. files its tax return based on a June 30 year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

13



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $0. Included in receivables for
program work is $62,496,812 and $38,093,960 of amounts billed and $46,616,751 and $7,036,428 of
amounts unbilled.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in its balance
sheet/statement of financial position. The guidance also expands the required quantitative and qualitative
disclosures surrounding leases. The ASU is effective for fiscal year 2023 for the Organization. The
Organization is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE D - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government. The
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE E - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances as of September 30:

2020
Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Net
Furniture and equipment $ 592816 $ 580,766 $ 12,050
Leasehold improvements 3,468,069 323,017 3,145,052

$ 4060885 $ 903,783 $ 3,157,102

2019
Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Net
Furniture and equipment $ 709,627 $ 654,090 $ 55537
Leasehold improvements 45,680 30,355 15,325

$ 755,307 § 684,445 § 70,862
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Depreciation expense was $219,339 and $13,197 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

NOTE F - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30:

2020 2019
Other - non-governmental
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation $ 13725112 $ 13,272,043
Various Donors 17,575,439 10,225,618
Global Fund 17,146,528 4048677
Doris Duke Charitable Foundation 1,411,799 2,175,699

$ 49858878 $ 29,722,037

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized.

NOTE G - DEBT
Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was most recently renewed on October 16, 2020. The loan is payable on demand.
Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line
of credit remains in effect until May 31, 2021 and annually thereafter is contingent upon performance. The
loan is collateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were
borrowed during 2020 or 2019 and as a result, as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding balance is
$0 and no interest was incurred on this loan during the years ended June 30, 2020 or 2019.

John Snow, Inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1, 2019. Interest is charged by utilizing
a fluctuating rate based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, in any
event, on or prior to June 30, 2022. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year
and as a result, as of June 30, 2020, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30, 2020.

Loan Payable - Paycheck Protection Act
In April, 2020, World Education, Inc. (WEI) was granted a loan (the Loan) in the aggregate amount of

$1,074,400, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP) under Division A, Title | of the CARES
Act.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2020 and 2019

The Loan, which was in the form of a Note dated April 23, 2020, matures on April 23, 2022 and bears
interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly commencing in February 2020. The Note may be
prepaid by WEI at any time prior to maturity with no prepayment penalties. Funds from the Loan may only
be used for certain costs, such as payroll costs and occupancy expenses. Under the terms of the PPP,
certain amounts of the Loan may be forgiven if they are used for qualifying expenses as described in the
CARES Act.

NOTE H - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment which might result from such an audit would be immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan with no
balance due at September 30, 2020.

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the USAID on an annual basis. As of September 30,
2020, actual indirect cost rates have been approved by USAID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
through December 31, 2015 and World Education, Inc. through June 30, 2018. Based on favorable past
experience, management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be
material to the consolidated financial statements.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has caused disruption in operations of businesses domestically and globally.
In response the Organization implemented cost savings and other measures to reduce operating expenses
and ensure adequate liquidity. Due to the uncertainty of the continued spread of the virus and economic
outlook, there may be short-term and long-term implications for operations of the Organization.

NOTE | - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

During the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization received $14,664 and $46,777,
respectively, of donor restricted donations. The donations are restricted for use in specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor.

NOTE J - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (R&T) and John Snow, Inc. (JSI, Inc.) (a non-exempt corporation)
purchase consulting services from each other. The President and Director of R&T is the sole stockholder
of JSI, Inc. The two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill federal and state governments.

During the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, JSI, Inc. billed R&T $23,817,932 and $28,335,233
for consulting services (technical support), respectively. These amounts are reflected under program
services - consulting totaling $16,704,012 and $15,311,055 and program services - other costs totaling
$7,113,920 and $13,024,177, respectively, on the consolidated statements of functional expenses. In
addition, during the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, R&T performed consulting services
(technical support) for JSI, Inc. totaling $8,772,841 and $7,658,189, respectively.

As of September 30, 2020 the R&T was owed $605,509 from JSI. As of September 30, 2019, the
Organization owed JSI $896,503.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2020 and 2019

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019, R&T incurred $22,899,284 and $23,073,571 of overhead expenses
(supporting services), of which $9,481,343 and $9,292,686 was its share of JSI, Inc. incurred costs.

R&T is a co-borrower with JSI, Inc. on a commercial demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration
date of May 31, 2021 which allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security
agreement with a first position lien on all corporate assets of R&T and JSI, Inc. including assignment of
promissory notes and security documents between the two companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a
fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payable monthly in arrears, which at
September 30, 2020 and 2019 was 2.17% and 3.826%, respectively. At September 30, 2020 and 2019,
there was no outstanding balance on this loan.

World Education, Inc. has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc. will provide
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terms as
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions between World Education, Inc. and John Snow, Inc. for the years
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as follows:

2020 2019
Administrative and technical support $ 1616,316 $ 1,561,799
Other direct charges (including rent of $1,067,591 and $871,877) 1,477,010 1,375,414

$ 3093326 $ 2,937,213

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days written notice
to the other.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line of credit with John Snow, Inc. with a borrowing limit of up to
$1,000,000.

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a related company to purchase services. Transactions with this
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows for the years ended September 30,

2020 and 2019:
2020 2019
The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation; 40% owned
by John Snow, Inc.) $ 1,027,077 $ 686,384

$ 1,027,077 $ 686,384

NOTE K - RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee’s monthly earnings, funded with each month’s payroll.
In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to the plan. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are automatically be enrolled at
2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $2,492,737 and $2,458,753 for the
years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

17



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
September 30, 2020 and 2019

WEI had a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of its employees. WEI
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee’s monthly earnings, funded with each month'’s payroll.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the plan are fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were
$374,449 and $360,907 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE L - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2019 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.

During the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, rent expense under long-term lease obligations
were $568,227 and $505,419, respectively. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company’s
long-term leases as of September 30, 2020 are:

2021 $ 434 419
2022 450,718
2023 396,612
2024 155,324
2025 160,680
Thereafter 166,036

$ 1,763,789

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the years
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $1,081,972 and $953,108, respectively.
NOTE M - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various departments
and agencies of the federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for the
years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019:

For the year ended September 30, 2020:

% of Total
Revenue Income
The Global Fund (PfSCM) 375,120,414 60%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T and WEI) 134,311,303 22%
For the year ended September 30, 2019:
% of Total
Revenue Income
The Global Fund (PfSCM) 570,358,986 64%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T and WEI) 165,608,943 19%
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2020 and 2019

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. received $134,311,303 and
$165,608,943 from U.S. Agency for International Development as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, which
represents 57.1% and 55.9% of total income, respectively.

NOTE N - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization’s reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management’s review and approval.

The following reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of September 30, reduced by amounts not
available for general use within one year due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ 81368115 § 98,563,248
Receivables for program Work 109,113,563 45,130,388
Total financial assets available within one year 190,481,678 143,693,636
Less contractually restricted and donor restricted assets 49,858,878 29,722,037
Total financial assets available to management for general
expenditures within one year $ 140,622,800 $ 113,971,599

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 million, which it could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need.

NOTE O - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 28, 2021, the date on which the

consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, there were no
subsequent events that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.
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KARYN DUDLEY MADORE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d’b/a Community Health Institute karyn_madore(ajsi.com
501 South Street, 2' Floor, Bow, NH 03304 (603) 573-3305

EDUCATION
YALE SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH'S CLIMATE CHANGE AND HEALTH CERTIFICATE
Anticipated Graduation, July 2020

NATIONAL PUBLIC HEALTH INFORMATION COALITION, MARIETTA, GEORGIA
Certified Communicator in Public Health, 2015

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA, TAMPA, FLORIDA
Graduate Certificate Degree, Social Marketing for Public Health, 2014

PLYMOUTH STATE COLLEGE, PLYMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
M.Ed. 1995

PLYMOUTH STATE COLLEGE, PLYMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
B.S., Marketing 1987

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire

JSI-NH Communications Director, January 2010 to present

Provide overall strategic direction, administration, and management of health communications services to a variety of projects.
Oversee marketing and communication campaign development, print materials, and collateral as well as print material distribution
services to ensure that all materials and campaigns are of high quality, effective, and innovative.

NH Communications and Operations Director, August 2008 io September 2019

HIGHLIGHTS OF RELEVANT PROJECTS

NH Center for Excellence, Addressing Alcohol and Drug Misuse in NH: The Center for Excellence provides technical
assistance, disseminates data and information, and promotes knowledge transfer to support the effectiveness of communities,
practitioners, policymakers, and other stakeholders working to reduce alcohol and other drug misuse and related consequences in
New Hampshire. The Center is a project of JSI and staffed by consultants with technical assistance expertise in best practice
implementation, systems change, quality improvement, data and reporting, service-to-science, training and other related efforts.

NH Youth Binge Drinking & Opioid Abuse Prevention Campaigns (2016-present) Oversee the JSI-NH substance
use disorder communication project scopes including research, evaluate, and implementation. Currently the NH team
has the following active substance use disorder campaigns:

Binge-Free 603: What's Your Reason — a young-adult focused prevention campaign: Binge Drinking Reduction.

Doorways-NH — This statewide campaign promotes the nine Doorway locations, providing single points of entry for
people seeking help for substance use, whether they need treatment, support, or resources for prevention and awareness.
The regional Doorways ensure that help is always less than an hour away. In addition, 24/7 access to services is also
available by dialing 211.

Partnership for Drug Free NH (April 2020 - present)

Serve as Project Director to aid in the collecting of substance use disorder resources and the writing of website content
for the Partnership for Drug Free NH, which exists to advance and amplify effective evidence-based prevention
messaging and strategies by providing current, accurate, and actionable substance misuse prevention materials.

Rhode Island Underage Drinking-Hosting Law (February 2020 - present)

Serve as Project Director to conduct formative research to inform a campaign related to underage drinking habits and the
provision of alcohol to underage persons by older friends and family members. This campaign aims to increase awareness about
the Rhode Island (RI) Social Hosting law through social media and partner engagement awareness strategies, in the 20 RI towns
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with highest alcohol consumption.

NH Lyme Disease Prevention Campaign Spring 2016 to present

Serve as Communication Specialist to develop a grass roots and marketing campaign for a private funder via the NH Charitable
Foundation in order to reduce tick encounters and cases of Lyme disease in NH. This project identifies priority audiences affected
by tick bites, best-practice outreach strategies, partner communication channels for grass-roots interventions, and effective
educational outreach materials to advance the understanding of the health risks of tick encounter, and how to prevent tick bites
and Lyme disease. Tick Free NH (TickFreeNH.org) includes the development and creation of a Public Service Announcement,
mass-media campaign, social media campaign, and website.

Wisconsin Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Campaign (February 2017 — December 2019)

Served as Project Director and as Communication Specialist Lead in the creation of a statewide Human Trafficking Awareness
and Prevention Campaign to inform the public that sex trafficking of Wisconsin youth under the age of 18 is an issue in urban,
suburban, rural and tribal communities throughout WI. This Campaign brought awareness to the indicators that a youth is being
sex trafficked or may be at risk of being sex trafficked; disseminate information about the risk factors that may make youth more
vulnerable to being trafficked; and, implement an effective statewide media/social marketing campaign that reduces demand and
prevents sex trafficking of youth in Wisconsin.

National Healthy Start Branding and Communications Lead July 2014 to March 2017

Served as the Branding and Communications Lead for the Maternal and Child Health Bureau’s Supporting Healthy Start project
to provide capacity building assistance to 100 Healthy Start grantees to ensure program effectiveness in achieving the goals to
reduce infant mortality, reduce health disparities and improve perinatal health outcomes.

Rivier University, Division of Nursing and Health Professions, Nashua, New Hampshire

Adjunct Professor, 20135 to present

Courses: Undergraduate Level: Health Promotion, Marketing and Communication, Introduction to Public Health; Introduction to
Environmental Health; Graduate Level: Environmental Health, and Behavioral Health and Health Promotion

SELECTED ORAL PRESENTATIONS
% Anyone. Anytime. NH™ - New Hampshire's Opioid Crisis Public Awareness Campaign”, (August 2017) National
Conference on Health Communication, Marketing and Media, Atlanta, GA.
% Anyone. Anytime. NH™: New Hampshire Heroin Awareness Campaign. (June 2016). 24" Social Marketing Conference,
Building on the Legacy: Forging New Paths. Clearwater Beach, FL.
% Dear Me New Hampshire: Low-cost Marketing with a Big Impact. (April 2012). Break Free Alliance, Promising
Practices. New Orleans, LA.

SELECTED HONORS | AWARDS

e Wisconsin, We Need to Talk — Statewide campaign informing Wisconsin residents about youth sex trafficking — (2019)
Berreth Award — Bronze Medal, Excellence in Public Health Communication. NPHIC

e Binge-Free 603 — Young Adult Binge Drinking Prevention Campaign in New Hampshire (2018) Berreth Award - Gold
Medal, Excellence in Public Health Communication. National Public Health Information Coalition.

e Tick Free NH - Grass-Roots Lyme Disease Prevention in New Hampshire (2017) Berreth Award - Bronze Medal,
Corporate Health Marketing. National Public Health Information Coalition.

e Anyone.Anytime. NH™ Campaign (2017) Berreth Award — Honorable Mention, Corporate Health Marketing. National
Public Health Information Coalition and (2016). U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Surgeon
General, Facing Addiction in America: The Surgeon General's Report on Alcohol, Drugs, and Health. Washington, DC:
HHS, November 2016.

e  Start the Conversation New Hampshire (2013-2014) Start the Conversation Physician Toolkit (2014) Grady Award —
Gold Medal, Start the Conversation Billboard (2014) Grady Award — Silver Medal, Start the Conversation Posters
(2014) Grady Award — Bronze Medal, National Public Health Information Coalition.

e Dear Me New Hampshire 2013-2014 Campaign Summary Report (2015) Grady Award — Bronze Medal.

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS [ MEMBERSHIPS
Social Marketing Association of North America, Board of Directors
Public Relations Society of America, Member

National Public Health Information Coalition, Member
International Social Marketing Association (ISMA), Member
Society for Health Communication, Founding Member
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DEBRA L. LOVE

JSI, 501 South Street, 2" Floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (60

EDUCATION

PLYMOUTH STATE COLLEGE, PLYMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
B.S., Business, Psychology and Health
Interdisciplinary Studies: 19851990

3) 573-3310 Debbie love(@jsi.com

INSTITUTE OF CHILDREN’S LITERATURE, WEST REDDING, CONNECTICUT

Diploma: Writing, 19941996

AT-HOME PROFESSIONS, FORT COLLINS, COLORADO
Certification: Medical Transcriptionist — March to August 2004

Certified NH Notary Public, 2008 to Present

Certificates of Completion:

Understanding Substance Use Disorders by Addiction Technologyl Transfer Center Network
Introduction to User Experience Design, Georgia Institute of Technology

The Spirit of Motivational Interviewing, Adcare Educational Insti
Foundations of Equity, Diversity & Inclusion, EDI Training Instit

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI), Bow, New Hamp

Consultant, 2019 to present
Office Manager, 2016-2019
Project Associate/Project Manager, 2001-2016

CURRENT PROJECTS

Drug Court Assessment, Training & Technical Assistance
Provide project management to elevate the use of evidence-based
assessment; ensure access to evidence-based services; expand the
recovery for all participants in all NH Adult Drug Courts.

Oral Health Promotional (OHP) Partner

Project management for training; technical assistance; program pr
DHHS, Oral Health Program (OHP) and the NH dental workforcé

the state’s vulnerable and under-served populations, both inside o

Harbor Homes Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals

Project support for the five-year SAMHSA-funded Grants for the
utilization-focused evaluation plan, data collection tools, integrati
disseminate evaluation reports and comply with Federal reporting

NH Center for Excellence
Provide fiscal, logistical, administrative, website and data managg
evidence-based practice in substance abuse services. The Center ¢
developing a learning collaborative of networks and practitioners
and establishes data dissemination systems to ensure that data is |
Hampshire.
Doorways-NH — This statewide campaign promotes the nine Dog
seeking help for substance use, whether they need treatment, supy

ute
1te

shire

practices and principles; build capacity in risk and needs
use of recovery support services; and facilitate successful

omotion, and program evaluation and support for the NH
, with an emphasis on determining and supporting the needs of
f our schools, and in the broader community.

>
Benefit of Homeless Individuals. Design and oversee a
on with electronic medical records systems, develop and
requirements.

ment for a statewide technical assistance resource center for
stablishes a base of evidence-based practices in prevention,

to engage in systems change to support evidence-based practice,
oth an input to and output of evidence-based practice in New

rway locations, providing single points of entry for people
ort, or resources for prevention and awareness. The regional

Doorways ensure that help is always less than an hour away. In addition, 24/7 access to services is also available by dialing 211.
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Partnership for Drug Free NH
Project support to aid in the collecting of substance use disorder resources and the writing of website content for the Partnership
for Drug Free NH which exists to advance and amplify effective evidence-based prevention messaging and strategies by
providing current, accurate, and actionable substance misuse prevention materials.

PAST PROJECTS

Hillsborough County Drug Court (HCDC)

Provided program evaluation of the HCDC program to expand the
Court through the development of the HCDC. The goal is to reduce
related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high neeg

substance use disorder treatment capacity in their Superior
recidivism by breaking the criminogenic patterns of behavior
non-violent offenders.

Chronic Disease Conditions

Provide project management for improving access to and participa
of Diabetes Educators accredited Diabetes Self-Management Educ
engagement of pharmacists in the provision of medication therapy
implementing systems to identify people with prediabetes and refe
two (2) diabetes prevention; promoting adoption of evidence-baseq
of self-measured blood pressure monitoring tied with clinical supp
to facilitate systematic referral of adults with hypertension and/or |
approved by the CDC.

ion in American Diabetes Association/American Association
ation and Support programs in underserved areas; increasing
management; assisting health care organizations in

rring them to National Diabetes Prevention Programs for type

] quality measurement at the provider level; facilitating the use
ort among adults with hypertension; and implementing systems
1igh blood cholesterol to community programs and resources

NH Immunization Marketing

Provide budget management, create social media marketing conter
Immunization Program that identifies priority audiences, best-prag
effective educational outreach materials to advance the understan
increase NH immunization rates.

it to develop a creative health marketing campaign, for the NH
tice outreach strategies, and partner communication channels,
ing of the health benefits of vaccines and immunizations and

New Hampshire SBIRT Initiative
Provided training to healthcare providers and systems implementing SBIRT (Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to
Treatment) as a strategy to integrate behavioral health and primary care to identify patients at risk of substance misuse. Developed
and implemented a variety of learning opportunities such as webinars, meetings, and onsite trainings and shared learning to help
providers address all facets of their workflow. The training builds knowledge and skills utilizing motivational interviewing
techniques with patients identified at greater risk.

Injury Prevention Professional Trainings
Supported the Injury Prevention Program, Division of Public Health Services and the Injury Prevention Community Planning
Group by providing planning, promoting and logistical support and evaluation for professional trainings with the goal of
supporting appropriate activities that educate the public health workforce, policymakers and the public on the value of evidenced-

based injury prevention measures in reducing preventable deaths

Quality Improvement in Enhancing the System of Services for

Provided logistical and administrative support to HRSA's Matern
Promising Practices grantees to improve the system of care in me
epilepsy. The purpose of the overall initiative is to explore mech
children and youth with epilepsy in the medical home and to str.
home and the specialty network.

NH Conference on Aging
Project Manager for the New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and A
to provide information, education and training to older adults tha
and independence. Oversight included fiscal management, gener:
of conference expenses, facilitation of planning committee meeti
population, and providing BEAS with recommendations. Other s
form; database creation; executing speaker and site contracts; cod
generating weekly reports for client and post-conference survey ¢

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Training and Techn

Provided administrative support and conference and training logifs

Training and the Public Health Technical Assistance projects fun

and the severity of injuries as well as health care costs.

- Children and Youth with Epilepsy

1l and Child Health Bureau to assist Innovative Strategies and
dically underserved and rural areas for children and youth with
isms to spread improvement of the quality of services for

e;:r;lhen the co-management relationship between the medical

\dult‘s (BEAS) Conference on Aging (COA) — an annual event
promote awareness, self-determination, advocacy, collaboration
tion of funding through sponsorship and exhibitors, negotiation
ngs, coordination of logistics specific to the needs of the target
cope of work included building website with online registration
rdination of registration; oversight of graphic design;

nd analysis.

cal Assistance
tics management for the Public Health Emergency Preparedness
ded by the NH DHHS and NH Homeland Security and
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Emergency Managements (HSEM) to provide training and technical assistance to public health emergency planning partners in
New Hampshire’s 19 All Health Hazards Regions (AHHRs). As part of the Technical Assistance project, provided conference
management for the one-day Emergency Preparedness Conference held annually in June.

Strategic Prevention Framework — SIG Region B, F, J & |
Provided administrative support for a state-defined region to plan for and implement evidence-based strategies to prevention and
reduce alcohol use and abuse among 12 to 17 year olds. The regional initiative is part of a statewide Strategic Prevention
Framework (SPF) funded by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration that engages communities in a
five-step process to assess, build capacity for, plan, implement and evaluate strategies to reduce high-risk alcohol consumption
and its harmful consequence.

National Health Service Corps (NHSC)

Data Coordinator to collect ‘Uniform Data Systems’ (UDS) information from all NHSC sites, which do not receive direct federal
grants. The data collected describes the financial and operational parameters of the health centers, and forms the basis of NHSC
management decisions and reports to Congress, as well as informing the health centers of their relative performance. The project
involves extensive data management and technical editing of reported data as well as the development of unique software to
collect, manage, and screen the data electronically.

Multistate Learning Collaborative

Administrative support for the RWJF-funded Multistate Learning Collaborative (MLC-3), a national collaborative effort to
improve public health services and the health of communities by linking public health processes to health outcomes. Manage two
learning collaboratives addressing childhood obesity and health improvement planning, and tobacco cessation among pregnant
women and workforce development. Developed assessment tools and conducted public health network capacity assessments to
inform NH public health regionalization process.

Prediabetes Media Development and Placement Services

Logistic and administrative support for developing, managing and evaluating a statewide media campaign that targets adults at
high risk for type 2 diabetes, which includes media creation and testing target audience receptivity; tactical strategy development
and implementation; and placement, buys, and evaluation.

Healthcare-Associated Infections (HAI) Data Validation Services

Provided logistical/administrative support in developing and executing a plan to validate HAI data reported by hospitals and
ambulatory surgery centers (ASCs) to New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services. The services and functions
included creating a data validation plan for HAIs reported by ASCs; validating HAT data reported by hospitals and ASCs; training
medical staff to correctly identify HAIs; and training department staff to conduct data validation services.

Cheshire County Drug Court (CCDC)

Provided support in the program evaluation of the CCDC program, which is expanding the substance use disorder treatment
capacity in their Superior Court through the development of the CCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by breaking the
criminogenic patterns of behavior related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need non-violent offenders.

NH Tobacco Addiction Treatment Services (TATS)

Served as Project Assistant, logistical coordinator and website manager for the NH TATS project. This contract serves as the hub
for the NH Tobacco Resource Center, which incorporates: 1) the NH Smokers’ Helpline offering free and confidential counseling
and services in English, Spanish and Portuguese; 2) the promotion of the NH Smokers’ Helpline through a variety of traditional
and non-traditional media outlets; and 3) www.trytostopnh.org, a web-based resource for NH tobacco users and 4) QuitWorks-
NH a resource for NI clinicians working with their patients to quit using tobacco by providing them with a single portal for
referring their patients who use tobacco for state-of-the-art treatment (www.quitworknsnh.org). This initiative also includes the
continued development of a consortium of health insurers who are willing to promote TTS-NH to their subscribers directly and
endorse QuitWorks-NH to their contracted health care providers.

New England Rural Health RoundTable (NERHRT)

Project manager with responsibilities that included maintaining a database with dues paid members and with lapsed memberships.
Coordinated production of the newsletter and managed layout, and printing. Processed all mailings including annual dues,
conference announcements, board mailings, press releases, RFPs, and newsletters. Maintained financial records. Communicated
regularly with NERHRT researcher and website manager. Answered the NERHRT dedicated phone line and processed all
inquiries from Board members, association members and individuals seeking information about the association. Logistics
coordinator for two annual retreats, a conference, and annual board meeting and provided assistance with organization of annual
symposium. Provided assistance to the Executive Director.

D. Love 3




DocuSign Envelope ID: FAS69BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building

Logistics Coordinator of the NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building Project funded by the NHDHHS and the Division of Public
Health Services STD/HIV Prevention Section. Provided logistical and capacity building support for the NH HIV community
planning process and for funded HIV Prevention Services agencies during the fiscal years 2006-2008.

Webster Place

Provided project support for the initial stages of the recovery center, including marketing/coordination of three events (Open
House, Ribbon Cutting Ceremony, and an Evening of Gratitude). Administrative duties included compiling evaluation feedback
on the facility’s current program structure and offerings. Webster Place is an historic property located in Franklin, NH, and
acquired by a consortium of conservation groups. One hundred and forty acres were put into a conservation trust, but the seven
buildings were turned into an alcohol and drug recovery center.

New Hampshire Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) Analysis

Liaison to all licensed providers in NH with regard to gathering of survey information pertaining to their worksites; tracking down
missing information through billing departments or office managers and providing technical support to providers or their staff in
completing the online survey. Responsible for entering data and tracking survey-specific information. Assisted with the analysis
of designated Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPSAs) for primary care, mental health and dental health care in New
Hampshire, and identified opportunities for additional designations. Three main objectives for this were maximizing the
possibility for federal benefits by identifying eligible/high scoring geographic areas and special populations, identifying gaps or
inaccuracies in existing data, and assessing opportunities in areas of "special populations", governor and facility designations.

Monadnock United Way Community Investment Project

Logistics coordinator and administrative support to the CHI/Antioch University Center for Research on Psychological Practice
(CROPP) team, which will guide community organizations in the Monadnock region of NH through a strategic planning process
using a Collective Impact approach to identify collaborative strategies that will impact educational attainment, child welfare and
economic opportunity in the region. The CROPP team will facilitate listening sessions and the CHI will be responsible for project
management, qualitative data analysis and developing a Community Investment Report. The team will share responsibility for the
overall design of the planning process.

ASO Children’s Mental Health

JSI implemented the ASO-Children's Mental Health project on behalf of the NH Department of Health and Human Services to
create an integrated care and service delivery system for children with mental health needs who receive care from one or more
governmental agencies. The project assessed systems and care outcomes for children currently in residential placement and
operationalized a pilot process 2010 that coordinated care and funding mechanisms to improve outcomes for children with mental
health needs. Logistical support was provided to coordinate advisory and finance committee meetings, travel logistics for national
experts and coordination of data from the chosen pilot site.

Community Benefits Legislation Workshops

Arranged and provided conference logistics for The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Office of
Planning and Research, to conduct a series of workshops across the State on New Hampshire’s Community Benefit legislation. In
addition, provided logistical support in planning and conducting a state-wide conference with NH charitable trusts to present
findings and to share lessons learned.

Southern New Hampshire Specialists IPA, Inc.

Provided administration support for the Southern New Hampshire Specialist (IPA). Communicate with practice office managers
in meeting coordination and membership. JSI is contracted to provide executive and administrative support for a group of fifty
Specialists in the Southern New Hampshire region. JSI established the association of independent physicians including forming a
legal entity, formalizing relations with partners including local hospitals and primary care providers, developing an organizational
structure and operating procedures. The association provides support to the independent practices including negotiating managed
care contracts. As an association, the independent practices have been able to represent their individual interests in a coordinated
and more effective way.

New Hampshire Public Health Association (NHPHA)

Responsibilities included providing logistical support for two annual training events and an annual legislative briefing. Work
with representatives of the Program Committee or designee to identify appropriate conference space, negotiated contracts for
space and food, drafted and provided layout registration materials, reproduced handouts and provided registration support at the
conference. Maintained the NHPHA database with dues paid members with lapsed memberships. Coordinated production of the
newsletter and managed layout and printing; processed all mailings including annual dues mailing, conference announcements,
board mailings, press releases and newsletters. Answered the NHPHA dedicated phone line and processed all inquiries from
Board members, association members and individuals seeking information about the association.
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AMY MOFFETT

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d b.a. Community Health Institute Amy Moffett@jsi.com
301 South Street, 2™ Floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3203

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology 1992, Magna Cum Laude
Minor, Social Work

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Manager, March 2019 to present

New Hampshire SBIRT Initiative

Under funding for the NH Charitable Foundation in partnership with the Conrad N. Hilton Foundation and NH Bureau of
Drug and Alcohol Services, provided Project Management support to a team working to assist in coordinating training to
implement SBIRT (Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to Treatment) as a strategy to integrate behavioral health,
and primary care to identify patients at risk of substance misuse. Worked with the team as they developed and
implemented a wide variety of learning opportunities such as webinars, meetings, onsite trainings and shared learning to
help primary care providers address all facets of their workflow. The training builds knowledge and skills utilizing
motivational interviewing techniques with patients identified at greater risk.

Oral Health Promotional Partner

Project support and project management for SBIRT training; technical assistance; program promotion, and program
evaluation and support for the NH DHHS, Oral Health Program (OHP) and the NH dental workforce, with an emphasis
on determining and supporting the needs of the state’s vulnerable and under-served populations, both inside of our
schools, and in the broader community.

New Hampshire Chronic Conditions

Served as Project Manager to support the team as it facilitated efforts to improve referrals from health systems to DSME
programs, engaged pharmacists in the provision of medication therapy management (MTM) for chronic conditions,
increased referrals and enrollment for patients at risk of developing diabetes and those with hypertension and/or high
blood cholesterol to NDPP or other CDC-approved programs. CHI supported the development and coordination of
multiple learning opportunities and strategies including delivering five successful learning opportunities to over 275
healthcare professionals, overhauling the NH Healthy Lives website, exploring issues relating to credentialing for
Community Health Workers and event planning.

Tick-Free New Hampshire

Provided Project Management for the campaign developed by CHI to educate the public about how to prevent tick
encounters and potentially Lyme disease. The digital behavior change campaign encourages preparation for outside
activity and checking for ticks. Primarily targeting parents of children aged 2 to 13, schools, providers and recreational
outdoors enthusiasts, the campaign includes www.TickFreeNH.org, multimedia PSAs, social media, print materials, a
clearinghouse, fundraising, and representation at trade events. CHI also worked with the University of New Hampshire
(UNH) to conduct population surveillance on knowledge, attitudes, and practices via prevention questions to the Granite
State (statewide) poll.

Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems Prevention Messaging Campaign

Served as Project Manager to support the team in their research, evaluation, and implementation of a youth focused
prevention campaign aimed at reducing the prevalence of electronic nicotine delivery system use by minors in NH.
Research for this campaign consisted of peer group identification and validation in NH, the theories of social marketing
and behavior change and the social marketing campaign consisted of social media, traditional media, and youth
leadership as well as a state-wide media buy.

si

A.Moffett 1 | Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4838-87DC-27AA30FD6309

Climate and Health

CHI is contracted with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services to assist in the implementation of
new climate health adaptation programs, providing logistical support to assist in the facilitation of workgroup meetings
for the Climate and Health Advisory Council. CHI will also assist in the development and implementation of train-the-
trainer programs centered around tick-safe practices by leveraging educational materials from the Tick-Free NH,
Department of Public Health Services and CDC initiatives and utilizing best practices for adult learning. Finally, CHI
will be responsible for overseeing subcontracts with Antioch University New England as they provide technical
assistance to local communities to develop evidence-based public health plans and interventions centered around
changing climate conditions. The culmination of this work will be the creation of a white paper by Antioch on the
subject of measuring community resilience to natural disasters.

Concord Group Insurance, Concord, New Hampshire
PMO Lead, April 2016 — March 2019

Served as Information Services Project Manager for numerous software and data center implementations. Working with
major stakeholders, ensured that projects were successfully delivered on-time and within budget. Created comprehensive
status reports and end-of-project metrics to highlight all aspects of an implementation. Utilized Microsoft Project and
Microsoft Team Foundation Server (TFS) to track budgeted vs. actual hours, task progress and bug tracking. Responsible
for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Help Desk that provided technical support to internal users, independent
Agents and policyholders. Hired, trained, and mentored new Project Managers and Support Specialists to guarantee
exceptional service to the entire company. Created detailed user guides and process documents intended for a wide
variety of technical and business users.

Concord Group Insurance, Concord, New Hampshire
Business Analyst, February 2011 — April 2016

Responsible for compiling business requirements and testing billing and claims implementations. Researched and
implemented a new online chat service to improve upon the existing customer service offered to Agents. Served as a
liaison between technical specialists and business users to provide production support meeting all required SLAs.

CERTIFICATIONS
Certified Scrum Master (CSM)

TRAININGS
Facing Addition in America: Tutorial on the Surgeon General’s Report on Alcohol, Drugs and Health
Facilitation — NH Listens

COMPUTER SKILLS

Microsoft Office Suite 2016

Microsoft Project 2013

G Suite (Google)

Microsoft Team Foundation Server (TFES)
Confluence

Jira

TeamGantt

COMMUNICATION SKILLS
User Guides and Training Manuals
Hiring/Supervising/Mentoring
Advanced Facilitation

Conflict Resolution
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TATIANNA TROJNOR-HILL

JSI I~ 501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 7 (603) 573-3300  tatianna_trojnor-hill@jsi.com

EDUCATION

NAZARETH COLLEGE, ROCHESTER, NEW YORK
Bachelor of Science, Public Health and International Studies, 2021, Magna Cum Laude
Minors, Sociology and German Studies

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Associate, October 2021 to present

NH Council for Youth with Chronic Conditions Needs Assessment October 2021 to present
Assists with data collection activities including focus groups, key informant interviews, a PhotoVoices project, survey,
and secondary data analysis.

Tick-Free New Hampshire October 2021 to present

Supporting the development of a marketing campaign for a private funder via the NH Charitable Foundation in order to
reduce tick encounters and cases of Lyme disease in NH. Includes assisting with web copying, report writing, and
helping to promote support within the community.

Community Based Partnership for Comprehensive Tobacco Control October 2021 to present

In conjunction with Youth Vaping Prevention project, supports the team by taking notes and reminders, performs
literature reviews, and executes focus groups. Assists with coordinating filming including: coordinating screen actors,
paperwork/vendor contracts, follow-up communications, and notes, purchasing and tracking stipends, and researching
talent or voice options.

NH Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program October 2021 to present

Event logistics support for the 2022 Environmental Health Conference. Support includes scheduling planning committee
meetings, taking and distributing meeting minutes, and assisting the event manager with administrative support. The
event is scheduled for the fall of 2022 with over 200 people anticipated to be in attendance.

NH Juvenile Court Diversion Summit October 2021 to present

Event logistics support for the 2022 Diversion Summit. Support includes scheduling planning meetings, taking and
distributing meeting minutes, and assisting the event manager with administrative support. The event is scheduled for
May 2022 with over 100 people anticipated to be in attendance.

NH HIV Planning Group (HPG) October 2021 to present

Provides prevention supply distribution support for the project funded through a contract with the NH Department of
Health and Human Services, Bureau of Infectious Disease. Support includes maintaining inventory of condoms,
lubricant, test kits, and shipping supplies, and distribution, shipping, and tracking orders.

PAST EXPERIENCE

Nazareth College, Rochester, New York
Research Assistant, June 2021 — Present

Conducts literature review on COVID-19 health disparities and state/federal policy responses to characterize the

variation in testing and diagnosis of COVID-19 and its symptomatology among young people in the United States.
Assists with data collection and writing of abstract/manuscript.
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Cameron Community Ministries, Rochester, New York
Public Health Intern, January 2021 — April 2021

Contributed to the delivery of food preparation, meal services, and donation coordination for 200,000 people.
Coordinated, evaluated, and participated in the on-site food pantry, serving dozens of families and individuals a week.

Implemented new pantry programs and generated infographics and advertisement material for distribution to the Lyell-
Otis neighborhood and the greater Rochester area.

PRESENTATIONS

The Convenience Epidemic: The Spread, Fascination, and Adaptation of Global Fast Food: 11" Annual America Week
Conference; University of Veszprem, Veszprem, Hungary; March 11-14, 2018.

Mitigating the Spread of Disease: Implementing Mobile-Handwashing Stations to Improve Health Outcomes of the Migrant Farm
Worker Population; Nazareth College Creative Activity and Research Showcase; Rochester, New York; April 2021.

VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

Monroe County Department of Public Health, Rochester, New York
Student Volunteer, April 2020 — June 2020

TIO e.V, Berlin, Germany
Student Educator/Mentor, October 2018 — December 2018
CERTIFICATIONS

Collaborative Institutional Training Initiative (CITI Program)

COMPUTER SKILLS
Microsoft Office

Google Suite
Presentation software

T.Trojnor-Hill 2
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Key Personnel

Year 1
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Karyn Madore Project Director $132,500 13% (
Debra Love Contract & Procurement $75,600 25%
Manager
Amy Moffett Workforce Development $70,000 10%
Manager
Tatianna Trojnor-Hill | Administrative Support $50,000 15%

Year 2

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Key Personnel
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Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Karyn Madore Project Director $136,475 13% 18,0(
Debra Love Contract & Procurement Manager | $77,868 25%
Amy Moffett Workforce Development $72,100 10%
Manager
Tatianna Trojnor- | Administrative Support $54,000 15%
Hill
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Key Personnel
Year 3
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from

this Contract

this Contract
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Karyn Madore Project Director 140,569 13%

Debra Love Contract & Procurement 80,204 25%
Manager

Amy Moffett Workforce Development 74,263 10%
Manager

Tatianna Trojnor-Hill | Administrative Support 57,000 15%

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Key Personnel
Year 4

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Karyn Madore Project Director 144,786 13% ‘
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Debra Love Contract & Procurement 82,610 25%
Manager

Amy Moffett Workforce Development 76,491 10%
Manager

Tatianna Trojnor-Hill | Administrative Support 60,000 15%
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Lori A. Shibinette 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commlssioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501
Fax: 603-2714827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director

April 28, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Counci!

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a
Community Health Institute (Vendor #161611-B001), Bow, NH to continue providing professional
support services to the Department's Oral Health Program in order to implement activities funded
through federal grants, including access to preventive and reparative dental treatment for
individuals in the statewide community-based and school-based oral health programs, by
increasing the price limitation by $2,052,788 from $2,643,045 to $4,895,833 and by extending the
contract completion date from August 31, 2021 to August 31, 2023 effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 77% Federal/23% General

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 13, 2019, item #12
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on March 25, 2020, item #15.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022,
2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached financial table
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing professional support services to the
Department's Oral Health Program and to conduct an evaluation of the programs implemented in
the original agreement to help inform future efforts and sustainability planning. In addition this
amendment will expand on the scope of service to include implementation of a pilot project to
increase access to and use of recommended preventive oral health care and dental pain
management in an effort to reduce people's exposure to unnecessary opioids. The Contractor
has been able to provide support to the oral health program and has the capacity to implement
and integrate these additional services into their current contract. Due to the fact that the HRSA
grant that will be funding this project is in year 3 of a 4 year grant, there was not sufficient time to
put this contract out to bid and therefore it is being added to the contract with JSI.

This amendment will expand on the Contractor will provide dental care coordination to
ensure access to urgent and preventive oral health care in order to reduce unnecessary opioid
prescribing in the emergency department for dental pain. In addition the Contractor, will ensure
a care coordination process that assists individuals who present at the emergency department for
non-traumatic dental conditions and who do not have a dental provider. The programs that are
being continued are school-based and community-based oral health programs for children, teens,
pregnant women, and adults with financial barriers to accessing care. Oral health programs
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 20f2 .

include evidence-based clinical services for tooth decay prevention, screenings, and referrals for
restorative care.

The Contractor will provide care coordination services to individuals who present to the
emergency depariment at a hospital, for non-traumatic dental conditions. The Contractor will
utilize a care coordinator to provide patient outreach; assess barriers to accessing dental care;
and facilitate referrals to a dental provider for follow-up care. The Department anticipates an
increase in individuals who engage in routine oral heatth care, following vaccinations for COVID-
19, which will reduce the costs associated with treating non-traumatic dental conditions in the
emergency department. This will subsequentiy reduce the need for prescribing unnecessary
opioids as a method to manage dental pain.

The foilowing populations will be impacted from the effective date of this agreement
through August 31, 2023: _
16,470 students in schools with forty percent (40%) or more Free and Reduced Lunch
Program;
* 91,440 people served by Federally Qualified Health Centers in NH annually;
+ 9,500 people who use the emergency department for oral health care;

+ 6,000 NH Medicaid Insured Adults that receive Substance Use Disorders treatment:
and

+ 1.3 million people will be impacted by oral health surveillance and professional
development activities that are statewide and intended to change systems of care.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions To General Provisions, Paragraph 3 of the original
contract, the parlies have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for
two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the current programs that
provide oral health services to children, teens, pregnant women, and adults with low-incomes as
well as uninsured families living in New Hampshire will not be evaluated and sustainability

planning will not oceur.
Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.366, FAIN #NU58DP006487; CFDA #93.236, FAIN
#T12HP31859;, CFDA #93.898, FAIN #NUSS8DP006298; and CFDA #83.991, FAIN #
NB0O10T009366,

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

t  Lori A. Shibinette
\ Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is lo join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens o achieve health and independence.
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FISCAL DETAILS

Funding Source 1

05-95-90-901010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK

GRANT

§tate Class / Currén Increased ;

l:s;:l AcEount Class Title Job Number Bu dgett (D::::zi:d) %ZVJZ:

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 30 $15,000

2020 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2022 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2024 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $0 $3,750 ‘ $3,750
Subtotal $45,000 $33,750 $78,750

Funding Source 2

05-95-90-901010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK

GRANT
State Increased '
Fiscal | Ctass/ , Class Title Job Number g‘;g;:t' (Decreased) ';‘L‘g;z:’
Year Amount
2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $420,000 $0 $420,000
2020 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 30 $600,000
2021 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
2022 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $60,000 $540,000 $600,000
2023 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $0 $600,000 $600,000
2024 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $0 $50,000 $50,000
Subtotal $1,680,000 $1,190,000 $2,870,000
Funding Source 3

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, ORAL

HEALTH

State Increased .

Fiscal A?::ﬁ;t Class Title Job Number gﬂg;:: (Decreased) %eu‘g:f:

Year Amount

2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $166,369 $0 $166,369

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $184,969 $0 $184,969

2021 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $184,969 $0 $184,969

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $15,600 $165,769 $181,369

2023 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $0 $181,369 $181,369

2024 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $0 $30,000 $30,000
Subtotal $551,907 $377,138 $929,045

September 2020
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FISCAL DETAILS

Funding Source|4

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: ‘
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH -

100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Increased i
Fiscal Ailfssr':t Class Title Job Number (Biu:'entt {Decreased) I;e\gsect!
Year tou udge Amount ufue
2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $136,238 $0 $136,238
2020 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $104,800 $0 $104,800
2021 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $104,800 $50,000 $154,800
2022 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $800 $199,200 $200,000
2023 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $0 $178,200 $178,200
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $0 $10,000 $10,000
Subtotal $346,638 $437,400 $784,038
Funding Source|5

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES.

COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Increased "
. Class / ; Current Revised
F\I’se:I Actount Class Title Job Number Budget (D:ggi;::d) Budget
2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve 90080083 $0 $0 $0
2020 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve 90080083 $8,700 $0 $8,700
2021 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $8,700 $0 $8,700
2022 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $1,450 $3,550 $5,000
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080083 $0 $5,000 $5,000
2024 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve 90080083 $0 50 $0
Subtotal $18,850 $8,550 $27,400

Funding Source 6

05-95-90-902010-
DIVISION OF PUE

56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
3LIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,

COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Increased ;

Fiscal A?}:igzrit Class Title Job Number g’:g;:: (Decreased) gz\ggzs

Year : Amount

2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve 90080081 $0 $0 $0

2020 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $300 $0 $8,700

2021 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve 90080081 $300 $0 $300

2022 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $50 $2,950 $3,000

2023 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $0 $3,000 $3,000

2024 102-500731 |. Contracts for Prog Svc 90080081 $0 $0 $0
Subtotal $650 $5,950 $6,600

September 2020
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Oral Health Promotion Partner

This 1* Amendment to the Oral Health Promotion Partner contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment

#17) is by
(hereinafter
Community
business at

WHEREAS
on March 1

perform cer

and between the .State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and JSI Research & Training institute, Inc. d/b/a
Health Institute, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit with a place of
501 South Street 2™ Floor, Bow, NH 03304. :

, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
3, 2019, (Item # 12), and as amended on March 25, 2020 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to
tain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and

in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS
schedules ¢

WHEREAS
General Pr

, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
or terms and conditions of the contract; and

, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
ovisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties

and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services,; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and ‘

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: '

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Price Limitation, to read:

August 31, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$4,695,833. .

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #2,
Scape of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, in order to
update the scope of services to absorb changes made by Amendment #1 and to add related
scope from a contract that terminated due to the economic impacts of COVID 19.

4. Maodify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein in order to update the terms and conditions and funding
soyrces to align with this Amendment #2.

5. Modify Exhibit B-3, Amendment #1 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit B4, Amendment #1 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-4, Amendment #2,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-6, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by referencEefein.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-CRALH-01-A02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

8. Add|Exhibit B-7, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
9. Add|Exhibit B-8, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
10. Add|Exhibit B-9, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by referénce herein.
11. Add Exhibit B-10, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
12. Add|Exhibit B-11, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
13. Add|Exhibit B-12, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
14, Add|Exhibit B-13, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
15. Add| Exhibit B-14, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
16. Add Exhibit B-15, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
17. Add Exhibit B-16, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
18. Add Exhibit B-17, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
19. Add Exhibit B-18, Améndment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
20. Add Exhibit B-19, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
21. Add Exhibit B-20, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

@

4/16/2021

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Oral Health Promotion Partner

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment #2 remain
in full forcel and effect. This Amendment shali be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive

Council approval.

IN WITNES

4/18/202

(=]

Date

4/16/202

Date

JSI Research
RFP-2019-D

& Training Institute, Inc.
PHS-21-ORALH-01-A02

' Title:

S WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Do Slor;vdbv:
N
Name: Lisa Morris
Title: Director

JS| Research & Training Institute, Inc.
DocuSigned by:

katie Polrt

Name: Katie Robert

Director

Amendment #2

Page 30f 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
4/19/2021 ! Céim_
A2C4AF

Date Name: cCatherine Pinos
. Title: .

Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A — Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.]  The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
‘meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2, The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
-Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith. '

1.3 For the purpdses of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Services

2.1, The Contractor shall provide Oral Health Promotion Partner (OHPP) services
for the Department in order to implement activities for NH residents, including
individuals in Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment and/or recovery
centers. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1.  Developing sub recipient contracts/agreements with school-based
and community-based dental programs.

2.1.2.  Developing sub recipient contracts/agreements with dental centers to
provide dental screenings, fluoride treatments and referrals to
services for individuals in substance use disorder (SUD) treatment
programs.

2.1.3. Assisting the Department with project management for Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) Oral Health
Workforce grant. Including activities related to development and
delivery of education in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas
(DHPSAs) for dentists on the use of the Prescription Drug Monitoring
Program (PDMP), integration of Screening, Brief Intervention and
Referral to Treatment (SBIRT), and for dentists and emergency
department physicians, prescribing for dental pain management.

2.1.4. Assisting the Department with activities that will increase the reach of
school-based oral health programs serving schools with student
participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch
(FRL) program.

2.1.5.  Assisting the Department with the Third Grade Survey.

Ds
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. &K
d/bfa Community Health Institute Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contractor [nitials
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
QOral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

2.2,

The Contractor shall ensure applicants complete an organizational
performance self-assessment, that includes but is not limited to the following
elements:

2.21.
202
2.2.3.
2.24.

2285,

2.26.
s
2.2.8.
2.2.9.

2.2.10.
2211.
2212
2.2.13.
2.2.14.
2:2.185.

Organization Maturity.

Current plans for expansion or contracting
Staff levels.

Staff training experience.
Vision/Mission.

Recover Support Services.
Populations Served.
Governance and Administration.
Human Resources.
Volunteers/Interns.

Financial Management.
Organizational Management.
Risk Assessment.
Procurement/Monitoring.
Performance/Evaluation.

School-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

2.3) The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and solicit
applications from sub recipients to provide school-based oral health services in
order to increase access to statewide preventative services to low-income,
uninsured and under-insured children and adolescents, including those
enrolled in NH Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1.  Assistthe Department with developing and implementing an unbiased
process tool for selecting sub recipients to enter into
contracts/agreements with the Contractor to deliver school-based oral
health services.

2.3.2. Provide the draft process for selecting sub recipients to the
Department for final approval prior to publication.

2.3.3.  Ensure the Department is included in the selection of sub recipients.

234. Create contracts/agreements with selected sub recipients for
Department approval to provide services through August 31, 2020
with options to renew services for up to three (3) additional years.

DS
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. l L’-ﬂ
d/b/a Community Health Institute Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A — Amendment #2

2.3.5. Execute Department-approved contracts/agreements with selected
sub recipients.

2.36. Consult with the Department in early 2021 and annually thereafter to:

2.36.1. Determine through evaluation whether school-based
dental program contracts will be extended.

2.3.6.2. Assist the Department with actions to preserve
community-based services for NH's low-income,
uninsured, and under-insured children and adolescents,
including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The
Contractar shall conduct activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.3.6.2.1. Reviewing sub recipient progress towards
deliverables.

2.3.6.2.2. Determining whether to renew sub recipient
contracts.

2.3.6.2.3. Renewing sub recipient contracts upon
Department approval.

2.4, The Contractor shall assist the Department with activities to increase the reach
of school-based oral health programs serving schools with student participation
rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program through
8/31/2023. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited
to:

2.4.1.  Supporting bi-annual and quarterly meetings of Work Group partners,
which shall be named no later than thirty (30) days from the contract
effective date. The Contractor shall:

24.11. Ensure invitations are sent to each member at least 30
days prior to each convening.

24.1.2. Ensure adequate meeting space is reserved for each
convening.

2.4.1.3. HostaWebEx meeting for each convening, ensuri‘ng work
group members with barriers to attending can attend.

2414, Scribe meeting minutes and ensure minutes are provided
to the Department for approval.

2.4.1.5. Provide other meeting logistics as needed.

2.4.2. Developing a sustainability plan for school based oral health services
during PY 1that outlines strategies for leveraging other resource
opportunities in order to reduce reliance on federal funds.

B 0s
JSI Resgarch & Training Institute, Inc. | EK
d/b/a Community Health Institute Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
4/16/2021
Date

RFP-2018-DPHS-21-ORALH-AQ2 Page 3 of 14




DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

r

DocuSign Envelope ID: 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CESC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A — Amendment #2

2.4.3. Developing and implementing Communications Plans that include but
are not limited to:

243.1. A plan that supports school-based program activities
developed by the Work Group during PY 2 and PY 3.

2.43.2. A plan for target audiences, including but not limited to:
24.3.2.1. Legislators.
2.43.2.2. Decision makers.
2.4.3.2.3. Medicaid officials.
24324 Government officials.
24.3.3. Aplan to guide efforts for promoting:

2.4.3.3.1. The benefits and effectiveness of school-
based oral health activities.

2.43.3.2. Increased participation by school and children
in these services including a minimum of three
(3) communications materials.

2.4.3.4. |dentification of:

2.434.1. Target audiences, including but not limited to,
parents, caregivers, medical and dental
providers, school personnel, and decision-
makers.

24342 Keymessages for each target audience;
2.4343. Proposed communication channels;
24344, Adissemination timeline;

2.43.4.5. Partnerroles in plan implementation.

2.4.4. Including CDC funds for an Enhancement Program developed by the
Work Group in sub-recipient contracts for eligible school-based dental
programs.

2.45. Conducting evaluations of programs to assist with informing future
sustainability planning.

2.5/ The Contractor shall work with the Department during PY 2 to prepare for the
Basic Screening Survey (BSS) for New Hampshire Third Graders in order to
update The New Hampshire 2013-14 Healthy Smiles — Healthy Growth Third
Grade Survey to be conducted during PY 3. The Contractor shall:

251. Work with the Department to develop a Memorandum of
Understanding/Agreement  with dental hygienists (preferably
CPHDHs) to conduct the screenings of third grade students in
accordance with BSS requirements and in coordination with a survey

JSI Resgarch & Training Institute, Inc. I {4
d/b/a Community Health Institute Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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Exhibit A — Amendment #2

2.5.2.

2.5.3.

expert from the Association of State and Territorial Dental Directors
(ASTDD) and the DPHS Chronic Disease Section Epidemiologist.

Work with the Department to convene the training session for the
dental hygienists, prior to the 2019-2020 school year.

Collect surveillance data during PY 3 from the BSS hygienists and
sharing the collected screening data with the Department. The
Contractor shall ensure:

2.5.3.1. Screening data does not include personally ndentlfable
information (PII).

2.5.3.2. Once parental consent forms are completed, children are
screened and evaluated for dental needs and either
referred for services or provided services onsite, if the
school has an onsite option available.

2.5.3.3. Children and their parents are made aware of dental
sealants, their value and availability of sealants through
the school program and as well as the BSS and the
importance of oral health to overall health.

Community-Based Oral Health Services agreements

2.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and solicit
applications from sub recipients to provide community-based oral health
services in order to increase access to statewide preventative services to low-
income, uninsured and under-insured children, adolescents, and adults
including those enrolled in NH Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1.

262,

2.6.3.
264

2.6.5.

2.6.6.

Assist the Department with developing and implementing an unbiased
process for selecting sub recipients to enter into
contracts/agreements with the Contractor to deliver community-based
oral health services.

Provide the draft process for selecting sub recipients to the
Department for final approval prior to publication.

Ensure the Department is included in the selection of sub recipients.

Create contracts/agreements with selected sub recipients for
Department approval to provide services through August 31, 2021
with options to renew services for up to two (2) additional years.

Execute Department-approved contracts/agreements with selected
sub recipients.

Consult with the Department in early 2021 and annually thereafter to:

26.6.1. Determine through evaluation activities whether existing
contract/agreements  for community-based  dental
programs will be extended.

DS
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Exhibit A — Amendment #2

2.6.6.2. Assist the Department in actions to preserve community-
based services for NH's low-income, uninsured, and
under-insured children, adolescents, and adults including
those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The
Contractor shall ensure evaluations are completed and
include, but are not limited to:

26.6.2.1. Reviewing sub recipient progress towards
deliverables.

2.6.6.2.2. Determinihg whether to renew sub recipient
contracts.

2.6.6.2.3. Renewing sub' recipient contracts upon -
Department approval.

SUD-related training

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

The Contractor shall implement and administer contracts/agreements with
dental centers to perform screening-fluoride treatment-referral visits at
Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment centers that includes the utilization
of Certified Public Health Dental Hygienists in recovery centers who provide:

2.71.  Screenings.

2.7.2. Decay management and desensitization services.
2.7.3. Patient education.

2.7.4. Referrals for treatment in dental clinics and offices.

The Contractor shall assist the Department with project management for HRSA
Oral Health Workforce grant, [including activities related to development and
delivery of education in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas (DHPSAs)
for dentists on the use of the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP),
integration of Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT),
and for dentists and emergency department physicians, prescribing for dental
pain management, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.8.1. - Ensuring an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT-trained dental
professional to develop and implement academic detailing sessions
for dentists in DHPSAs, three (3) times per year.

2.8.2. Providing logistical support for three (3) PDMP trainings per year for
dentists in DHPSAs.

2.8.3. Providing logistical support for up to six (6) dental pain management
trainings between 6/30/2020 and 8/31/2023, for dentists and
emergency department physicians in DHPSAs.

The Contractor shall work with dental providers to establish workflows for
screening, which includes but is not limited to:

05
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Exhibit A — Amendment #2

2.9.1.  Identifying who will be screened.

29.2. |dentifying screening tools to be utilized.

2.9.3. Method of screening.

29.4. |dentifying who will be responsible for managing the screening.

29.5. Identifying the individual responsible for conducting the brief
intervention. ' _

296. Determining referral networks in place and if it includes a range of
providers and modalities.

2.9.7. Ensuring confidentially for referrals.
2.9.8. Determining follow-up processes for positive screens.
Care Coordination Project

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure patient care is available in a clinical facility located
in Grafton County, which is a DHPSA.

2.11. The Contractor shall convene and participate in a workgroup to establish a care
coordination program for individuals experiencing non-traumatic dental pain.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.11.1. The workgroup convenes on a quarterly basis and includes, but is not
limited to the option to attend:

2.11.1.1. Ata physical location.

2.11.1.2. By telephone through conference call line available to all
participants.

2.11.2. The first workgroup is convened no later than thirty (30) days after the
contract effective date.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure a Care Coordinator coordinates dental services for
individuals who have non-traumatic dental pain. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1. Accept referrals from partnered emergency department(s).

2.12.2. Attempt to contact each individual to schedule a face-to-face
assessment.

2.12.3. Schedule an assessment for each individual in need of services to
determine:

2.12.3.1. Barriers to accessing dental care services.

2.12.3.2. Barriers to completing recommended course of dental
care.

2.12.4. Methods and programs available to mitigate barriers to dental care.

Ds
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2.13.

2.14.

2.15.

2.12.5. Assist patients with finding methods to overcome barriers to
completing recommended courses of care.

2.12.6. Ensure that 100% of patients referred to the care coordination
program are offered an appointment for dental care in a dental clinic.

2.12.7. Monitor and report timeliness of follow-up on referrals from the ED to
a dental clinic.

The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) dental health professional
attends the Bi-State Annual Primary Care conference.

The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of eligible patients seeking care
coordination program services are assessed, evaluated, and appropriately
discharged. .

The Contractor shall attempt follow up contact to each individual referred for
program services to assess barriers to accessing dental care, ensuring no
personal health care information is exchanged. The Contractor shall attempt
to contact individuals:

2.15.1. Via phone.

2.15.2. Via text.

2.15.3. In written form via postal mail.
2.15.4. In written form via email.

3. Project Management

3.1

3.2

3.3.

3.4.

The Contractor shall ensure project management best practices are
documented and performed throughout the term of the contract to start,
organize and prepare for the project, carry out project work, and formally close
out the project.

The Contractor shall meet with the Department on a bi-weekly basis to discuss
meeting and call schedules, activities, budgets and/or performance measures.

The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to assess joint progress
toward objectives and activities on a semi-annual basis in order to assist the
Department with sharing products related to grant activities, which may include
but are not limited to:

3.3.1. Meeting agendas and minutes.
3.3.2.  Written reports.

The Contractor shall ensure Project Management activities include, but are not
limited to:

3.4.1.  Project Initiation and Planning

3.4.1.1. The Contractor shall conduct a project Kick Off Meeting,
within fifteen (15) business days of the contract
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3412

3.4.1.3.

amendment effective date which addresses topics and
activities that include but are not limited to:

3.4.1.1.1. Areview of the project scope as defined in the
contract.

3.41.1.2. A review of the Initial Project Schedule and
' Work Plan as identified in Exhibit A-1 Work
Plan.

3.4.1.1.3. A presentation on, and discussion of, project
management best practices to be utilized.

34.1.1.4. Areview of the templates that will be utilized
for each aspect of the project management
cycle, including but not limited to:

3.4.1.1.4.1. Monthly Project Reports
3.41.142. Issues Log.

3.4.1.1.43. Decision Log.
3.41.1.44. Risk Register.
3.41.1.45. Change Request Log.

3.41.146. Deliverable Acceptance
Log.

The Contractor shall submit an updated Project Schedule
that will be the basis for the final approved Baseline Project
Schedule within five (5) business days of the Project
Kickoff Meeting, which consists of:

3.4.1.21. Project milestones.
3.4.1.2.2. Activities.

3.4.1.2.3. Deliverables.
3.4.1.24. Task dependencies.
3.4.1.25. Due Dates.

The Contractor shall establish the Project Repository that
is comprised of all project related documentation and
ensure access is provided to appropriate Department
users.

3.4.2.  Project Execution, Monitoring and Controlling

3.421.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/bla Community Health Institute

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-A02

The Contractor shall schedule weekly, unless an
alternative frequency is approved by the Department,
Project Status Meetings following the Project Kickoff

Meeting. -
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3.422. The Contractor shall provide notes from the Project Status
Meetings to the Department within three (3) business days
from the date of each Project Status Meeting.

3.4.23. The Contractor shall schedule a Daily Huddle, lasting less
than thirty (30) minutes in duration, during the most
complex or challenging stages of the project upon
Department request.

3.42.4. The Contractor shall maintain the baseline and current
Project Schedules using a project management software
solution that;

3.424.1. Enables schedule of analysis.

34.242 Recalculates dates based upon approved
changes.

3.4.2.4.3. Tracks variances to the approved baseline.

3.4.25. The Contractor shall provide a written Monthly Progress
Report that contains a summary of the sub recipient's
activities, which include but are not limited to:

3.4.25.1. Work accomplished during the reporting
period.

- 3.425.2. Updated Project Schedule identifying
variances to baseline.

3.4253. Status of prioritized open issues, highlighting
those issues that require immediate escalation
to ensure timely resolution.

34254, A list of the highest priority risks, risk
ownership and status of the mitigation plan for
each.

3.4.25.5. Planned work for the next reporting period.

3.4256: Requests for Department assistance
necessary to ensure successful project
delivery.

3.4.3.  Project Closing

3.43.1.  The Contractor shall schedule and conduct a Final Project
Meeting during which the Acceptance Log will be
presented for Department approval and sign-off.

3.432. The Contractor shall transfer the project repository,
including all documentation falling within state ownership,
to the Department,.
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3.4.33. The Contractor shall be available for a Lessons Learned
session facilitated by the Department.

4. Reporting

4.1.

4.2

By August 31st each year, the Contractor shall provide the number of sub-
recipient contracts/agreements in place for:

4.1.1.  School-based dental programs.
41.2. Community-based dental programs.

By August 31st each year, the Contractor shall provide reports that include only.
aggregated data that pertains to how many individuals were screened and/or
treated along with other data that does not include any personally identifiable
information (PI1). The Contractor shall provide reports that include, but are not
limited to:

4.2.1.  Annual School-Based Program Report Form.
4.2.2. Annual Community-Based Report Form.

4.2.3. An annual narrative report that includes performance measures for
- oral heath visits by dental hygienists from sub-recipient dental centers
to adults at SUD treatment centers.

4.2.4. An annual performance report for all continuing education sessions

delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs.

4.2.5. An annual narrative report describing meetings of the Work Groups
for School-Based Oral Health Services Enhancement, which includes
a sustainability plan.

4.2.6. An annual narrative report describing the Communications Plan and
products created and activities implemented from the
Communications Plans for the school-based oral health programs
and community water fluoridation activities.

4.2.7. For School-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

4.2.71. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services
agreements established.

4.27.2. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services site
visits conducted.

4.2.73. The number of students screened or treated through
School-Based Oral Health Services.

4.28. For Community-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

4.2.8.1. The number of Community-Based Oral Health Services
agreements established.

2 DS
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4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

4.28.2. The number of Community-Based Oral Health Services
site visits conducted.

4.2.8.3. The number of individuals screened or treated through
Community-Based Oral Health Services.

4284. The number of individuals in SUD settings screened,
treated and referred.

4.2.9. For SUD-related training:
4.2.9.1. Report on match.
4.2.9.2. Number and type of CEUs provided.
4.2.9.3. Number of training sessions conducted.
4.29.4. Number of attendees who participated in training sessions.
4.2.95. Report on RQI cycles findings and related improvements.

4.29.6. Evaluation results for knowledge increase among training
attendees. '

4.2.10. ForBSS:
' 4.2.10.1. Number of hygienists recruited; and
4.2.10.2. Number of hygienists trained.

The Contractor shall provide aggregate screening data collected from the Third
Grade Survey during the 2019-2020 school year to the Department upon-
completion of the third grade screenings in a format approved by the
Department.

The Contractor shall submit information for the Care Coordination program
evaluation, which includes, but is not limited to:

4.4.1. Number of patients referred from a hospital emergency department.
44.2. Number of appointments made.

4.4.3. Number of appointments completed.

4.4.4. Number of patients that completed the recommended course of care.

4.45. Cost of providing care to patients referred from hospital emergency
departments.

The Contractor shall ensure each care coordination patient visit is documented
in aggregate data.

The Contractor shall submit aggregated data for care coordination services
performed no later than June 30th of each contract year, which includes, but is
not limited to:
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4.7,

4.38.

46.1.  Number of patients diverted through the program to an oral health
professional.

4.6.2.  Number of patients that attended their referral appointment.

4.6.3. Number of patients that completed their recommended course of
care.

4.6.4. Cost of providing services to patients referred through the program.

The Contractor shall provide a quarterly report utilizing information provided in
the evaluation, as referenced in Subsection 3.1.

The Contractor shall monitor and report timeliness of follow-up on referrals from
the ED to a dental clinic.

5. Deliverables

5.1.

5.2
5.3.

54.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

The Contractor shall provide a process for accepting applications for oral health
funding from vendors to the Department for approval no later than two (2)
weeks from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall create contracts/agreements with school based programs
no later than six (6) months from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall create contracts/agreements with community based
programs no later than eight (8) months from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall provide training curriculum identified in Subsection 2.6 to
the Department for approval no later than three (3) weeks prior to scheduling
the first training.

The Contractor shall ensure an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT-trained
dental professional to deliver academic sessions for dentists at least three (3)
times per year.

The Contractor shall provide logistical support for:
5.6.1.  Three (3) PDMP trainings per year for dentists in DHPSAs.

5.6.2. Up to six (6) dental pain management trainings between 6/30/2020
and 8/31/2023 for dentists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs.

The Contractor shall submit the finalized communications plan and materials in
to the Department for approval no later than 10 business days prior to releasing
the plan and materials to the Advisory Group partners.

The Contractor shall ensure any changes to the Work Plan in Exhibit A-1 are
provided to the Department in writing within five (5) business days of the
changes being accepted.

The Contractor shall meet all performance measures and deliverables
identified in Exhibit A-1, Work Plan.
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5.10.

9. 11.

912

The Contractor shall hire and train a care coordinator within ninety (90) days of
the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall develop a sustainability plan for care coordination through
alternative funding sources, upon Department approval.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of patient visits are documented.

6. Performance Measures

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

The Contractor shall ensure an attempt to contact 100% of patients whom are
referred to the program by the care coordinator to assess their barriers to
accessing dental care in accordance with Section 2.4 through 2.9.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of care coordination patients referred to the
program are offered an appointment for dental care in accordance with
Sections 2.4 through 2.9.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of eligible care coordination patients seeking
care coordination program services are assessed, evaluated and approprlately
discharged, in accordance with Sections 2.4 through 2.9.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the services
provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and federal funds as follows:

Source of Funds

Year 1
(SFY19)

Year 2
(SFY20)

Year 3
(SFY21)

Year 4
(SFY22)

Year 5
(SFY 23)

Year 6
(SFY 24)

2:1.

100% Federal Funds from Centers for
Disease Control & Prevention,
Preventive Health & Health Services
Block Grant, CFDA #93.991, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN),
NB010T009366

Awarded: September 16, 2020

$15,000

$15,000

$15,000

$15,000

$15,000

$3,750

2.2.

39.74% Federal Funds from Centers
for Disease Control & Prevention,
Preventive Health & Health Services
Block Grant CFDA #93.991, FAIN
NB010T009366 and 60.26% General
Funds

Awarded: September 16, 2020

$420,000

$600,000

$600,000

$600,000

$600,000

$50,000

2.3.

100% Federal Funds from Centers for
Disease Control & Prevention, State
Actions to Improve Oral Health
outcomes CFDA #83.366, FAIN
NUS8DP006487

Awarded: June 1, 2020

$166,369

$184 969

$184,969

$181,369

$181,369

$30,000

—0%

JSI Research & Training Institute
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24.

100% Federal Funds from Health
Resources & Services Administration
Grants to States to Support Oral Health
Workforce Activities, CFDA #93.236,
FAIN T12HP31859

Awarded: July 1, 2020

$136,238

$104,800

$154,800

$200,000

$178,200

$10,000

2.5

100% Federal Funds from NH Breast
and Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive
Cancer and Cancer Registry Program,
(Comprehensive Cancer job#) CFDA
#93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298,

Awarded: August 24, 2020

$0

$8,700

$8,700

$5,000

$5,000

$0

26

100% Federal Funds from NH Breast
and Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive
Cancer and Cancer Registry Program,
(Breast and Cervical Cancer job#)
CFDA #93.898, FAIN NUS8DP006298

Awarded: August 24, 2020

$0

$300

$300

$3,000

$3,000

$0

TOTALS:

$737,607

$913,769

$963,769

$1,004,369

$982,569

$93,750

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services in compliance with funding
requirements, which includes an in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of:

3.1.$737,607 for State Fiscal Year 2019.
3.2.$913,769 for State Fiscal Year 2020.
3.3.$963,769 for State Fiscal Year 2021.

JSI Research & Training Institute
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3.4.$1,004,369 for State Fiscal Year 2022.
3.5. $982,569 State Fiscal Year 2023.
3.6. $93,750 State Fiscal Year 2024.

4. The Contractor shall ensure the yearly required match that is identified in Section 3, is in non-federal contributions either
in cash or in-kind related to directly carrying out HRSA project activities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder
(SUD) and be approved by the Department.

5. The Contractor shall provide bi-annual reports, Exhibit B-5 Match Report Form, of itemized matching funds in accordance
with the Code of Federal Regulations, 45 CFR Part 75.306 no later than January 15th and June 15th.

6. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current and/or future funding.
7. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

7.1.Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement,
and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-20,
Amendment #2 Budget.

7.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20*") working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred during the prior month.

7.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to
initiate payment.

7.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to
approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

8. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-funded programs and services and
have records available for Department review, as requested.

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract completion date specified in
Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

D3
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10.In  lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

11.Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services and in this Exhibit B, Amendment #2.

12.Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this agreement may be
withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this agreement.

13. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between budget
line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor.and Executive Council.

14, Audits
14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the following conditions exist:
14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds received as a subrecipient
pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.
14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b,
pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.
14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and Exchange Commission

(SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.
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14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by an independent Certified
Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year,
conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial audit performed by an
independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.
14.4. In additien to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is understood and agreed by

the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return
to the Department all payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have
been disallowed because of such an exception.

os
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IR L5 TR 0 0 g TS TS uﬁlﬂr
3] ol 1 1%

51 Asseacn Traning nstitute. Inc. 9/a Communty Healh insttute
-ORALI-AO2
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Exhibit B-6, Amendment #2

-New Hampahire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Contractor Nama: J3/ Resaarch & Tramung Insutute, INC. AV Communky Mealth instints
Budgm Request for: COC Improving & Sustaining Oral Heakh Outcomes
e Mt Pt Purtress
Budgael Period: July 1, 2011 - Juna 10, 2022
Tolal Program Com — Contracior Bhare T Raich T L
— Bl Tdireet Vol Direct Wndirec Youl Borwet. ndurect
33600 oall 3 7141 P i § - B 77348.00 s
#,048.00 - 9.548.00 o ) - - #.048.00 -
lsa‘.m - !s-j - < 954,00 3 mﬂ'
305200 - 3052.00 . o :_osz:on = um:vu
2,452.00 < 2.452.00 e - B 24 0 745300 |
T 3 Loy - . . H® & THH]
a5 o T 3 ' 6 ) > ]
723 000.00 - T75,000.00 - 125,000.00 - 125.000,00
1 thll - 1,000.00 - . - 1,000.90 3 1,000.00
3,850 60 - 3 % - B - 380000 - 3,800,060
- Ti19.0 811! -~ - - [ XL 8119.00
TR (R JLIAIEE:) : o > LEEZE] TTI® ELIEIEC)
Indireci As A Parcen of Direct 4%
C:
Conracior inmeh,_—— __
JS1 Resaarch Trakning kuathds, Inc. &b/a Community Hesln insiduty
RFP-201$-0PHS-21-ORALH-AG2
Exti 8-8. Amenament #2 < ans/ien
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Exhibit B-7, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sarvices
Cortractor Nama; 131 Resasrch & Training Instituts, Inc, &/b/a Community Healh instinuts
Budget Request lo: HRIA Oral Health Workdorce
O e Frumameral P
Budget Pertod: Juty 1, 2021 - June 38, 2021
Total Program Lol = Share [Maich Funded by DHHS Coniract share
Line Rem 1 Indireet Vot Dievet ndei Vol — Dt vt Toul
T T1.947.00 ] 1 - _ TiTal00)3  Teessbafi D 1809300 5305200 | - 3305200
3 ~33,820.00 - F420.00 8,207, 5 8.707.00 | AT 3 781300
Fepai anc Mamenance 5 : 3 % 5 - -
ofice z_;u‘ﬂ FEIIX 854,00 654.00 [ El:a . (L)
-
N B s 3 5 5 5 . 2 .
7 Ocoupancy 8.030.00 - 803800 2,094 00 - 200400 !%% g 394200
# 845,00 - 645800 1.883.00 - 1.683.00 4778, = 477500 |
7._Sofwaie lnjm 93360 300 - :utoo m:-n r ﬂtﬂ
10, Man 3 78 000,00 - T8,600,60 8,000 50 - 8.000.00 800009 - 8.000.00
i1, T 143500 p 143800 37400 - 37400 1.081.00 B 1,081.00
12 127,800 00 - 127,800.00 36.400.00 - 33.480.00 ¥1.200.00 - 91.200 00
13, Odher outaly m . - - - - - - - -
= PO HETY s T3 = LI AT
E TOTAL T30,600.00 | 1 - 71,390.00 TR Ti TR TR |- LTS5 T8 )
*<T RS A Parcent of Direet : T

I51 Research Training insitute, loc. d/b/s Communty Hesith Instaus
RFP.2019-DPHS-2 1-ORALH-ADR
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Exhibit B-8, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services

Contractor Nama: JSI| Resaarch & Teaining institute, i, d/tva Community Health instints

Budget Request for: COC Block Grant |109% (ederal)
O ety Praraional Partve
Budget Parfod: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

Total Prograrn Cow racior TWaich
._‘!__ et Toual Biewet ndirect o

T3T8 0 - T378.00 =

2 - — S =
Y 5500 3500
(K] = [EZX) ; 5 3 T : ]
14260 - Taz n = : ) 14200 ) 142.00
) = 7160 z - . Y : 1%
aon - 3250 - = - 32.00 - 37.60
12.000.00 : 12.000.00 - : - 12.000.00 - 12,000.00
= - 17700 T s - - = PN 7750
TOTAL RERX) s LATXC) . - D ISR LR TRER

Tndiect Ax A Parcent of Diree 2%

51 Resaarch Training knstnss, inc. d/bvs Community Heath Instnuae

RFP.2015-DPHS-21-ORALH-AD2 .
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Exhibit B-9, Amendment #2

New Hampahire Cepartment of Health and Human Sarvices
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/bia Community Healh inatinzs
Budget Request for: COC Comprehensive Cancer Grant
Orw o™ Farmosone e
Budget Puriod: July 1, 2021 . June 30, 1921
Youal Progiam Covl “Tontraciar Share T Waich Fundad by DARY ot #har |
Line Ham - — Buwer — direet Vol Blrect diree Toul —Det  edmea o Tow ]
_ Towl 528.00 - $3800 52800 D 3300 |
| Conullants =
and Mamenance
5 otice e = i : = - % . i
e s z 5 . - 5 - 3 :
Ofce - c = 0
R = B 5 . =
7. 54.00 5300 - 5800 5960 |
(3. Corrent 47,00 4700 - iT00 a0 |
Postage F:
|__Sulscepéens C
At and Logal 5
[7_Sorware ) - ) 5 : p 5 3 7o)
[T Tane e, . . . - = = 7 . v
1, Stafl Education and Traring 11.00 - 11.00 - - - 11.00 - 11,00
3, Other !w‘ Cetady m B - - - . . . - -
Subjed Matier Experts 4,000 00 - 4,00000 - 3 - 460000 4.000.00
) : T 5% 7 - i
TOTAL 44300 157.00 T3 . 0 I TR TITES T3.53 |
Idect A A Parcent of Dwect T

r

162021

481 Ressarcn Training Insinate. Inc. Vs Commniy Healh Wnstiure
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Exhibit B-10, Amendment #2

New Hampshirs Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: S5 Research & Training instifuts, Inc. d/ia Community Haslth Instimuts
Budget Request for: COC Breas & Cervical Cancer Program (BCCPY
et Prsmens e
Budget Pariod: July 1, 2011 - June 38, 1911

Toual Progeam Cowt Toniracior Share T Waich “Vurvaed by DARY comtract shiry
ine Nem ndireet — Toml Bhwet Tndwwct - Towl (] Indarect Tom
i ;u "“E 263.00] ¢ - 763.00 - T 5 100 = 38300
je, m - - - - ry -
“% and Mairtenance - - - - . - - -
£X @ efice. o:u c W% ~ j = 3 - ofou
Educationsl - - - P - - . - .
Lat - - . - . - - .
— : 5 0 - 7 = = 5 =
Offce . . . - - - - .
. Touvel . 5 5 5 . . i .
29.00 - 900 - - 200 900

X 16 = : - 3 - 5]
X X s Z 5 ) n 5]
TER 6 - o - T 3 7%
: - 5 E : X —Tiw|
FATE] 5 5 5 —IR iR TR |

Contracior Wnatiats, [:
RFP-2019-0PHS-21

Exhite B-10, Amendmant 52 . 418/2000
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Exhibit B-11, Amendment #2

New Rampshire Department of Aealth and Human Services
Contractor Mama: J31 Research & Training Institute, inc. /s Community Healh instirute
Budpet Request for: COC Biock Orant
Ol Hawlth Promotre Pt
Budget Period: July 1, 7022 - Juna 19, 1923
Yol Program Codl Toniracior Share [ Match Funded by DAY contract share |
Linve e [ Duwer Indirect Total Dirver Total Tndwect Tom |
._Tolsl 42,105.00 0 ll,lﬂ;.ﬁ - 42.104.00 ll‘ﬂ.w
A [ERTIX) - 13.479.00 - [EXLX 1387900 |
. _Consuhanty - - D
R ontad - - ry
l.lh:oﬂ [} Tita (X -Tna (X} Y‘:E
b ~ - : : s
Mecca . - .
T, 4.716.00 4,718.00 471800 A718.00
%‘ XL iTeete ARLITC) SToe]
_aﬁﬁ... .
[ Cibacrioions :
Audd and H! .
TS T EXG) O T
10, Mark eling/C omunications - . . -]
11, Siafl Educrton and Trarng 160 257 (TR 84200
15, Subcomocti\onmen 520 520,000.00 290080 $20000.00
13. Osher cmab - . - -
o % [FTTE T 355
- TOTAL e IR 12,548.00 T53.503.58
wet rant T S 51

J381 Resasrch Traning insilise, Inc. Ava Community Hesth insttude
RFP-2018-0PHS-21-ORALH-ADZ
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COC Improving Sustaining Oral Hesth Oucomes Exhibit B-12, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Hame: J3I Research & Training institute, Inc. &/a Community Health Institts 31 Resaarch & Training insthuts, inc. &va Community Health Invsttuts
Budget Request tor: COC x Onat Heanth €DC Oral Disasse
Oret Host Prernatsre P Cr el Srmrcton Pwe
Budgat Period: July 1, 7017 < June 39, 7913 Juy 1, 2021 < June 30, 1013
Yol Program Cont Toniracior Thare THach — Funded by DRRS comradt shary ]
Line Rem Direct ’_ ndiwet Total Birect Indirect Towl . Girset Fdiwet Total
1. Total FLELOL - 2724805 - - - 2724800 - 77.344,60
i&i 954800 - 04800 0 s 0 — i - LERECT
3. Consutares. - - : - - - .
E - - . < 0 3
erasl = - s = . 5
Rﬁ ‘o Masntenance - a 5 5 .
ey 5 ' ) : : ' Lo :
o s 7 5 = - B A :
18 Travel = o s 5 " :
i 305200 - 3052.00 B B . s
8. Curremt 243200 - 245200 - - 0
. < = = . . Py
35400 5 35400 = : B 3560 iﬁjﬁ
4500 - 545.00 - - . 54500 - hs:uo
123,000 00 - 125,000.00 - - - 125,000,080 - 125 000 60
7,000.00 = 1,000.00 - - - 1.000,00 - 1,000 00
3,800 00 - 3,800 - - - 3,600,00 - )
5 X |‘Tﬁs - = o 0 §.120 00
EEN [REX) 0 - D LLESIIY)
A%
Contracior et _\——
I8 Research Training imatuts, inc. d/bva Community Heskh insuruse
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-AG2 .
Exniba 812, Amencmen: 2 - : a6/200
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Exhibit B-13, Amendment #2

New Hampshirs Department of Health and Human Sarvices

Contracios Mame: JSI Resesrch & Training ins:fiute, Inc. d/iva Community Mealth Institute

Budget Request for: HRSA Oral Health Workiorce

Orad e oo Mot
Budget Pariod: July 1, 2021 - Jume 30, 1923
Yol Frogram Coml Tontracior Share | Maich — Funded by DRRY contract stharm |
e Bam T T ndirect Total Cirwer Talrect B 1 I ) [T Youl |
—_Toul 7174700 0 — Taam 1089500 - 1883500 & 5305200 § - 3.052.00
ﬁ —hanm 5 HIBD $397.60 ) 0 3 L Wik AT
Rental -
!z and Mantanancs
? gmm 251100 - FXTIX 454,00 - 00 T837.00 - 183760
- 2
Meduad
R : - - = = ; 4 5 =
4 LR P —8.0%.00 2.084.00 - 7,004 00 5 B TH2.00
5. Curert Expamies 3 645800 - #4500 1.683.00 - 1858300 ) - 477500 ]

553,00 . 933,00 743,00 . 74300 .00
16,000,60 18,000, 00 5,000.00 P 8,506,060 5,000,
I YY) : 143500 374,00 : 374.00 1.081.00 s
105.820.00 . 105,850 00 38,450, - 36,430 00 9,40 00 -

= : L TR E s T35 I e —TTTw
I FOTAL BIANN HECX] EI L) LNATNC) TN X L
1 As A Parcant of Orect o

Contracior bratiaks, E

451 Resaarch Training instine, InC. Ab/s Community Health imstiue S
RFP-2018-OPHS-21-0RALH-AD2
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Exhibit B-14, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comractor Name: 331 Resasrch & Trsining insttuts, in. /s Community Health butinta
Buoget Request for: COC Block Grant (100% feoeral)
Ore? Mt Orarolioned Perirer
Buaget Pariod: Juty 1, 2022 - Juns 30, 2023
Yolal Program Cost BRars 7 Maich Tunded by DAY conlract share
Dawet gt Toul Darect et Yot Girvet el Toud
578 - 137800 - - - 187800 - 1378.00
LX) ) - X - - - 53.60 - $5a00 |
oo . 3500 n 2 - 5500 W]
177,00 - 1771.00 : : - [EiX ; 177.00
V4300 v 142.00 - - - 142.00 5 142.00 |
I} - 7% o8 = 7156
’I:B = 32.00 : c - 3200 - 32.00
12,000 60 - 12.000.00 - - - 12.000.00 - 12,000.00
3 [iE) T (K
TeE3.00 e TINR T ~ . T T
EESY
(=
451 Resaarch Trsining institude, inc, dib/s Community Healh Insitute Contractor rsaly_——
RFP-2018-DPHS- 21-ORALH-ADZ
814, ” :
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Exhibit B-15, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Dspartment of Health and Human Services
Contractor Namae: 431 Research & Training instnae, inc. &/ Community Health Instints
Budget Request for: CDC Comprehenshve Cancer Grant
O’ M Pl Putar
Budget Peclod: July 1, 2022 - Juna 30, 2013
Yotal Program Towt Toniracior Bhars TMGich Funded by DANS contract share |
T Tndirect Toual D Todirect “Voum vt —ndwwct Tom |
53660 EF X 5800 [
155 175,00 i 17500
18.00 3 u‘m - - u. 00 . 18.00
5600 wwm : 59.00
) .00 41,00 - a0
7% % 75 = —)
1100 1100 1100 Z )
4,000.00 4.000.00 4,000 00 = 4,000.00
: T T z : : : (O T
LR 15750 TR g D - o TR TR
- I
(e
J51 Reseanch Trmning Instiute, Ihc. d/bls Communify Health brstitude Conracior iniats_\—

RFP-2015-0PHS-21-ORALH-AD?

Exnintt B-15, Amendment 2
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Exhibit B-16, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services’
Contractor Mama: J31 Ressarch & Training lnrttute, Inc. db/ Community Heallh Instinute
Budget Request for: COC Breast & Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP)
Orel Haath Practie
Budget Period: July 1, 2012 - June 39, 2013
Yol Program Con Toniracior Share | Hatch —Tunded by DANS coniract whare |
Line Reem et Toual Bt oot Youu Burset “indreet Toud
T, Tom %‘ [ OO ) 78300 - - 79300 - 283,00
3. (i Ea 1 8100 - - - 47,00
Ractn = = = : A & 3 5
na Mantecance - - - - - . - - -
;. ﬁ : oneral ofica 3 5 =3 : = o X = %)
Lo 5 5 = = = = - 5 3
— = 2 5 5 = = - : 5
8. Trmvel - - - . - . . " .
1A 30.00 - 30.00 - - - 30.00 s 30.00
5. Curreen 1 2300 - 7400 | - - - 2400 - FIX)
;‘.ﬁ - 350 - A 35 5 353
) : —$% = = % z 5]
T - 355050 : = A T : T 5
: Tim o s : : = 7 T
TOTAL 240100 700 TR o 5 5 130100 T8 TR
Wedieect s A Purcerd of

Conwracior iniats E

ans/1001
Dats,
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Exhibit B-17, Amendment #2

New Hampshirs Department of Health and Human Sarvices

‘Contracior Kamae: 131 Resaarch & Training instnas, Inc. d'b/a Commundly Health nsthyute

Budget Request for: COC Block Grant

Orw et Prmrsssread Poctr
Budgel Pertod: July 1, 1973 August 31, 2024
D Yol Frogram Comt Tonlractor Share | Match Tunded by DHRY contact share ]
irve Barn Diewet direy Toul Ot wavet Yo Binet et Tomi |
G 431000 3 - 1310.00 - - - 2000 - 421000
5 Beanets 1.398.00 - 1.398.00 - - - 739400 - 1.38800 |
Rets - . > s s z = . 5
%M : Il;l‘ll : : : \l):w - \A’:w
[ - = - Z = = : - :
Megxal . - - - . . -
7 ) 17200 - - - 47200 B 472,00 |
urTens 3 379.00 - 378, - - - 379.00 - 379.00
i—nm . I z = s = i
Wism ence. . 3 . . S o e
Y] n® - 5 X - ]
e X - - - 54,00 - 3460
42,000.00 47.000.00 - - 42,500, 00 - 43.000.00
v = T3 T : : - 5 TR 33550
TOTAL 13.745.00 1,255,600 u%’ 5 B - LIRLI) RIS ﬂ%"
awect As A Percent of Divect ELY
[
Contracior intish =

J81 Research Training kstude, inc. diva Community Healh Instude
-ORALH-ADZ
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Exhibit B-18, Amendment #2

New Hampahirs Department of Health and Human Services
Comracior Mama: J3I Reseasch & Training NSttute, <. &//a Communiy Health Instine
Budge Request for: COC Improving & Sustaining Oral Health Outcomes
Ol Hnalkh Proersserad Partre
Budget Parfod: Juty 1, 2023- August 31, 1024
Tolal Program Cas Toniracior Bhare [ Waich Funded by URNS contract share |
Line Rem — ndicect Toal Oirwet ngirect Your Bivet Indiec Toud
1. Towm 7.8631.00 - 283100 3 - - 7S 783100 | 3 = %
B e : iiorts - = : s : X3
9200 3 9200 . N B $200 B 9200
794,00 - 00 - - - 75 00 794,00
3700 - 1) P - 7.0 - 237,
3400 - s-jou - - > ) 3400 |
5300 - 5300 - - = 53,00 - 5300
25,000 00 - 7500000 - - 75.500.00 - 25,000.00
= [ —THE = 5 - TR Fas 5% |
T . ToiAL R L) PLLIE] 5 - - T TR TE853 |
diwct Aa A Parcent of Diesct ™
J51 Resasrch Tramng RIS, INC. G/8 Communtty Haalh Insttus
RFP-2019-DPHS-21 CRALH-AG2
Exhion 18, Amenament 12 4167200
Page Lol 1 Date_
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HRSA Oral Health Workiore

Exhibit B-19

New Hampahirs Depariment of Health &nd Human Services.

Contractor Name: J31 Research & Training institute, Inc. d/ba Communiy Health intitute
Budget Request for: HRIA Oral Heakh Workforee
el Piuadt Framoninad ane
Budget Perled: July 1, 2023 August 31, 1013
Yolal Program Cout Toniracior Share T Hatch Funded by DHAS contract share |
Line hem 0 ndirect Toul Taewet Indwect Youu Biwer Toud

Tt 165200 3 0 = - 105200 082,00
3 I ¥ - - 349,00 e |

Remal - B .
ofica 3750 - 310 o 2 758

[ Pramacy o . =

Modea < = 2

o Travel - . 0 5 = =
T Ocoupency 18,60 - T18.00 - T18.00 T8 |
#3508 - (2] - ¥5.00 ¥5.00
1400 |A-,N - » u‘.oc ujm
12.000.00 12,000,090 4.000.00 4,000.00 8.000 00 - 8.000.00
7100 21,00 - B 21.00 - 21.0
= 5 EILr FITEC FIENC) e

—TOTAL ) W ALESAT) T T8 5. T TR T
Guect Ak A Purcent of DRwct 5%

451 Rasaarch Training imante. Inc. @3/ Community Heath naitute
RFP-2018-DPHS-21-ORALH-AD2
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Exhibit B-20, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: J31 Ressarch & Training insutute, inc. &b/ Community Heakh nstitite
Budget Reguest for: COC Block Grant [100% fedwral)
Ot et Pl P
Budget Parlod: July 1, 2023 August 31, 124 .
Youl Progiam Comi Tontracior Ehare I Maich Funced by CHRS contract share
R ina Rern 1T ndirwet Direct et Gireet Toudl
. Totsd ﬁ!: . 3 53200 552,00
3 7 - 183.00 ¥ 7 18300 |
Ri e Maintonance - - - - <
oficn TV, B e ) - ]
[ = () 5% : 5300 |
.00 - X o0 - 5000
T 5 ) 75 s 7%
e : K TS z T
PRI - 37085 PRI :
=T - LX) X =
[ TOTAL T3ka 0 T80 T8 T3068 T
TAs A Prrcent of Desct [y

451 Resasrch Training instaute, Inc. Ad/a Communtty Hasth nsutute
RFP-2018-DPHS-21-ORALM-ADZ
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MAR03’20 P 3:55 DARS { ﬁvpv

_ STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Lori A, Shibinette 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner . 603-2714501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501
Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director

February 25, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
amend an existing agreement with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health
Institute (Vendor #161611-B001), 501 South Street, 2nd floor, Bow, NH 03304, to provide professional
support services to the Department'’s Oral Health Program in order to implement activities funded through
federal grants, including access to preventive and reparative dental treatment for individuals in the
statewide community-based and school-based oral health programs, by increasing the price limitation by
$37,700 from $2,605,345 to $2,643,045, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval with
no change to the contract completion date of August 31, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Councit on March 13,
2019 (ltem #12). .

Funds are available in the following accounts for Slate Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY
SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY
SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Please see attached fiscal details
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., to conduct evaluations
of the programs implemented in the original agreement to help inform future efforts and sustainability
planning. The programs implemented are school-based and community-based oral heaith programs for
children, teens, pregnant women, and adults with low-incomes as well as uninsured families. Oral health
programs include evidence-based clinical services for caries prevention,screenings, and referrals for
indivdiuals with substance use disorders.

The following populations will be impacted from the effective date of this agreement through
August 31, 2021: '

A
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll
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16,470 students in schools with forty percent (40%) or more Free and Reduced Lunch
Program;

91,440 people served by Federally Qualified Health Centers in NH annually;
9,500 people who use the emergency departmant for oral health care;
6,000 NH Medicaid Insured Adults that receive Substance Use Disorders treatment; and

1.3 million people will be impacted: by oral health surveillance and professional
development activities that are statewide and intended to change systems of care.

This amendment will benefit the Department by providing evaluation results for school-based oral
health programs enhancement demonstration projects. The Department will evaluate the pilot project for
provison of dental care coordination from Emergency Rooms to community-based dental clinics and
expansion of use of substance abuse screening tools into dental clinics. The evaluation results will be
reported to federal funders and will be utilized to inform how future federal fundmg will assist with
protecting the oral health of New Hampshire citizens.

JSI Research & Training Institue, Inc (JSI) effectiveness in delivering services continues to be
measured through monitoring of the following performance measures:

Specific measures that JSI will provide for the purpose of this amendment include:

Determine through evaluation whether school-based and community based dental
programs will be extended.

Evaluations to determine sub recipient progress towards deliverables

Conduct evaluation of programs to help inform future efforts and to help inform
sustainability planning.

An evaluation plan and written report for all required activities in the contract.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the current programs that
provide oral health services to children, teens, pregnant women, and adults with low-incomes as well as
uninsured families living in New Hampshire will not be evaluated and sustanailbilty planning will not occur.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds:

U.S. Department of Health and Humé,n Services, CDC, State Actions to Improve Oral
Health Outcomes , FAIN #NU5S8DP0068487, CFDA #93.366.

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services
Administration, Oral Health Workforce Activities, FAIN T12HP31859, CFDA #93.236.

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, COC, New Hampshire Breast & Cervical
Cancer, NH Comprehensive Cancer Control Program & Cancer Registry, FAIN-
NUS8DP006298, CFDA 93.898.
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Counci!
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is lo join communilics cmd/om ilies
in providing opportunities for cilizens lo achicve health and independence.
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Oral Health Statewide Promotion Partner Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH

AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Fiscal | Class/ Class Title Job Total Amount | Increased Revised
' Amount Budget
SFY 2019 | 102- Contracts for Program 90080502 $136,238 %0 $136,238
500731 Services
SFY 2020 | 102- Contracts for Program 90080502 $100,000 $4,800 $104,800
500731 Services
SFY 2021 | 102- Contracts for Program 90080502 $100,000 $4,800 $104,800
500731 | Services .
SFY 2022 | 102- Contracts for Program 90080502 $0 $800 $800
500731 Services
Sub-Total $336,238 $10,400 $346,638

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH

AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

.Class /

| Fiscal Year Class Title Job Number Current Increased Revised
Account Modified (Decreased) Modified
Budget Amount Budget
SFY 2019 | 102- Contracts for 90002215 $166,369 $0 $166,369
500731 | Program Services ‘
SFY 2020 | 102- Contracts for 90002215 $181,369 $3,600 $184,969
. 1 500731 | Program Services _ ,
SFY 2021 | 102- -Contracts for . 90002215 $181,369 $3,600 $184,969
500731 Program Services
SFY 2022 | 102- Contracts for 90002215 $15,000 $600 $15,600
500731 Program Services
Sub-Total | * $544,107 | $7,800 §551,907

Page 1 of 3
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Oral Health Statewide Promotion Partner Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Fiscal Class / Class Title Job Total Amount | Increased Revised
Year ACCOUN NumbEf (Decreased) Mod'ﬁed
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 | 102- Contracts for Program 90080083 $0 $0 $0
, 500731 Services
SFY 2020 | 102- Contracts for Program | 90080083 $0 $8,700 $8.700
500731 | Services ’
SFY 2021 | 102- Contracts for Program | 90080083 $0 $8,700 $8,700 |
500731 | Services
SFY 2022 | 102- Contracts for Program 90080083 $0 $1,450 $1,450
500731 | Services
Sub-Total 30 318,850 318,850

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL 'SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: iDIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year | C125S/ Class Title JobNumber |  Current Increased Revised
Account Modified (Decreased) Modified
Budget Amount Budget
SFY 2019 | 102- Contracts for 90080081 $0 $0 $0.
500731 Program Services
SFY 2020 | 102- Contracts for 90080081 $0 $300 $300
500731 Program Sérvices
SFY 2021 | 102- Contracts for 90080081 $0 $300 $300
500731 | Program Services
SFY 2022 | 102- Contracts for 90080081 $0 $50 $50
500731 [ Program Services
' Sub-Total 30 $650 8650

Page 2 of 3
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Oral Health Statewide Promotion Partner Fiscal Details

05-95-80-902010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
. AND COMMUITY SERVICES, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK GRANT - 100% FEDERAL

FUNDS
Fiscal Class / Class Title Job Total Amount { Increased Revised
Year Account Number (Decreased) Modified
Amount Budget
SFY 2019 | 102- Contracts for Program 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000
500731 | Services
SFY 2020 | 102- {1 Contracts for Program 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000
500731 | Services '
SFY 2021 | 102- Contracts for Program 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000
500731 | Services
SFY 2022 | 102- Contracts for Program | -90001030 $0 $0 $0
500731 | Services
Sub-Total $45,000 $0 $45,000

05-95-90-902010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH CAPACITY RURAL NH - 60.26% FEDERAL
FUNDS / 39.74% GENERAL FUNDS '

Fiscal Class / , Job Total Amount Increased Revised
Year Account Class Title Number (Decreased) Modified
_ Amount Budget
SFY 2019 | 102- Contracts for Program 90072003 $420,000 $0 $420,000
500731 | Services
SFY 2020 | 102- Contracts for Program 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
500731 | Services
SFY 2021 | 102- Contracts for Program 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000.
500731 | Services ‘
SFY 2022 | 102- Contracts for Program 90072003 $60,000 $0 $60,000
500731 | Services :
Sub-Total $1,680,000 %0 $1,680,000
Total $2,605,345 $37,700 $2,643,045

Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Oral Health Promotion Partner

This 1Y Amendment to the Oral Health Promectlion Partner contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #1%) is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and JSI Research & Training Instilute,
Inc. d/bla Community Health Inslitute, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor") a nonprofit with a
place of business at 501 South Street 2™ Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreament (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 13, 2019; (ltem # 12), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and condiltions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor-have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or.terms and conditions of the conlract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$2,643,045

2. Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2., Paragraph 2.26, to
read:

2.2.6 Consult with the Department in early 2020 to:

2.26.1 Determine through evaluation whether school-based dental program contracts
' will be extended.

2.26.2 Assist the Depariment with actions to preserve community-based services for
" NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-insured children and adolescents,
including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The Contractor shall

conduct evaluations that include, but are not limited to:

2.2.6.2.1 Reviewing sub recipient progress towards deliverables.
2.2.6.2.2 Determining whether to renew sub recipient contracts.
2.2.6.2.3 Renewing sub recipient contracts upon Department approval.

3. Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work Subsection 2.3, Paragraph 2.3.6, to
read

2,3.6 Consult with the Department in early 2021 to:

2.3.6.1 Determine through evaluation aciivities whether existing contracvagreements
for community-based dentai programs will be extended.

2.3.6.2 Assist the Department In actions to preserve community-based services for
NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-insured children, adolescents, and
adults including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The Con?raclor
JSI Research & Training Inslitute, Inc. Amendmenl #1 Contractor Inilials

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A01 Page 1014 Date 214720
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Oral Health Promotion Partner

© ©® N o

shall ensure evaluations are completed and include, but are not limited to::
2.36.21 Reviewing sub recipient progress towards deliverables.
2.3.6.2.2  Determining whether to renew sub recipient contracts.
2.3.6.2.3 Renewing sub recipient contracts upon Department approval.

Exhibit A Scope of Services, Secticn 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.5, to
read: .

2.8.5 Conducting evaluations of programs 10 assist with informing future effarts sustainability
planning.

Modify Exhibit B Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing Its entirety with-
Exhibit B, Amendment #1.

Moadify Exhibit B-2, Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 8-2, Amendment #1.
Modify Exhibit B-3, Budget by replacing itin its entirety with Exhibit B-3, Amendment #1.
Modify Exhibit 8-4, Budget by replacing itin its enti-rety with Exhibit B-4, Amendment #1.
Add Exhibit B-5, Match Requirement Form. ¢

JS) Research & Training Institute, Ine, Ameandment #1 Contraclor Initials l{ K
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A01 Page 2 of 4 - Date _2/14/20
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date writlen below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2(19/z0
. Date Name: Lisa Morris
: Title: Director

JS! Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community

Health Institute
February 14, 2020 . ' M\”

Date ) : Name: Katherine Robert
Title: Regional Director

Acknowledgement of Contraclor's signature:

State of New Hampshire  County of_Merrimack on _2/14/2020 . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified direclly above, or sahsfactonly proven to
be the person whose name is signed: above and acknowledged thal s/he executed thns document in the
capacny indicated above.

: otary Pubhc of Juslice of the Peace

‘Delo/a., Lme Notany Poblic.

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

°-gna'Jae j

DEBRA L. LOVE, Nolary Public

' 23
My Commission Expires: wcommmmwws 20

JSI Research & Training Institule, Inc. Amendment #1
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A01 Page3ol4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dat

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councll of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date . Name:
Title:

JSI Research & Training Instilute, Inc. Amendment #1

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A01 Page 4 0l 4

L IM20
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner
Exhibit B, Amendment # 1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment _

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount nol to exceed the Form P-37, Biock 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and federal funds as follows:

Source of Funds Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4
' (SFY19) | (SFY20) | (SFY21) | (SFY22)
2.1,/ 100% Federal Funds from| $15000{ $15000| $15.000 $0

Centers for Disease Control &
Prevention, Preventive Health &
Health Services Block Grant,
CFDA #93.991, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN),
NB0O10T009285.

2.2.139.74% Federal Funds from | $420,000 | $600,000 | $600,000 | $60,000
Centers for Disease Control &
Prevention, Preventive Heaith &
Health Services Block Grant
CFDA #93.991, FAIN
NBO10T009285 and 60.26%
General Funds

23| 100% Federal Funds from| $166,369 | $184,969 | $184,969 | $15,600
Centers for Disease Control &
Prevention, State Actions to
Improve Oral Health outcomes
CFDA #93.366, FAIN
NUS8DP006487

24.1100% Federal Funds from | $136,238 | $104,800 | $104,800 $800
Health Resources & Services :
Administcation Grants to States
to  Support Oral Health
Workforce  Aclivilies, CFDA
#93.236, FAIN T12HP31859

2.5 | 100% Federal Funds from NH $0| $9,000] $9.000| $1.500
Breast and Cervical Cancer,

JSI Research & Trainlng Instilute " Exhibli B, Amendment #1 Conlracior Initials Z ﬂ
RFP -2018-DPHS-21-ORALH-AD} Page 103 Date 2/14/20

Rev. 010819
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner
Exhibit B, Amendment # 1

Comprehensive Cancer and
Cancer Registry Program,
CFDA #383.898, FAIN
NU58DP006298

TOTALS $737,607 | $913,769 | $913,769 | $77,900

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements, which includes an in-kind match of an amount
equal to a minimum of;

3.1.$54,495 for State Fiscal Year 2019
3.2.$41,920 for State Fiscal Year 2020
3.3.$41,920 for State Fiscal Year 2021
3.4.$320 for State Fiscal Year 2022.

4. The Contractor shall ensure the yearly required match that is identified in Section 3, is
in non-federal contributions either in cash or in-kind related to directly carrying out HRSA
project aclivities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder (SUD) and be approved
by the Department. :

S. The Contractor shall provide bi-annual repors, Exhibit B-5 Match Report Form, of
itemized matching funds in accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, 45 CFR
Part 75.306 ne later than January 15th and June 15th.

B. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding. .

7. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

7.1.Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-4, Amendment #1
Budget.

7.2.The Conlractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory 1o the Stale by the
twentieth (20™) working day of each month, which idenlifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred during the priér month.

7.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned

to the:- Department in order to initiate payment.
JSI Research & Tralning Inslitute Exnibll 8, Amendment #1 Contraclor Inlats K/L_L-
RFP -2019-DPHS5-21-ORALH-AD1 Page 20f 3 Dato _2/14120

Rov. 01/08/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner
Exhibit B, Amendment # 1

7.4.The State shall make payment to {he Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitied invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

8. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as

requested.

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

10.In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signaturé and emailed
to DPHScontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov, or inveices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Depariment of Health and Human Services
Oivision of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NK 03301

11.Payments may be withheld pending receipl of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B, Amendment #1.

12.Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or requlation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

13.Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusling amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budgel exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JS! Research & Training Institute Exhibit B, Amgndment #1 Conlactor Inltiats us_/.
RFP -2019-OPHS-21-ORALH-AO1 Page 3ol 3 Date 2114720
Rev. 01/08/18
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Exhinn A3, Amendraeet 41

Budyrt Asquast for. Ora! Maafth Prometion Pirover
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Estumk B-3, Arsandnant 81

-

New Hampshire Depariment of Heaith and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

.
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Exhibit B-5

New Hampshire
Oral Health Program

Match Report Form
CARE COORDINATION SITE:
NAME: MATCH/YEAR:
Valunteer O Contractor O Provider O
CONTRACT IN-KIND MATCH:
ADDRESS: g *MATCH RATE PER HOUR: OVolunteer Ihour
CiTY, ZIP: ; OManager/Staff /hour
TELEPHONE: . OProvider fhour

MATCH DOCUMENTATION

DATE IN-KIND/CASH MATCH ACTIVITY # OF HOURS | MATCH RATE® Q_Q&R_A_QL TOTAL
: __MATCH
TOTAL:
Financial Manager/Official signature ‘ Date
$5-2020-DPHS-01-ORALH . Conlractor Initials iﬁJ‘ 1 }_
Exhibit B-5

Mascoma Community Heatth Date _32(142 0
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STATE OF NEW!HARPSHIREL :2]1 DAS
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

Jefrey A. Meyers 603-271-4501 1-B00-B52-3345 Ext. 4501
Commlssiener Fax: 603)-171-4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov
Lisa M. Morris
Director

February 5, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the. Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services to
enter into an agreement with JS| Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute,
Vendor #161611-8001, 501 South Street, 2™ floor, Bow, NH 03304, to provide professional support

_services to the Department's Oral Health Program in order to implement activities funded through federal
grants, including access to preventive and reparative dental treatment for individuals in the statewide
community-based' and school-based oral health programs; conducting "dental_screenings, fluoride
treatment and referrals for treatmenl in substance abuse treatment seftings; as .well as workforce
development activities, in an amount not to exceed $2,605, 345, to_be-effective upon date of Governor
and Executive Council approvan lhr0ugh August 31,2021.°74.37% Federal Funds, and 25.63% General
Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounl(s) for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019, and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020, SFY 2021, and.SFY 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operaling budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further °
approval from Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified. .

05-95-90-902010-45270000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY
ssnvuces ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

Class /" ) .

FISC8| Y-ear Account Class Title .Job Number Total Amount
SFY 2019 102-500731 ) Contracts for Program Services -90001030 $15,000
SFY 2020 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 90001030 , $15,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 90001030 $15,000

' Sub-Tolal * $45,000

=)
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His Exc;ellency. Governor Chrstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-80-902010-45270000-HEALTH AND SCCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY
SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

Fiscal Year | 1258/ Class Title Job Numiber | p
SFY 2019 102-500731 Con.!racts for Program Services 90072003 $420,000
SFY 2020 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 90072003 $600,000
SFY 2021 702-500731 | Contracts 1or Program Semvices | 90072003 "$600,000
SFY 2022 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 90072003 $60,000

' Sub-Total $1,680,000 |

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY
SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH WORKFORCE

Class / -

Fiscal Year Pttt Class Tm'e : Job quber Totil Arput
SFY-2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 90080502 - $136,238
SFY 2020 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 80080502 $100,000
SFY 2021 102-500731 { Contracts for Program Services 90080502 $100,000

Sub-Total $336,238

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND-HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY .
SERVICES ORAL HEALTH WORKFORCE

FisFal Year E /g:lca::zr:t Class Title Job Number © TOlELAIGURNE
SFY 2019 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Se'r"vices 80002215 $166,369
SFY 2020 102-500731 | Contracis for Program S_erviées 90002215 $181,369°
SFY 2021 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | 90002215 $181,369
SFY 2022 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Serviceé 90005.21 5 $15.000

' Sub-Total $544,107
Grand Total $2,605,345
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His Excenency. Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for Community Health Institule (CH!) to provide professional
support services to the Department of Health & Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, Oral
Health Program (OHP) in order to implement activilies funded through general funds and federal grants-
that include: school-based and communily-based oral health programs; dental hygienists screenings,
fluoride treatments and referrals to services for individuals in substance use disorder treatment programs,
assisling with project management for the Health Resources and Services Administration Oral Health
Workforce grant; assisting with activities that will increase the reach of school-based oral health programs

- serving schools with student participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch program,
- and assisting with the Third Grade Survey.

This contract will lead to gains in valye lor oral health services in New Hampshsre (NH) through
expanding the reach of programs to serve populations who eéxperience disparities in access to and
outcomes related lo oral health care (e.g., schoals with fifty percent (50%) or more ‘students receiving
Free and Reduced Lunch; adults in substance abuse treatment; adult Medicaid beneficiaries, etc.). The
contract funding may only be used to support the delivery of evidence- based and cost-effective oral
health services and may not be used for other low-value semces

Furthermore this contract will support the complehon of the NH Third ‘Grade Survey which will
provide surveillance data to evaluate the impact of services and to help inform program planning. The
following health culcomes will be achieved through this contract:

1) reduce the proportion of children who have dental caries in their primary or permanent teeth:
2) reduce the proportion of children who have untreated dental decay,
3) reduce the proportion of adults with untrealed dental decay,

4) increase the proportion of children and adults who have used the oral health care system in
the past year, and

5) increase the number of children who have received dental sealants on their molar teeth. This
contract will benefit the children and adults of New Hampshire through increasing access 1o
the highest value oral health services in their local communmes

In NH, thirty-five percent (35%) of third grade sludents have dental caries with higher cates of
decay among children who are lower income and in areas of the state with less access to oral health
professionals. While untreated decay has decreased overtime, from twenty-two percent (22%) in 2001 to
eight percent (8%) in 2014, disparities persist among those children who lack access to treatment, with
similar higher rates among those children who are lower mcome and in counties wilh a shortage of dental
professionals.’ :

In Strafford County and Coos County, fourieen percent (14%) of children have unlreated decay
compared with just four percent (4%) of childien in Rockingham County. Among adulls in NH, there has
been a steady increase in the rates of emergency department visits for non-traumatic denial conditions
from 9,000 visits in 2000 to 16,000 visits in 2009.
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His Excallency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabdle Counci”
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The followin§ performance standards will be used to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

« Develop and maintain a system for establishing and monitoring agreements for the delivery
of school oral health programs and community based oral health program;

» Develop and implement a training plan and curnculum for oral health and other health
professionals which shall include:
a. Implementation of Screening, Referral, and Brief Interventions related to substance-

abuse disorders;
b. Use of the Prescrption Drug Momlormg Program for practice. improvement; and
¢. Pain management and dental care coordination for those presenting at the Emergency
" Department for non-traumatic dental conditions.

» Develop and implement a communications plan and related materials to increase awareness

about the value and impact of school oral health services and community water fluoridation.

The following populations will be reached from the effechve date of this agreement through
August 31, 2021: :

* 16,470 students in schools with forly percent (40%) or more Free and Reduced Lunch
Program;

» 91,440 people served by Federally Qualified Health Centers in NH annually;-

o 9 500 people who use the emergency depariment for oral health care;

» 6,000 NH Medicaid Insured Adults that receive Substance Use Disorders treatment; and

+ 1.3 million people will be impacted by oral health surveillance and professional development
aclivities that are statewide and intended to change systems of care.

CHI was selected for this project through a compeltitive bid process. A Request for Proposals
was posted on the Depaniment of Health and Human Sérvices’ web site from October 9, 2018 through
November 6, 2018: The Department received one (1) proposal. The proposal was reviewed and

" scored by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposal. The Score Sheet is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreerﬁe‘nl
has the option 1o extend for up 1o two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue,
. -after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall'not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legistature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 and SFY 2022-2023 biennia:

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize lhus request, chnldren teens, pregnant
women, and adults from low-income, uninsured families living in New Hampshire may not receive oral
health care services. NH residenls may seek relief of infection and denta!l pain in hospital emergency
departments where treatment is costly, does nol resolve the dental problem, and exposes them to pain
medications that could have been avoided with appropriate and timely dental treatment.
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
ond the Honorable Councl
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds:

e US. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for -Disease Contro! and
Prevention (COC), Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant, Oral Health
Program, Federa! Award Identification Number (FAIN) NBO10T009205, Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93 8991, 60.26% Federal Funds and 39.74%
General Funds,

« U.S: Depantment of Heallh and Human Services. COC, Oral Health Woarkforce, FAIN
#NUSBDP006487, CFDA #93.366. 100% Federal Funds.

e U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources énd Services
Administration, Oral Health Workforce Activities, FAIN T12HP31859, CFDA #93.236.
100% Federal Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no Ionger avallable additional General Funds will
not be requested to suppart this. program.

ctfully submitted,

U,

rey A. Meyers
Commrsswner

The Department of Health and Humon Services’ Mission is to join communities and familics
in providing opporlunitics for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
' Office of Business Operations '
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring Sheet

Oral Health Promotion Partnar . RFP-2013-DPHS-2i-ORALH .
RFP Name g e ) . " RFP{Number ' -Reviewer Names

Sarsh Finne, Epidemic & Admin
* Hhh Data, DPHS

Bidder N - : ‘ . Maximum | Actual | - s Eflen Chase-Lucard, Financial
idder Name . : Pags/Fail| Points Points | * Admin, DPHS

1 Monica DeRico, Chronic Disease

* JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. _ 430 422 3 Prog Specialist 1 OPHS .
2. - é ' Tt G . . T s Hope Salimarsh, Oral Health

" Program Director. DPHS
3, -




DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

: . FORM NUMBER P-37 (versioa S/8/15)
Sudjéct: QOral Health Promotion Partner (RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH) '
-Notice: This agreement and all of its anachments shall become public upon submission 10 Governor and
Executive Council for opproval. Any information that is private, confidentiel or propriciary must
_ beclearly identificd to the agency and egreed toin. writing prior 1o signing the conlrect.

AGREEMENT
The Siale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as foliows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
). IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Suv:ccs 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contraclor Name 1.4 Contracior Address
| 781 Research & Training Iastinae, Inc. /e 501 South Street, 2™ Floor

Community Health [nstitute , ) Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phonc 1.6 Account Number | 1.7 Completion Date . 1.8 Price Limitation

Number
(603) 523-3300 05-95-90-9020!0-45270000 August 31, 202t $2,605,345
] 05-95-90-902010-22150000 |
1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Nathan D. White, Director ’ 603-271-963)
A
1.11 Contracior Sj 3 I’ d . 1.12 Name and Title of Contracior Signatory

Jonathan Stewart, Regional Director

L3 AckJ\OWch#kuiof New HampshiceCounty of  Merrimack

On Februanid.2009  before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identifed in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
prov{si'to be the pason whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that she executed this document in the capacity
indicated in. Uock .12, = )

(NBA ...ygnntuvc_ol Nq.a.rg uiliggr Justice of the Puoc

; ] 2 d '!*im“‘lﬁl%ﬁ"t A Buplihe Peace
' Soptamber 5, 2023 . _ |
114 Sm\ ngmcySsnnlurc ' TS Tame ad Tle ometc P
QJAQLQ/@ o..c;l/.7 /;q LISA RS DIRELTOR OPHS

.16 Approval by the N.H. Depanment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if opplicable)

By: i . Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the-Antorney Genernl (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

Dy: /"’V} 5;4 } T~ o | 2—/{ 7’/)—9/6

1.18 Approvaldly the Goyernor And Executive Council (if applicable)

‘By: ’ On:.

Page | of 4
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1. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Staie of New Hampshire, acting
through the ogency identificd in block 1.) (“Stete™), engages
coatractor identified in block 1.3.("Contractor™) to perfoem,
and the Contracior shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identificd and more particularly described in the attached
EXRIBIT A which is incorporaied herein by reference
("Services”).

). EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 10 the
contrary, and subject 10 the approval of the Governor and

. Exccutive Council of the Siate of New Hampshire, if
* applicoble, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become cffective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such epproval is required, in which casc
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Siate Agency as shown in block

). 14 ("EfAective Date™).

3.2 (f the Contracior commences the Services prior to the

E Mective Dale, nll Services performed by the Contractor prior
"10 the Effective Date shall be performed ot the sok risk of the
Contractor, and in the event thot this Agreement does nol
become effective, the State shall have no liabiliry 1o the
Contractor, including withoul limitalion, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred ot Services performed.
Contractor must completc all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMENT.
Notwithsianding any provision of this Agseement to the
contrary, oll obligations of the Siate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of poyments hereunder, are
conlingent upon the availability and continued appropristion
of funds, and in no eveni shall the State be liable for any
paymenis hereunder in excess of such available approprinied
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stete shell have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become ovailable, il ever, ‘and shall
have the rlBhl 1o terminate this Agr::rncnt immediately upon
giving the Conteactor notice of such termination. The Siate
shall nol be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unsvpiloble.

S. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
paymen) are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporaied herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract ptice shall be the
only and the complcte reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whaicver nature incurred by the Conlteoctor in the
petformance hereof, and shalt be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Sute
shall have no liability 10 the Contractor other thon the contracl
price. :

Page 2 of 4

5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidared amounts required or permiticd by N.H. RSA
B0:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of faw.

5.4 Noiwithstanding any provision in this Agreement 10 the
contrary, and notwithsianding unexpected circumstances, in
no cvent shall the totat of all payments authorized, or aclually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set1 forth in block
1.8. ,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND'REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

"OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Conrtractor shall comply with sll statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, stote, county or municipel suthorilies
which imposc any ob!lgnnon or duty upon the Conlrector,
inciuding, but not limited (o, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliory

. oids and services to ensure thal persoas with communication

dissbilitics, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicale with, receive information from, and convey
information 1o the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all epplicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contrecior shall
not discriminate ogainst employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, areed, age, scx,
handicap, sexual orientalion, or nationo) origin and will toke
affirmative action 10 prevent such discrimination.

6.3 1( this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Conwactor shall comply with ol the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opporiunity™), &5 supplemented by the
regulstions of the Uniled Stntes Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rulcs, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the Uniled States issuc lo
implement these regulotions. The Contrector further agrees to

" permll the Siete or United States access 1o any of the

Controctor's books, records and occaunts for the purposc of

- ascentsining compliance with-all rules,-regulations and orders,

and the covenanls, terms and conditions of this' Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense plo\udc all
personnel necessary 1o perform the Services, The Contracior
warranis that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
quelified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise suthorized to do so undcr all opplicable
tws.

7.2 Unless otherwise nu(honz,cd in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for o period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not peemil any subcontracior oc other person, firm or
corporation wilth whom it is engaged in 8 combined ¢fTort 10
perform the Services to hire, any person who is o Swute
employee o official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administeation or performance of this

Contractor Initials S E

Date 21419
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

1.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. I the event
of eny dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decisian shall be fina) (or the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constilute an event ol‘del‘auh heveunder
(“Event of Defouli™):
8.1.1 failure to perform lhe Services satisfoctorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure 10 submit any report required hereunder; and/or
-8.1.1 failure 10 perform any other covenani, term or candition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event-of Default, the State
may lake any one, or more, or.a!l, of the-following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractos a wrillen notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
abseace of o greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Defauli is
not limely remedicd, terminale this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contrector nolice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor A written notice specifying the Event
* of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the daic of such notice until such time os the State
determines that the Conlractor has cured the Event of Default
sholl never be paid to the Contracior;
8.2.1 sct off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State sufiers by reason of any
Event of Delouly; end/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement s breached and pursue any of its
remedies &t taw or in equiry, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean ofl
information and things developed or obisined during the
performuncc of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, el studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drowings, enalyses,
graphic representations, compuler programs, computer
printouts, notes, letiers, memoranda, papers, n.nd documcms
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2.All daia and any propcny which has been received frorn
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wrilten opproval of the Siate.

Page Jof 4

10. TERMINATION. In the ¢vent of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fificen (15).days afier the date of
termination, o repart (*Termination Repon™) describing in
detail afl Services performed, and the contract price eamned, to
and inctuding the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, contenl, end number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the entached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreemeni the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contrector, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contracior nor any of its
officers, employees, ogents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS:
The Contracior shall'not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior writien natice and
consent of the State, None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and conseni of the State. :

13 INDEMNIFICATION. The Contracior shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and againsi any and all Josses suffered by the
State, its officers mnd employees, and any-and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted ogainst the State, its officers
and employces, by or on beha!f of any person, on sccount of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
clnimed to arise oul of) the acts o omissions of the
Contractor. Norwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contnined shall be deemed (o constitute o waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved 10 the State. This covenant in paragroph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement,

" 14, INSURANCE.

.

14.1 The Contractor shall, ot its sole expense, obtain and
mainwin in force, and shall requirc any subcontractor o
nssngncc 10 obloin and mainioin in force, U’II: following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive gencral Imb:lny insurance against ail
claims of bedily injury, death or property domage, in amounts
of not less than §1,000,000per occurrence end 52 000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covcnng all
property subject (o subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagroph 4.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hompshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and nssucd by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.
Contractor initialsg

Date_374/19
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14.3 The Contracior shall furnish to the Contracting O fficer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, & certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer ..
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior 1o the expirglion
date of each of the insurance policics. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be snached and are
incorporaied herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall conain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer idemified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancelletion or modification of thé policy.

I15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contracior agrees,
certifics and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Workers” Compensation™).
5.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject 1o the

* requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintoin, and require any subconiractor or assignee to sccure
end maintain, ppyment of Workers. Compensalion in
connection with activilics which the person proposes to
undenake pursuant 10 this Agreement. Contracior shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 28)-A and any

epplicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be entached and arc -

incorporated herein by refereace. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of eny Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Conmracior, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the pal'ofmancc of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No foilure by the State 10
enforce eny provisions hereof ofler any Event of Default shall
bc.dcéned o waiver of its rights with regasd to that Evenl of

" Default, or any subsequens Event of Default. No express
faiture to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Stale to enforee cach and all of the
provisions heredf upon any (unher or other Event of Defnuh
on (he pant of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by » party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given a1 the
time of mailing by certificd mail, posizge prepaid, in 8 United
States Post Office eddressed to the parties st the o,ddrcssu
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
woived or discharged only by on instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only efier spproval ol such |
smendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and

_ Exccutive Council of the'State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required undes the circumstances pursuani 10

"State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF ACREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shell be 'consirued in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures 1o the denefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wosding used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panies 10 express their mutual
intent, and no rule of consrruction shall be applied ageinst or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hc.rclo do not intend 1o
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed o confer any such benefit,

. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
we f'or teference purposes oaly, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held 10 explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inlerpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

12. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the anached EXHIBIT C are incorporeted hcrcm by
reference.

2}, SEVERABILITY. Inthe eveni any of the provisions of
this Agreement ere held by a court of competent jurisdiclion 10
be conrary (0 any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full fotce and
effect. }

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterpany, each ofwhnch shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreemmi end
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

- Contractor Initials 512
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1,

1.2.

1.3.

The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or serwces within ten (10) days of the
contract eHective date.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for
any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state leg|slature
and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

2. Scope of Work

211,

The Contractor shall provide Oral Health Promotion Partner (OHPP) services
for the Department in order to implement activities for NH residents, including
individuals in Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment and/or recovery centers.
The Contractor shall ensure activities include, bul are not limited to:

2.11. Developmg sub recipient contractslagreemenls with school-based
’ and community-based dental programs..

2.1.2.  Developing sub recipient contracts/agreements with dental centers
lo provide dental screenings, fluoride treatments and referrals to
services for nndwuduals in substance use disorder (SUD) treatmenl
programs.

.21.3.  Assisting the Department with project management for Health

K Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) Oral Health
Workforce grant. Including activities related to development and
delivery of education in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas
(OHPSAs) for dentists on the.use of the Prescription Drug
Monitoring Program (PDMP), integration of Screening, Bref
Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT), and for dentists and
emergency departmenl physmlans prescribing for denlal pain
management.

JS! Research & Training Institute, Inc. :
d/o/o Community Heallh Institute Exhibit A Contractor Inilials
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2.1.4,

2.1.5.

Assisting the Department with activities that will increase the reach
of school-based oral health programs serving schools with student
participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch
(FRL) program.

Assisting the Depariment with the Third Grade Survey.

2.2, The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and solicit
applications from sub recipients to provide school-based oral health services
in order to increase access to statewide preventative services ‘to low-income,
uninsured and under-insured children and ‘adolescents, including those
enrolled in NH Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.2.1.

e 8 R
2.2.3.
224
2.2.5.

226.

Assist the Department with developing and' implementing an

“unbiased process tool for selecling sub recipients to enter into
‘contracts/agreements with the Contractor to deliver school- based

oral heaith services.

Provide the draft process for selecling sub recipients to the
Department for final approval prior to publication.

EnSure the Department is included in the selection of sub recipients.

Create contracts/fagreements with selected sub reczprents for
Department approval to provide services through August 31, 2020 .
with options to renew services for up to three (3) additional years.

Execute Department-approved conltracts/agreements with selected

sub re.cipients:
Consuit with the Department in early 2020 to:

2.2.6.1. Determine whether school-based dental progj‘ram contracts
will be extended. :

2.2.6.2. Assist the Departmient with actions to preserve communlty
based services for NM's low-income, uninsured, and under-
insured children and adolescents, including those énrolled
in New Hampshire Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.26.2.1. Review sub recipient progress towards
deliverables.

2.2622 Determine whether to renew sub
recipient contracts. ’

2.26.2.3. Renew sub recipient contracts upon -

Department approval.

2.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop-and solicit:

JS) Ressearch & Training Instilute, Inc. :
d/v/a Community Heallh tnstitute Exhibit A Contractor Initia!s
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applications from sub recipients to provide community-based oral health
services in order lo increase access to statewide preventative services to low-
income, uninsured and under-insured children, adolescents, and adulls
including those enrolled in NH Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1.

23.2.

'2.3.3.
234

2.3.5.

2.3.6.

Assist the Oepartment with developing and implementing an
unbiased process for selecling sub recipients to enter into
contracis/agreements with the Contractor {0 daliver community-
based oral health services.

Provide the draft process for selecting sub reciéien'ts to the
Department for final approval prior to publication. .

Ensure the Deparimentis included in the selection of sub recipients.

Create contracts/agreements with selected sub recipients for
Department approval to provide services through August 31, 2021
with options to renew services for up to two (2) additional years.

Execute Department-approved contracts/agreements with selected
sub recipients. ‘

Consult with the Department in early 2021 to:

2.36.1. Determine  whether existing contract/agreements for
community-based dental programs will be extended.

2.3.6.2. Assist the Department in actions to preserve community-
based services for NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-
insured children; adolescents, and adults including those
enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

23621 Review sub recipient progress towards
_ . deliverables.
.2368.2.2 Determine whether to renew sub

recipient contracts .

23823 Renew sub .recipienl conlracts upon
Department approval.

24. The Contractor shall ensure applicanls complete an organizational
performance self-assessment, thatinciudes but is not limited to the following

JSI Research & Treining Institite, Inc. .
d/o/p Community Health Instituto Exhibit A : Controctor initlals )
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25.

2.6.

elements: .

2.4.9. Organization Maturity.

2.4.2.  Current plans for expansion or contracting .
2.43. Staff levels.

2.4.4.  Staff training experience.

-2.4.5.' ‘Vision/Mission.

246. Recover Supbort Services.
2.4.7. Populations Served.

2.4.8. Governance and Administration.
24.9. Human Resources. '
2.4.10. Volunteers/interns.

2.4.1%1. Financial Management.

2.4.12. Organizational Management.
2413, Rlsk Assessment.

2414, ProcmemenUMon:tonng

2,415, Performance/Evaluation.

The Conltractor shall implement and administer conltracts/agreements with
dental centers to perform screening-fluoride treatment-referral visits at

‘Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment centers that includes the utilization

of Certified Public Health Oental Hygienists in recovery centers who provide:
2.5.1. _Screenings. ' '

2.5.2.- Decay management and desensitizaliph Services.

2.5.3. Patient education.

2.54. Referrals for treatment in dental clinics and offices.

- The Contractor shall ‘assist the Department with project management for

HRSA Oral Health: Workforce grant, including -activities related to
development and delivery of education in Dental Health Professional
Shortage Areas (DHPSAs) for dentists on the use of the Prescription Drug
Monitoring Program (PDMP), integration of Screening, Brief Intervention and.
Referral to Treatment (SBIRT), and for denlists and emergency department
physicians, prescribing for dental pain managemem which includes, but is
not limited to:

2.6.1. Ensuring an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT- trauned dental

JSI Research & Teaining inslilute, Inc. )
d/ole Commumty Heahh Instituio Exhibil A Contracior (nitia
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2.6.2

2.6.3.

professional to develop and implement academic detailing sessions
for dentists in DHPSAs, three (3) times per year.

Providing logistical support for three (3) POMP trainings per year for

- dentlsts in DHPSAs.

Prowdmg logistical support for up to six (6) dental pain management
trainings between 6/30/2020 and 8/31/2021, for dentists and
emergency department physicians in DHPSAs. :

2.7. The Contractor shall work with dental providers to establlsh workflows for
screening, which includes but is not limited to:

2.7.1.
272
273,
2.7.4.
215,

2.7.6.

2.1.7.
2.17.8.

Identifying who will be screened. _
Identifying screening tools to be utilized,
Method of screening.

" Identifying who will be responsible for managing the screening.

(dentifying the mdmdual respon5|ble for conductmg the brief
intervention.

Determining referral networks in place and if it includes a range of
providers and modalities.

Ensuring confidentially for referrals.
Determining follow-up processes for positive screens.

2.8. The Contractor shall assist the Department-with actlivities to increase the
~ reach of school-based oral health programs serving schools with student
participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch. (FRL)
program through 8/31/2021. The Contractor shall ensure activilies include,

but are not limited to:

2.8.1.

Supporting bi- annual and quartery convenings of Work Group -
partners, which shall be named no later than thirty (30) days from
the cpntract effective date. The Conlractor shall:’

2.8.1.1. Enswe invitations are senl to each member at least 30
days prior to each convening.

2.8.1.2. Ensure adequate meeting space is reserved for each

convening.

2.8.1.3. Host a WebEx meeting for each convemng ensuring work
group members with barriers lo attending can attend.

2.8.1.4. Scribe meeling minutes and-ensure minutes are provided

JSI Resoarch & Training Institule, Inc

d/ola Community Health tnstivte . Exhibit A ContrxlwINUa‘4_
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to the Department for approval.
2.8.1.5. Provide other meeting logistics as needed.

2.82. Developing a sustainability plan for school based oral health
services during PY 1that outlines strategies for leveraging other.
resource opportunities in order to reduce reliance on federal funds.

2.83. Developing and implementing Communications Plans thal include
_but are not limited to:

2.8.3.1. A plan that supports -school-based' program activities
developed by the Work Group during PY 2 and PY 3. .

.. 2.8.3.2. Aplan for target audiences, inciuding but not limited to:
‘ : ’ 28321 Legislators. I
' 2.8.3.2.2. Decision makers.
2.8.3.2.3. Medicaid officials.
2.8.3.2.4. . Government officials.
2.8.3.3. A plan to guide efforts for promoting:

2.8.3.3.1. The benefits and effectiveness of school-
based oral heallh activities.

-

2.8.3.3.2. Increased participation by school and children
in these services including a minimum of three
(3) communications materials. -

2.8.3.4. Identification of:

2.8.3.4.1. Target audiences, including but not hmuted lo

= . : parents, caregivers, medical and dental
providers, schooi personnel and decision-

makers., '

28342 Key messages for each targel auchence
o 2.8.34.3. Proposed commumcahon channels;
' 28.344. Adissemination timeline;
2.8.34.5. Partner roles in plan implen\éntation

2.8.4. Including CDC funds for an Enhancement Program developed by
the Work Group in sub-recipient contracts for eligible school-based
_dental programs.

2.9. The Contractor shall work with the Department during PY 2 to prepare 1or the
Basic Screening Survey (BSS) for New Hampshire Third Graders in order to

JSI Research 8 Training Instilute, Inc. )
d/v/a Community Health Institute Exhibit A Contractor Iniligls
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH Page 6ol 13 : ’ Dato  2/411



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

New Hampshire Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhiblt A

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

update The New Hampshire 2013-14 Healthy Smiles - Healthy Growth Third
Grade Survey to be conducted during PY 3. The Contractor shall:

2.91. Work with the Department to develop a Memorandum of
Understanding/Agreement  with dental hygienists (preferably
CPHDHSs) to conduct the screenings of third grade students in
accordance with BSS requirements and in coordination with a
survey expert from the Association of State and Temitorial Dental
Directors {(ASTDD) and the OPHS Chronic Disease Section
Epidemiologist.

2.9.2. Work_ with the Depariment to convene the h"aining session for the’
dental hygienists, prior to the 2019-2020 school year.

293 Collect surveillance dala during PY 3 from the BSS hygienists and
sharing the collected screening data with the Department. The
Contractor shall ensure:

2.9.3.1. Screening data does not include personally identifiable
information (PIl).

2.9.3.2. Once parental consent forms are completed, children are
screened and evaluated for deéntal needs and either
referred for services or provided services onsite, if the
school has an onsite option available.

2.9.3.3. Children and their parents are made aware of dental
sealants, their value and availability of sealants through the
school program and as well as the BSS and the importance
of oral health to overall health.

The Contractor shall conducl a kick-off meeting with the departmenl to
discuss the work plan specified, performance measures and report formats,
all of which are specified in Exhibit A-1 Work Plan, within thirty (30) business -
days of the contract effeclive date.

The. Contractor shall meet with the Department on a bi-weekly basis to

discuss meeling and call schedu!es activities, budgels and/or performance
measures.

.The Contractor shall conaborate with the Department to assess joint progress

toward objeclives and aclivilies on @ semi-annual basis in order to assist the
Oepartment with sharing products related to grant activities, which may

JS! Research & Training Inslitute, Inc.

" dM/s Community Health Instilute’ Exhibit A Contrecior mm(QL_
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include but are not limited to:
2421, Meeling agendas and minutes.
2.12.2. Written reports.

3. Project Management

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure project management bes! practices are
documented and performed throughout the term of the contract to stan,
organize and prepare_ for the project, carry out project work and formally .

close out the project.

3.2, The Contractor shalt ensure Project Management activities include, but are

not limited to: ‘
3.2.1.  Project Iniliation and Planning

~ 3.2.1.1. The Contraclor shall conduct a project Kick Off Meeting,
within five (5) business days of the contract effective date
which addresses topics and activities that include but are

not limited to:

3.2.1.1.1.  Aceview of the project scope as defined in the

C0n"301

3.21.1.2. A review of the Initial Project Schedule and
; Work Plan as identified in Exhibit A-1 Work

Plan.

3.2.1.1.3. A presentation on, and discussion of, project
. management best practices to be utilized.

3.21.1.4. A review of the templates that will be utilized
- for each aspect of the project management .
cycle, including but not limited to:

32.1.1.41.
321142
3.2.1.1.43
321144
321145,
321146

Monthly Project Reports
Issues Log. |

Decision Log.

Risk Register.

Change Request Log.
Deliverable Acceptance Log.

3.2.1.2. The Contractor shall submit an updated Project Schedule
that will be the basis for the final approved Baseline Project
Schedule within five (5) business days of the Project Kickoff

JSI Roaearch & Trolning Insthuto, Inc,
d/a Community Healih Institute Exhibit A )
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3.2.1.3

Meeting, which consists of:
3.2.1.2.1.  Project milestones.
3.2.1.2.2.  ‘Activities.

3.2.1.2.3.  Deliverables.
3.2.1.2.4. Task dependencies.
3.2.1.25. Due Dates.

The Contractor shall establish the Project Repository that
is comprised of all project related documentation and
ensure access is provided to appropriate Department
users.

3.2.2.  Project Execution, Monitoring and Coﬁtrolling

32129,

3.2.22,

3223,

3.224.

3.2.2.5.

JS) Research & Training Institute, (nc.

d/ule Community Health Institute

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH

The Contractor shall schedule weekly, unless an alternative
frequency is approved by the Department, Project Status
Meetings following the Project Kickoff Meeling. :

The Contractor shall brovide notes from the Project Status
Meetings to the Department within three (3) business days
from the date of each Project Status Meeting.

The Contractor shalt schedule a Daily Huddle, ‘lasting less"
than thirty (30) minutes in duration, dunng the most
complex or challenging stages of the 'project upon
Department request.

The Contractor shall maintain the baseline and current
Project Schedules using a project management software
solution that:

3.22.4.1. Enables schedule of analysis.

3.2.2.4.2. Recalculates -dates based upon appmved
changes.

3.2..2.4'3. _ Tracks, variances to the approved baseline.

The Contractor shall provide a written Monthly Progress
Report that conltains a summary of the sub recipient's

activities, which include but are not limited to

32251, Work accomplished durmg the reporting
period.

32252 Updated Project Schedulg identjfying

Exhibit A ' Controctor |ri:iau4_{g_
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varlances to baseline.

32253, S!alus of pnontazed open issues, highlighting
those issues that require immediate
escalation to ensure timely resolution.

32254 A list of the highest prionty risks, risk
- ownership and status of the mitigation plan for
each.

-3.2.2.55.  Planned work for the next reporting period.

3.2256. Requests for Department assistance
necessary to ensure successful project
delivery. E

323, Project Closing

3.2.3.1. The Contractor shall schedule and conduct a Final Project
Meeting during which the Acceptance Log will be presented
for Department approval and sign-off..

3.2.3.2. The Conlraclor shall - transfer the project repository,
including all documentation falling within slate ownership,
to the Department. :

3.2.3.3. The Contractor shall be available for a Lessons Learned _
session facilitaled by the Department. *

4, Reportmg

4.1.

4.2.

By August 31st each year, the Contractor shall provide the number of sub-
recipient contractslagreements in place for:

- 4.1, School-based dental programs.

4.1.2. Community-based dental programs.

By August 31st each year, the Contractor shall provide reports that include
only aggregated data that pertains to how many individuals were screened
and/or trealed along with other data that does not include any personally
identifiable information (Pll). The Contractor shall provide reports thatinclude,
but are not limited to: ;

4.21.  Annual School-Based Program Report Form.
422. Annual Community-Based Report Form.

4.2.3. An annual narrative report that includes performancé measures for
oral heath visits by dental hygienists from sub-recipient dental centers

JSI Reseacch 8 Training tnstitule, inc. '
aols Comrnun:ry Health msmute . Exhibil A Contractor Initials -
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to adults at SUD treatment centers.

4.24. An annual performance report for all continuing education sessions
delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs.

4.2.5. An annual narrative report describing meetings of the Work Groups
for School-Based Oral Health Services Enhancement, that inciudes
a sustainability plan.

4.2.6. - An annual narrative report describing the Communications Plan and
products created and aclivites implemented from the
Communications Plans for the school-based oral health programs
and community water fluoridation activities. .

427  For School-Based Oral Health Services agreements;

4.27.1. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services
agreements established.

427.2. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services site
visits conducted.

42.7.3. The number of students screened or treated through
School-Based Oral Health Services.

428, For Commumty-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

4281, The number of Community-Based Oral Health Services
: agreements established.

4.28.2.  The number of Community-Based Oral Health Servaces
site visits conducted

4283  The number of mdwuduals screened or treated through
Community-Based Oral Health Secrvices.

4284 The number of individuals in SUD settings screened,
treated and referred.

429. For SUD-related training:
1 4.29.1. Report on match.
4292 Number and type of CEUs provided.,
4.2.9.3.  Number of lraining sessions conducted.

4294 Number of attendees who participated in training
sessions.

4.295. Report on 'RQI cycles findings and related

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. . ' -
d/a Community Health tnstitule Exhibit A Controctor Initials
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4.3,

improvements.

4.296. Evaluation results for knowledge increase among
training attendees. :

4.2.10. For BSS:
4.2.10.1. Number of hygienists recruited,
4.2.10.2. Number of hygienists trained;

The Contractor shall provide aggregate screening data collected from the
Third Grade Survey during the 2019-2020 school year to the Depariment
upon completion of the third grade screenmgs in a format approved by the
Department. .

5. Deliverables

51.

5.2.
8.3.

5.4.
5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

The Contractor shall provide a process for accepting applicatons for oral
health funding from vendors to the Department for approval no later than 2
weeks from the contract effeclive date.

The Contractor shall create contractslagfeements with "school based
programs no later than 6 months from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall create conlractsfagreemenis with community based
programs ‘no later than 8 months from the contract efféctive date.

The Contractor shall provide training curriculum identifiedin Subsection 2.6
to-the. Department for approval no later than three (3) weeks prior 10
scheduling the first-training. '

The Contractor shall ensure: an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT-

trained dental professional to deliver academic sessions for dentists at least

three (3) times per year.
The Contractor shall provide logistical support for:
5.6.1. . Three (3) PDMP trainings per year for dentists.i in DHPSAs.

56.2. Up o six (6) dental pain management trainings between 6/30/‘2020
and 8/31/2021 for dentisls and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs..

The Contractor shall submit the finalized communications plan and materials
in to the Department for approval no later than 10 business days prior to

. releasing the plan and materials to the Advisory Group partners.

The Contractor shall ensure any changes to the Work Plan in Exhibit A-1 are
provided 1o the Department in writing within five (5) business days of the

JSI Research & Training tnstilute, Inc. e % )
d/fofe Community Health Institute Exhibit A Contractor Initipls
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changes being accepled.

5.9. The Contractor shall meet all performance measures and deliverables
identified in Exhibit A-1, Work Plan. >

JSI Research & Training Iastitute, Inc.
d/la Community Hestth Institwte ' Exhibit A Controctor Initiat
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EXHIBIT A -1 WORKPLAN

Pro;ect AIM Support thé NH' Qral Health Program s dehvary ‘of federally funded 'ecls to. conduct oral
héalth surveullance in schools; suppo V__:tha NH orai health workforce specrf cally n,DentaI HPSAswnh

j targeted trammgs and contract with- treatment-based oral heaith programs (school-baj eds and=- <. °
'commumty-based). in order to reduce untreated dental decay m chlldren adoleséents and=’adu!ts m NH

Organizations Involved: (1) The Commumty Health Institute - CHI (2) NH Oral Health ngram OHP (3) ASTDD, (4) NH DPHS Chromc
Disease Section (DPHS) (5) Sub- Recnplents SRs

YEAR 1 (PY1). JANUARY 2019 AUGUST 31, 2019
Year 1 Project Goals:
. 1. Develop/solicit applicalions to pro\nde school-based preventative oral health serwces to low- mcome un-lunder-insured children and
adolescents.
2. Develop/solicit applications to provide commumry-basad prevenlahve oral health services to low-income, un-funder-insured children,
adolescents, and adults.
3. Implemenlladrmmsler contracts/agreements with dental oemers to perform screening- fluoride 1reatmen1-relenal visits at SUD treatment
centers.
4, Convene an Advisory Group.
5. Convene a Work Group. .
6. Support Work Group in planning efforts to increase the reach of FRL schoals for PY2.
7. Prepare for a Basic Screening Survey (BSS) of NH Third Graders.

-"dbj_?.:T;“ti Ve 1

.'S'vci:e’s‘éfullmana.é'é-éhiy.l!i-'iéa'r"ér'_qiéc_‘t ]

151 Research & Training lngtiute, Inc. Exnibit A-) Work Plan 7 Comrador mmé_
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

1.1. Conduct a Project Kick-off Meeting to review the project scope, Initial | Within five business days of | Project Meeting
Project Schedule, a presentation on, and discussion of the project the contract effective date (or | Presentation
management bes! practices to be ulilized, and a review of the other agreed upon date)
templates. . *

1.1.1. | Submit an updated Project Schedule, which will be the basis for the Wihin five business days of | Project Schedule
approved Baseline Project Schedule, which shall consist of; the Project Kickoff
(Project milestones; Adlivities; Deliveraties; Task dependencies; and Meeting
Due Dates). ) * = :

112, Eslablish the Project Repository that will be comprised of all project- Within five business days of | Project Repository
related documentation and access will be provided to appropnate the Project Kickoff
Depanmen'l users. Meeting

113 Schedule Project Status Meetings following the Projécl Kick-off Within five business days of | Project Status Meeling (PSM)
Meeting. the Project Kickof Schedule

Meeling
Yuls Conduct a PSM Kick-off Meeting with the OHP (o validate the work Within 30 business days of Meeling
‘plan, performance measures, and report formals, contract effective date Work Plan
1.2.1 Provide notes from the Project Status Meetings to the OHP Within three business days | Meeting Notes
’ oo ’ of the Project Status Meeting

1.3, PSM Bi-weekly Meetings with the OHP lo discuss meeting and call Bi-weekly Meetings
schedules, activities, budgets and/or performance measures. ) Meeting Notes

1.3.1. | Assess joinl progress toward ob}ediv'es and aclivities in orderto assist | Semi-annual Meeting Documents
OPHS with sharing products related to grant activilies. Videos (potentially)

‘ ’ Reports

1.3.2. | If requested by the Depariment, schedule a <30 minute Daily Huddle Daily, as needed Huddle
during the most complex or challenging stages of the project.

1.3.3. | Maintain the baseline and current Project Schedules using a project Ongoing Project Reports
management software solution tha! enables schedule of analysis,

JSI Research & Training [nstihute, Inc.
dnva Community Health Instinute

Exhibil A-1 Work Plan
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EXHIBITA-1 WORKPLAN

recalculates dates based upon approved changes, and tracks variances
to the approved baseline.

1.3.4. | Ensure tasks and aclivilies are identified, monitored, and (racked; risks | Ongoing Project Monitonng
’ and issues are identified, and deliverables meet the stated requirements
and are delivered accomlng to the approved baseline Prolect Schedule.
Acuv y 2. Reporhng T . 5 S P .-;‘-:3-_r_- =
: Tasks Tlmeh:‘amal T -Mllestonel

De!lverable

Provide the number of sub-recipient contracts/agreements in place for:
school-based dental programs, community-based dental programs.

| By August 31st each year

Regport

Provide Annual Reports:

e Annual School-Based Program Report Form.

e Annual Community-Based Report Form.

e Annual Narrative Report that includes performance measures for
oral health visits by dental hygienists from sub-reapien! dental
centers to adults at SUD treatment centers.

e Annual Performance Report for all continuing education sessions
delivered to denlists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAS.

e Annual Namative Report describing the communications
products created and activities implemented from the
Communications Plans for the school-based oral health
programs and community water fluoridation activities.

By August 31st each year

Annual School-Based
Program Report Form
Annual Community-Based
Report Form

Annual SUD Namrative Repart
Annual DHPSA Performance
Report

Annual Communications
Narrative Reporl

2.3.

Provide a Monthly Progress Reports which shali contain a summary of
the sub recipient's: ' ‘
o Work accomplished during the reporling period;
e Updated Project Schedule identifying variances to baseline;
e Status of prioritized open issues, highlighting those issues that

Manthly

Monthly Progress Reports

JSI Resaarch & Training Instinvte, Inc.
d'a Community Health Institute
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

require immediate escalation to ensure timely resolution;
* Alist of the highesl prionty risks, risk ownership and statUs of the
mitigalion plan for each; )
o Planned work for the next reporting period; and,
* Requests for Depariment assistance necessary to ensure
" successful pro;ect delivery.

Tlmeframe L

¥

De'lnverable

‘Oevelop sub-recipient contracts/agreements with: school-based

centers 1o perform screening-fluoride lreatment-referral visits at
Substance Use Disorder (SUD) trealmenl centers (to promote ora)

By February 28, 2019

31 By August 31, 2019 Conlracts
denlal programs and community-based dental programs.

3.1.1. | Develop and implement an unbiased process for selecting sub By February 28, 2019 Unbiased Process

‘ recipients to enter into contracts/agreements with CHI, to deliver school- RFPs Released
based or community-based oral health services. '

3.1.2. | Create contracts/agreements with selected entities lo provide services By April, 30, 2019 School-based Contracts
through August 31, 2021 with options to renew services for up to three Community-based Contracts
additional years. :

3.2, Develop sub-recipient contracts/agreements with dental centers. By Augusl 31, 2019 Contracts

3.2.1. [ Waork to implement and administer contracts/agreements with dental Dental Center Contracts

JSI Research & Training Iastitute, Inc.
d/da Community Heahth Institute

Exhitit A-1 Work Plan
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

health services and reféna!s for dental treatment) through August 31,
2021, ’ :

3.3

Work with the OHP tc develop a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with dental hygienists (preferably CPHDHSs) to condud the
screenings of third grade students in accordance with BSS requirements
and in coordination with a survey expert from the Association of State
and Termitorial Oental Directors (ASTOD) and the DPHS Chronic
Disease Section Epidemiologis!.

By February 28, 2019

Community Public Health
Dental Hygienists MOUs

i€

'I’irheﬁja:rﬁe. "

.

. . .Milestorie/ '
" .Deliverable.

4.1.

Developrent and delivery of education in Dental Health Professional
Shortage Areas (DHPSAS) for dentists on (1) the use of the Prescription
Drug Monitoring Prograr (PDMP), (2) integration of Screening, Brief
Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT), and for dentists and
emergency department physicians, (3) prescribing for dental pain
management.

By August 31, 2018

Education developed

4.1.1.

Contracting with or identifying a CHI SBIRT consultant

January 2019

"Contract

412,

Environmental scan/assessment and survey of dentists in DHPSAs

January - April, 2019

Assessment

151 Research & Training Institta, tnc.
d/va Community Health Institute
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH

Exhitit A-1 Work Plan
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EXHIBIT A~ 1 WORKPLAN

4.1.3. | Contracting with an SBIRT-trained dental professional to develop and By April, 2019 Conlract
implement academic detailing sessions for dentists in DHPSAs.

4.1.3.1. | Oevelop academic detailing sessions for denlists in DHPSAs on PDMP | By August 31, 2019 Sessions developed

4.1.3.2. | Develop academic delailing sessions far dentists in DHPSAs'on SBIRT | By August 31, 2019 Sessions developed

4.1.3.3. | Develop academic delailing sessions for dentists and emergency By August 31, 2019 Sessions developed
depariment physicians in DHPSAs on prescribing for dental pain :
management.

4.2. Conduct activities that will increase the reach of school- based oral By Augilst 31,2019
health programs serving schools with student participation rates of
50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program.

4.2.1. | Assist in convening Advisory Group Partners. By August 31, 2019 Advisory Group meeting

'4.2.2. ' | Assist in convening Work Group Partners. By August 31, 2019 Work Group meeling

4.3. Waork with the OHP to prepare for a Basic Screening Survey (BSS) By August 31, 2019 BSS Prepared
for New Hampshire Third Graders to update The New Hampshire 2013-
14 Healthy Smiles — Healthy Growth Third Grade Survey. f

4.3.1. | Work with the OHP to convene a training session for the dental By August 31, 2019 -| CPHDHSs trained
hygienists (CPHDHs) who have an MOU to conduct the screenings of
third grade students, prior lo the 2019-2020 school year.

4.3.1.1. | Review previous surveys and resulls, By August 31, 2019 Analysis

4.3.1.2. | Conduct key informant interviews with OHP and a selection CPHDHs. By August 31, 2019 Kil Qutcomes

JS1 Research 8 Training Institute, Inc.
d//a Community Heatth Instilute
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH
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EXHIBIT A ~ 1 WORKPLAN
4313, Re;riew prior findings and data. By August 31, 2019 Analysis
4.3.1.4. | Discuss gaps in the data collected. | By August 31, '20-19 ﬂ&eeling
4.3.1.5. | Establish the implementation plan. ) By Augu:?t 31, 2019 Plan
4.3.1.6. | Revise the BSS survey Ipol f needed. ‘ By August 31,.20?9 BSS Tool )
4.3.1.7. | Pilot test the final version of the BS? By August 31, 2019 BSS Tool Final
4.3.2. '  Record and provide access to the CPHDH training session for the Third | By August 31, 2019 Training savédlpmvided
C Grade Survey. )
4.3.3. | Evaluate CPHDH lraining via survey and provide the output to OHP. By August 31, 2019 Feedback from raining

YEAR 2 (PY2): SEPTEMBER 1, 2019 - AUGUST 31, 2020
Year 2 Project Goals: ‘ ’
8. Monitor school-based preventative oral health service contradts and their performance measures. .
9. Monitor community-based preventative oral heaith service contracts and their perfformance measures.
10. Monitor dental center service contracts performing screening and referral visits at SUD treatment centers. .
11. Support the Advisory Group's and Work Group's Communication Plan efforts.
12. Support execution of the Basic Screening Survey (BSS) of NH Third Graders.

nage :

ive 1: Successtully ma

- -q., .
JS1 Research & Training Institvte, Inc. : Exhibil A-1 Work Plan
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN
i L _',-:- _ S Tasks' I‘Q_liléﬁt'ériéi e
o a W BET =T _ - g i i .. Deliverable
PSM Bi-weekly Meetings with the OHP to discuss meeting and call schedules, Biweekly Meetings
1.1 activities, budgets and/or performance measures. ‘| Meeting Notes
. ' Updated Work Plan
| Provide notes from the Project Status Meetings to the OHP Within three business Meeling Notes
1.1 . days of the Project Status
Meeling .
Assess joint progress loward objectives and activities in order to asswt DPHS  Semi-annual Meeting Documents
1.2 with sharing products related to gran! aclivities . Videos (potentially)
Reports
[ If requested by the Department, schedule a <30 minute Daily Huddle during the | Daily, as needed Huddle
| 1-2.1. | most complex or challenging stages of the project.
Maintain the baseline and current Project Schedules using a project Ongoing Project Reports -
1.2.2. | management software solution that enables schedule of analysis, recalculates -
‘| dates based upon approved changes and tracks vanances’ to the approved
baseline.
Ensure tasks and aclivities are identified, monitored, and tracked; risks and Ongoing Project Monitoring
1.2.3. | issues are Wentified, and deliverables meet the stated requirements and are
delivered acoordung 1o the approved baseline Pro;ec! Schedule.
Acuvnyz Reponing Lo o . :
; . oo t. . e ~... St : '_.'\'-.' ., 4 st
Tasks s . 3 " ' "Milestone/ .
: . ) C _ " ‘Deliverable:" |
Provide the number of sub-recipient contracis/agreements in place for: School- | By August 31st each year | Report

JSI Research & Training Institute, tnc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2019-DPHS-2 1-ORALH
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

based dental programs, Community-based dental programs.

2.2.

Provide Annual Reports:. )
e Annual School-8ased Program Report Form,
e Annual Community-Based Report Form.
e Annual Narrative Report that includes performance measures for oral
health visits by dental hygienists from sub-recipient dental centers to
) adults-at SUD treatment centers.
= Annual Pefformance Report for all continuing education sessions

delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in DHPSAs. ‘

« Annual Namative Report describing the communications products created
and activities implemented from the Communications Plans for the
school-based oral health programs and community water fluoridation
activities.

By August 31st each year

‘Annual School-Based
Program Report Form
Annual Community-
Based Report Form
Annual SUD Narrative
Report

Annual DHPSA
Perormance Repon
Annual Communications
Narrative Report

2.3

Provide aggregate screening data collected from the Third Grade Survey for the
Depariment during the 2019-2020 school-year

By August 31, 2020

Third Grade Survey
Data Report

2.4,

Provide a Monthly Progress Reports which shall.contain a summary of the sub
recipient’s:
» Work accomplished during the reporting period;
e Updated Project Schedule identifying vanances to basetme
e Status of pnorl‘hzed open issues, highlighting those issues that require
immediate escalation to ensure timely resolution;
e Alis! of the highest priority risks, risk ownership and stalus of the
mitigation plan for each;
e Planned work for the next reporting period; and,
e Requests for Department assistance necessary to ensure sucoesslul
Dro;ed deltvery

Monthly

Montnly Progress
Reports

Acﬁvny'?.. Sub-ContracUMOU Management o

JS! Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhitit A-1 Work Plan
d/b/a Community Health Institute . Page Sof 16
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EXHIBITA-1 WORKP‘AN

3 N '::1:25_1(5 ¥ e Mule‘stonel
e . 3 ’ e Deilveuble

31 Monitor sub-recipient contracts/agreements with: school-based dental Sept 1, 2019- Aug 31, _SUb—leC!plenl reports
programs and community-based denlal programs. 2020 40% match

3.1.1. | Monilor pefformance measures and reporting of school-based and community- Sept 1, 2019- Aug 34, Sub-recipient reports

_ | based oral health services. .2020
3.1.2. | Process sub-recipienl invoices, monthly. Monthly Invoices submitted to
i DHHS

3.1.3. | Include CDC funds for an Enhancement Program developed by the Work Group | By August 31, 2020 Enhancement Program
in sub-recipient conltracts for eligible school-based dental programs. The . in sub-recipient -
enhancement program will be for non-clinical suppors to the eligible sub- conlracts
recipient school-based.programs, such as: portable equipment, patient chair,
hygienist stool, light, supplies, administrative satary/benefits, and incentives for
students to return completed permission forms. .

3.2 Monitor sub-recipient contaétslagreemengs with dental centers to perform By August 31, 2020 Sub-recipient repors
screening-fluoride treatment-referral visits at Substance Use Disorder (SUD) : 40% match
treatment centers.

3.1.1. | Monitor performance measures and reporling of dental centers services. Sept 1, 2019- Aug 31, Sub-recipient reports

’ ’ 2020

3.3 Waork with the OHP to monitor dental hyglenists/CPHDHs conducting the Sept 1, 2019- Aug 31, Community Public
screenings of thind grade sludents in accordance with BSS requirements and in | 2020 . Health Dental Hygienists
coordinalion with a survey expert from the Association of Stale and Territoria! ’ MOUs
Dental Directors (ASTDD) and the DPHS Chronic Disease Section
Epidemiologist.

dental pain rnanagemeq

JS!I Research & Trzning Institute, Inc.
d/tva Community Hea'th Institute
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EXHIBIT A -~ 1 WORKPLAN

,_Ob]echve 4 lm:rease the reach of. schoo'
'|n t‘he FRL program ~ et
. ’ A- Tasks r »:_ Mitestane!
- : = ) | n ‘" Deliverable
4.1, Monitor SBIRT-trained dental professional in their implementation of academic 3 times by August 31, 3 Trainings conducted
detailing sessions for dentists in DHPSAs on the integration of Screening, Brief | 2020
Intervention and Referral to Trealment (SBIRT). ) :
4.1.1. | Provide logistical support for POMP trainings for denlists in DHPSAs. 3 times by August 31, | 3 Trainings conducted
2020 .
4.1.2. | Provide logistical support for up to six dental pain management trainings for 1- 6 times by August 31, 1- 6 Trainings conducted
dentists and emergency depariment physicians in OHPSAS. 2020
4.1.3. | Assess effediveness of t;ainmgs via survey. By August 31, 2020 Survey report
4.1.4. | Collect repon from SBIRT-trained dental professional on process outcomes for- | August 31, 2020 Repont
*1 all trainings. ;
4.2. | Conduct activities that will increase the reach of school- based oral health By August 31, 2020
programs serving schools with student participation rates of 50% or more in the
Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program.
4.2.1. | Suppert bi-annual conveniné's for soon-to-be-named Advisory Group partners By August 31, 2020 2 Advisory Group
and quartery convening's for soon-lo-be-named Work Group partners. meetings
4 Work Group meetings
4.2.2. | implement a Communications Plan 1o suppon school-based pmgr:-jm aclivities By August 31, 2020 Communications
developed by the Work Group during PY 2and PY 3. - activities
4.3, Caollect surveillance data during PY 2 from the Basic Screening Survey hygienists | By August 31, 2020 Data collection

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/ya Community Health Institute

Exhibit A1 Work Plan
Page 11 of 16

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH

Contractor mﬁagl

Date:_2/4{19



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

and share the collected screening data (without Pll) with the Department : » Data reporting

YEAR 3 {PY3): SEPTEMBER 1, 2020 - AUGUST 31, 2021

Year 2 Project Goals: :
13. Monitor and evaluate for extension the school-based preventative oral heatth service contracts and their performance measures.
14. Monitor and evaluate for extension community-based preventalive oral health service contracts and their performance measures._
15, Monitor dental center service contracts performing screening and referral visits at SUD treatment centers.
'16. Support the Advisory Group's and Work Group's Communication Plan efforts. '
17. Report data from Basic Screenmg Survey (BSS) of NH Third Graders.

Ty Tasks = e ; M.Il.é'stonel -
B ; T Oellverahie
PSM Bn-weekly Meedngs with the OHP 1o dnscuss mee!:ng and call schedules, Meetmgs
11 activities, budgels and/or performance measures. . ) Meeting Notes
Updated Work Plan
Provide notes from the Project Status Meelings to the OHP. ' Within three business | Meeting Notes
1.1.9 7 days of the Project Status
’ Meeting
Assess joint progress toward objectives and activities in order to assist DPHS ' Semi-annual . Meeting Documents
1.2 with sharing products related 1o grant activities Videos (potentialty)
Reports
JSI Resezrch & Training Institute, Inc. - Exhibil A-1 Wodk Plan Contractor Intial
d/b/a Communily Health Institute : . Pags 12 of 16
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EXHIB}T A -1 WORKPLAN

Be available for a Lessons Leamed session facilitated by the Department. -

" requested by the Deparntment, schedule a <30 minute Daily Huddle dunng the | Daily, 2s needed Huddle
1.2.1. | most complex or challenging stages of the project. .

Maintain the baseline and current Project Schedules using a project Qngoing Project Reports
1.2.2. | management software solution that enables schedule of analysis, recalculates

dates based upon approved changes and tracks vananms to the approved

baseline.

Ensure tasks and activities are identified, monitored, and tracked; risks and Ongoing Project Monitoring
1.2.3. | issues are idenlified,-and deliverables meel the stated requirements and are

- | delivered according to the approved baseline Project Schedule.

1.3, Schedule and conduct a Final Project Meeting during which the Acceptance By August 31, 2021 Meeting

Log will be presented for Department approval and sign-off. ) Acceptance Log
1.4, Transfer the projed repository, hcludiﬁg-all documentalion falling within state By August 31, 2021 Project Repository

ownership, to the Depantment. . transfer
1.5. At close of project Lessons Leamed

Session

Activity 2. Reporting

Timefrari¢,

" Mitestonel-
Delwerable

24

mede the number of sub-rec:ptenl oonlractslagreemenls in piace for: School- .

based dental programs, Commumty based dental programs.

By August 31, 2021

Repon

2.2,

Provide Annual Reports:
e Annual Schoal-Based Program Repon Form.
* = Annual Community-Based Report Form.
= Annual Namrative Report that includes performance measures for oral
health visits by dental hygienists from sub-recipient dental centers lo
adults at SUD treatment centers.

By August 31, 2021

Annual School-Based
Program Report Form
Annual Community-
Based Reporl Form
Annual SUD Namalive

Repont

JSI Research & Training Instiute, Inc.
dtva Community Heatth Institute
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EXHIBIT.A - 1 WORKPLAN

" e Annual Performance Report for all _o_onu'nuing educalion sessions ‘ . Annual DHPSA

delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in DHPSAs. Performance Repornt
« Annual Narrative Report describing the communications products Annual Communications
" created arid activities imptemented from the Communicalions Plans for : Narrative Report
the school-based oral health programs and community water fluoridation
activities.
Provide a Monthly Progress Reports which shall comam a summary of the sub | Monthly Monthly Progress
2.3. recipient's: ) Reports

e Work accomplished during the reporting period,
) Upda‘ted Project Schedule identifying vanances to baseline;
s Status of prioritized open issues, h'ghhghhng those issues that require
: immediate escalation to ensure timety resolution; .
_ = Atist of the highest priority risks, risk ownership.and status of the
mitigation plan for each;
‘Planned work for the next reparling period: and,
e Requests for Department assnstanoe necessary to ensure successful
project delivery.

"’{icth'lit‘} 3. Sub-Contract/MOU Management

‘Tasks: Milestone.‘
- : B, il e ) ; Dellverabte s
Monitor sub-reciplent contracts/agreements with: school-based dental - Sept 1, 2020- Aug 31, Sub{ecnpnenl repons
‘|_programs and community-bas'ed dental programs. 2021 40% malch
3.1.1. | Monitor performance measures and reportmg of commumty-based ‘oral heatth ‘Sept 1, 2020- Aug 31, Sub-recipient reports
services. 2021
3.1.2, 'Process sub-recipient invoices, monthly. - Monthly Invoices submitted to
' ' DHHS
JSI Research & Training Institute, tnc. ‘ Exhibit A-1 Work Plan - ’ Contractor mm<;
atda Community Heahh Insttute Page 14 o1 16 '
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EXHIBIT A~ 1 WORKPLAN

3.1.3. [ Include CDC funds for an Enhancement Program developed by the Work Group | By August 31, 2021 Enhancement Proéram
in sub-recipient contracts for eligible schooi-based dental programs. The in sub-recipient
enhancement program wili be for non-clinical supports lo the eligible sub- ' contracts

recipient school-based programs, such as: portable equipment, patient chair,
hygienist stool, fight, supplies, administrative salary/benefits, and incentives for
| students to return completed pemission forms.

3.2. Monitor sub-recipient contracts/agreements with dental centers o pefform | By August 31, 2021 Suf»recipient reports

screening-fluoride treatment-referral visils at Substance Use Disarder (SUD) 40% malch
- treatment oenlers.
3.1.1. | Monitar perfformance rneasures and reporting of mmmumty-based oral health ' Sept 1, 2020- Aug 31, Sub-recipient reports -
services. ) 2021 ) '
3.2.3. | Consult with the OHP in earty 2021 to determine whether school-based dental | Earty 2021 Determination on
programs will bé extended and to assist the OHP in actions 1o preserve ) extensions

community-based services for NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-insured
children and adolescents including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid.

3.2.4. | Create contracts/agreements with selected entities to provide senvices through | Early 2021 Contract Extensions
. August 31, 2021 with options to renew services for up to two additional years ) )
(Sept 1, 2021-Aug 31, 2023).

3.2.5.. | Consutting with the OHP in earty 2021 to determine whether existing . Earty 2021 Determination on
contract/agreements for community-based dental programs will be extended exiensions

and to assist the OHP in actions 1o preserve schocl-based services for NH's
low-income, uninsured, and under-insured children, adolescents, and adults
including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid.

3.26. | Create contracts/agreements with selected entities to provide services through | Early 2021 Contract Extensions
August 31, 2021 with options to renew services for up to two additional years !
(Sept 1, 2021 -Aug iy 2023)

denta paln managemenl.

A IR )

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc Exhitil A-1 Work Plan Contractor Initi
d/o'a Community Health Instinte Page 150f 16
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

‘Objective 5:-Assist Advisory Group and Work Group in' Commiunication activities. “*-
d T g .y “. R .“ 3 -~ . . .« o e e o ol e ¥ 3. ‘,A. l'v—v". 3 siliene ai *

.Aétivity 4. Project Management for HRSA Oral Health erkloréé grant

e . Tasks., o T

. s
R .

" Timeframe

" Mitéstones -
Dehverable

4.1,

Monitor SBIRT-trained dental professional in their implementation of academic
detailing sessions for dentists in DHPSAs on the integration of Screening, Brief
Intervention and Referral to T.realmem (SBIRT).

3 times by August 31,

2021

3 Tram:ngs conducted

4.1.1.

Provnde logistical support for F'OMP trainings for dentists in DHPSAs

3 times by August 31,

2021

3 Trainings conducted

4.1.2.

Provide Iog:sh-l support for up to six dental pain management trammgs for
denlists and emergency depantment physicians in DHPSAs.

6 times by August 31,

2021

6 Trainings conducted

4.1.3.

Assess lrammgs via SUNQY

By August 31, 2021

Survey feedback

4.2

Conduct aclivities thal will increase the reach of school- based oral health
programs serving schools with student participation rates of 50% or more in the
Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program.

By August 31, 2021

Support bi-annual convening's for soon-to-be-named Advisory Group partners
and quarterty convening's for soon-to-be-named Work Group partners.

By Augusl 31, 2021

.| 2 Advisory Group

meetings
4 Work Group meetings

4.22.

Implement a Communications Plan to support school-based program activities
developed by the Work Group during PY 2 and PY 3.

By August 31, 2021

Communicalions
activities

<f£ 2445
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Oral Hea

Ith Promotion Partner

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services pravided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and federal funds as follows:

Source of Funds

Year 1
(SFY19)

Year 2
(SFY20)

Year 3
(SFY21)

Year4 |
(SFY22)

2.1,

100% Federal Funds from Centers |
for Disease Control & Prevention,
Preventive Health & Heallh
Services Block Grant, CFDA
#93.758, Federal Award
Identification . Number  (FAIN),
NB0O10T009205.

$15,000

$15,000

$15,000

$0

2.2.

39.74% Federal Funds from
Centers for- Disease Control &
Prevention, Preventive Health &
Health - Services Block . Grant
CFDA #93.758, FAIN
NBO10T009205 and 60.26%
General Funds

$420,000

$600,000

$600,000

$60.000

2.3.

100% Federal Funds from Centers
for Disease Control & Prevention,
State Actions to Impfove Oral
health - outcomes CFDA #93.366,

| FAIN NUS8DP006487

$166,369

$181,369

$181,369

$15,000

2.4.

100% Federal Funds from Health
Resources & Services
Administration. Grants to States to
Suppart Cral Health Workforce
Activities, CFDA #93.236, FAIN
T12HP31859

$136,238

$100,000

$100.000

$0

TOTALS

$737,607

$896,369

$896,369

$75,000

JS) Rasearch & Training Inslitute

RFP -2015-DPHS-21-ORALH

Rev. 01/08/19

Exnn g

Pogo 1 od)

Conlrector Initialy

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

" Exhibit B

3. The Contractor agreés to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements, which includes an in-kind match of an amount
equal to @ minimum of 40% of the federal HRSA grant identified in Subsection 2.4,
above.

4. The Contractor shall ensure the annua! 40% required match in Section 3, above, is in
non-federal contributions either in cash or in-kind related to directly providing HRSA
project activities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder (SUD) as approved.by
the Department as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Sectlon 2 Scope of Work,

. Subsection 2.1, Paragraph 2.1.3 and Subsection 2.6.

5. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding. ‘

6. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as foliows:

6.1. Paymenl shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfiliment_of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-4, Budget..

6.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

6.3. The Conlractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

6.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and i sufficient
funds are available.

7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their aclivites related to Depantment-
. funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

B. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions' Block 1.7
Completion Date. )

9. In lieu of hard- copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DPHSconlraclblllmg@dhhs nh. gov, or invoices may be mailed to:.

Financial Admlmstrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

JSI Rosearch & Training Institute Exnbh B Contractor lnhu\d_(_
RFP .2019-DPHS.21.0RALH Poge 203 - . Deste _2/4/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
Oral Health Promotion Partner
Exhibit B

10.Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services ar products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and condilions of this agreement.

12.Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSI Reseerch & Training Institute Exnibh 8 Controcior tnltlals
RFP -2019.DPHS.21-ORALH Pogo 30l 3 Dote 2/4119
Rov. 01/08/19 A
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New Hampshire Departmant of Health and Human Services
Exhidit C

SPECIAL PRAVISIONS

- Conlractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall bee used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compllance with Fedoral and State Lawa: If (he Conlractor is pemmitted to determine the eligibility
ol individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance wilh applicable federal and
state laws, reguiations, orcérs, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Maonner of Dotermination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for thal purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Oepartment.

3. Documentation: In addilion (0 the determination forms required by the Depariment, the Contractor
shall maintain a data lile on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include alt
information necessary 1o support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Depantiment requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eliglbility determinations that the Depariment may request or require.

4, Falr Hoarings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well gs
individuats declared ineligible have a right 1o a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Conlractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out

“  an application form and that each applicani or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Departmenl regulations.

5. Gratulties or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, graluity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order lo influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and Bny sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, orﬁcers employees or agents of the Comracmf or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments. Notwithstanding anyth:ng to the comrafy contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, thal no payments will be made hereunder lo reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior 1o the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incutred by the Conlractor for any services provided
prior lo'the date on which the individual applies for services or (except es otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior 1o a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchaso: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary conlained in the Conlracl, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed lo obligate or require the Depantment to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contraclor in excess of the Contractors cosls, al a rate
which exceeds the amounls reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rale which exceeds (he raie charged by the Contractor 10 ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. |f al any time during the lerm of this Contracl.or afier receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
paymenls hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractlor lo ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Depariment may elect to:

7.1. Renegoliate ihe rates for paymeni hereunder, in which event new rales shall be eslablished:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior renmbursememm
excess of costs;
Exhidit C - Spocial Provisions Contracior Iniilats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhinit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event faiture to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the ContracfBr is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Oepartment 1o the Contractor for services
provided o any individual who is found by the Department to be inaligible for such services al
any lime during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

B. Maintonanco of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees 1o maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and olher data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Conlractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or coliected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records 1o be
mainlained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs-and expenses, and which are acceplable lo the Departmeni, and
10 include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for malenals, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, fabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requesled or required by the
Oepartment.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, emonment sttendance or visit records for each recipient of

' services during the Contract Period, which tecords shall include all records of application and
eligibliity {including all forms required to delermine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all involces submifted to the Department 10 obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Conlractor shall retain medical records on each palientrecipienl of services.,

9. Audit: Contracior shall submit an annual audit to the Cepartment within B0 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is racommended that the repori be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Loca! Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations™ and the provisions of Standards for Audil of Governmental Organizalions,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US - General Accounimg Office (GAQ standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During-the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Depariment, the United States Depanment ol Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access 10 all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audil, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audil Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Conlractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any slate
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Oepartment, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception,

10. Confidontiality of Records: All information, reports, end records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Conlract shall be confidential and shalinot
be disclosed by the Conlractor, provided howeves, thal pursuant to state laws ond the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official dulies and for purposes
directly connecled to the administralion of the services and the Conlract; and prévided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not -
direclly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibiled except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions -~ Contraclor Initia
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Exhibit C

11,
" limes il requested by the Departiment.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein Ihe covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing

11:1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date o!f the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfaclory by ihe Depantment to
justity the rate of payment hereunders. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the torm
designaled by the Depanment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shal! be submitied within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in 8 form satislactory to the Department and shall
conlain @ summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Depariment. .

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price fimitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are 1o be performed after the end of the term of this Contracl and/or
survive the termination of the Conlract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor 8s
costs hereunder the Depariment shall retain the right, at its discretion, 1o deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Conlractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulling from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, documenl elc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Cwnershlip: Ali materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyrighl ownership for any and all original materials

" produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource direclories, protocols or guidelines,

posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any maltenals produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

Oporation of Facliltioo: Complianco with Laws and Rogulations: In the operation of any facilities
lor providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of faderal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direclion of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duly upon the contracior with respecl to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
pemit shall be required for the operalion of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
ihe Contractor will procure 83id license or permit, and will at all limes comply with the lerms and
conditions of each such license or pemmil. In conngction wilh the foregoing requiremenits; the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulalions, and requirements of the State OHice of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local bullding and zoning codes. by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Emptoymont Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Conlr.aclof will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civll Rights, Office of Juslice Programs (OCR). if it has
received 3 single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25.000 or more and has 50 or

Exhidil C ~ Specisl Provisions Conireclor Inllla
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Exhibit C

17.

18.

18.

[T p Page dof 3

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Centification Form to the
QCR, certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Ceification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
prefit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educalional institutions are exempl from the
EEOP requiremenl. but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp:/Awww.ojp usdoj/aboulocripdisicert pdf. .

Limited English Proficioncy {(LEP): As clarified by Execulive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Sale Streets Acl of 1968 and Title V! of the Civil
Rights Act of 1864, Contractors must take reasonabie steps to ensure that LEP person: have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistloblower Protoctions: The
following shall apply to all contracts thal exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold 8s defined In48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) .

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
" WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(8) This coniract and employees working on this contract will be subject ta the whistieblower rights
and remedies in lhe pilol program on Contractor-employee whistieblower protections established al
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Delense Authorizalion Act for Flscel Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

{b) The Contractor shall inform ils employees in wriling, in the predominant language of lﬁe workforce,
of employee whistieblower rights and protections under 41 U.S. C 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulahon

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Coniraclor may choose to use subcontraclors with
greater expertise 1o perform certain health.care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the funclion{s). Prior to
subcontracting. the Contractor shali evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through 8 writlen agreement that specifies aclivities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontracior and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanclions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subconlractars are subject 10 the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Conlraclor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a funclion to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the lollowing:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the aclivilics, before delegating
the function

15.2. Have a written agreement with the subcomractor that specifies activities andrepomng
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocalion will be managed if the subcontractor's
perdormance is nol adequate *

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhiblt C - Special Provisions Controctor wuau'ﬁ_
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19.4.

19.5.

Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontraclor's performance will be reviewed
DHHS shall, al its discretion, review and approve all subcontraclts.

Il the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action. .

20. Contract Dofinitions:

20.1.

20.2.

20.3.

20.4,

20.5.

20.6.

o118

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with slate and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Deparimeni of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a

torm or forms required by the Department and conlaining a description of the services and/or
goods 10 be provided by the Contraclor in accordance wilh the terms and conditions of the
Conlract and sefting forth the total cosl and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Conlract. ‘

UNIT: For each service that the Conlraclor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified aclivity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit 8 of the Contract,

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, stc. are referred to in the Conlracl, the said reference shall be deemed lo mean
all such laws, regulations, elc. &3 they may be amended or revised from time to-lime.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEOERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any exisling lederal funds available for these services.

ExMDI C - Spocial Provisions Contractor cmuuﬁ_;
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, I8
replaced as follows: .

4,

"~ CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithslanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including withoist limitation, the continuance of payments. in whole or in pari,
under this Agreemen! are contingen! upon continued approgriation or availabliity of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or svallability of funds affected by
any slate or federal lagisiative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or evailability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in-Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In pant. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments heroundar in oxcess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or evailable funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State_shall have the rght 1o reduce, terminale or modily services under this Agreement
immedialely upon giving the Contractor nolice of such seduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accounl(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reducad or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the ,
following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days afier giving the Contraclor written nolice that the State.is exardshng its:

" option to temminate the Agreement.

In the. event of early termination, the Conlractor shall, within 15 days of natice of early
terminalion, develop and submit 1o the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agresment, includmg but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving serwces under the Agreement and establishes e process to meel those needs

The Contractor shall fuily cooperate with the State and shall promplly provide deteiled
information o support the Transilion Plan incuding, but not limited to, any information or

. data requesled by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan

and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Trensition Plan to the State as
requested..

In the evenl that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients recelvmg
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Conlractor shall provide a process for
uninlerrupled delivery of services in Ihe Transition Plan,

The Contraclor shall establish 8 melhod of nolifying clients and other ‘affected mdmaua;s
about the transition. The Conlractor shall include the proposed communicalions in its
Transition Plan submitied lo the Stale 8s described above.

The Deparlmenl reserves the right to extend this Agreement for up to two (2) adtfmona! years,

contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

CUOHKSNI0T13

Exhiblt C-1 - Rovisions to Stondard Provisions Conlractor Inkia
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtile D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and turther agrees 1o have the Cantractor's representative, as idenlified in Seclions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100680, Title V, Subtille D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Pan |l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017:630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification lo the Department in each federal fiscal year in liev of certificales far
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate sel out below is a
material representation of lact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the centification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or gavernment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Depaniment of Heaith and Human Servrces
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 033016505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will cantinue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement nolifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a conlrolled subslance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specilying the actions that will bs taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees aboul
1.2.1. The dangers of.drug abuse in lhe workplace,;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assislance programs, and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employeas far drug abuse violalions
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee’to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the slatement required by paragraph (a); '

1.4, Nolifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condilion of
employment under the grant, the emgployee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notity the employer in writing of his ot her conviclion for a wolauon ofa cnmma!drug ,

staltute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days aflter such
conviction;

1.5. Notilying the agency'in wriling, within ten calendar days after recewmg notice under
subparagraph-1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such coaviction,
Employers of convicted employees must provide nolice, including pasition litle, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhliok D - Cenlificatian rogerding Drug Froe Conlroctor Inkia
5 Workplace Requirements
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has designated @ central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of (he following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is-so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up 10 and including
terminalion, consistent with the requirements of the Renabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; of ‘
) 1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satistactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
- rehabilitation program approved for such purposes dy a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency. . ’
1,7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementalion of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in |helnp'ace provided below the site(s) for the performance of wark done in
conneclion with the specific grant. :

Place of Performance (street address, cily, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O il there are workplaces on file that are not idenlified here.

Contractor Name: g, Rcuaréh & Tr;ining Instituie, Inc. d/b/a

' myhityMealth Institute
February 4.2019 ' d / :

Date Name: | alhffetar '
Title: RegipnotDirector .

’ Exhidit D - Centification regarding Orug Fres Contracior Inttists
Workplace Requirements . ]
CUOHML071] Pago 202 . Date 214119
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees (o comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guldance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and turther agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following Centification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicats applicable program covered): ) s
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families uader Title IV-A

*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D

*Social Services Block Granl Program under Tille XX

“‘Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned centifies, to the besl of his or her knowledge and beliel, that:

1. No Federa! appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behall of the undersigned, to

~ any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 8 Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 8 Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal conlract, conlinuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contracl, granl, loan, or cooperalive agreemen! (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-conlractor),

2. Itany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 8 Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantae or sub-
contracior), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Repont Lobbying, in accordance with ils instructions, atached and identified as Standard Exhibil E-1.)

. 3. The undersigned shall require that the language of Ihis certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards ol all liers (including subconltracts, sub-grants, and conlracts under grants,
loans, and cooperalive agreements) and tha! all sub-recipients shall centify and disclose according)y.

This certification is a2 material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaclion
was made or'entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificalion shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than $400,000 for
each such failure. ' §

Contractor Name: js| Research & Truining Instiwute. Inc. d/d/e
#y Health Instilote

l:’cbruary 4,2019

Date Ngme: Jonaihan Rieda
Title: Regional Director

Exhibl E - Cortification Regarclag Lobbyir'\g Contrector inlaly
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONS|IBI|LITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Execulive Otfice of the President, Executive Order 12545 and 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Debarmant,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
represenlative, as identified in Seclions 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

|NSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contracl), the prospective primary participant is providing the
cerification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certificalion required below will not necessanly resull in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. || necessary, the prospective participant shall submit.an
explanation of why it cannot provide the centification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection wilh the NH Depantmeni of Heallth and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospeclive primary
panicipant o fumish a cerificalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person fram parlicipation In
this transaclion,

J. The cenrtification in this clause is a matenal representation ol fact upon which refiance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. Ililis later determined thal the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous cerification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaclion for cause or defayll,

4. The prospectivé primary participant sha!) provide immediale wrilten notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if al any time the prospeclive primary panicipant leams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become eironeous by reason of changed
circumstances. ;

5. The lerms “covered transaction,” *debarred,” *suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower lier covered
‘ransaction,” “panticipant,” “person,” "primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluniarily excluded,” as used in this clause, havo the meanings sel oul in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implemenling Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
‘attached definilions. '

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this praposal {contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person | who Is debarred, suspended, declared inaligible. or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agress by submitling this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Cerlification Regarding Debarment, Suspension;, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by OHHS, without miodification, in all tower tier covered
transactions and in all soficitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participani in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 8
lower tier covered tronsaction thal it is nol debarrod, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless il knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibilily of its principals. Each
participant may, but is nol required 1o, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a syslem of records
In order to render in good faith the certificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibht F - Cenification Rogarding Oobamant, Suspension Conlractor Inltisly
And Othar Responsiblity Matters .
CODHOI0TI) Pago ) ol 2 Date 2/4/19



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

New Hampshire Department of Health and Humdn Services
ExhIbit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possassed by a prudant
person in the ordinary course of business dealings,

10. Except for transaclions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered lransaclion knowingly enters into a lower lier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition 10 other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or delaull.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS :
11. The prospeclive primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief,"that it and its
pﬂnmpals

11.1. are not presently debarred suspanded, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency,

11.2. have nol within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

" acivil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting 1o oblain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public iransaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
stalutes or commission of embezzlement, thefi, forgery, bribary, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicled for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by & governmental enuty
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification: and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
lransactions (Federal, State or local) lerminated for cause or defaull,

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to cerily to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospectlive paricipant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By 5|gnmg and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, 8s
defined in 45 CFR Pan 76, certifies o lhe besi of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1; are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from paricipation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to cerify to any of the ebove, such
prospeclive participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

.
\

14, The prospeclive lower tier participant further agrees by submitling this proposal (coniract) that it wil
include this clause enlitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaclions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in al) solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. :

Contractor Name: S| Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a

' : ity Health Institute
February 4, 2019 /

Dale Name: Jon h:{n%h
Title: onal Direclor

Exhibit F = Centificstlon Regarding Debament, Suspansion Contractor tnlilats S iz
And Other Responsidliity Matters
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS Aﬂg
: WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor idenlified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Prov:s:ons agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represeniative as |denhﬁed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ol the General Provisions, 10 execute the following
centification:

Conlractor will comply, and will require any subgrantess or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crima Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
reclpients of federal funding under this statule from discriminating, elther In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunily Plan;

- the Juvenile Juslice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.5.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by-
reference, the civil rights cbligations of the Safe Streels Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited (rom discriminating, either in amployment praclices or in the delivery of services or

- benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Actincludes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirsments;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1864 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal fingncial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, of nalional origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitatlon Act of 1973 (28 U.S.C. Sectlon 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminaling on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefils, in any program or aclivity;

- lhe:Amenicans with Disabilities Act of 1930 {42 U.S5.C, Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and ocal
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- Ihe Education Amendmenls ¢f 1972 (20 U.S.C. Seclions 1881, 1683, 1685-88), which prohibils
discriminalion on the basis of sex in federally essisled educalion programs;

- the Age Discriminalion Act of 1975 {42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or aclivities receiving Federa! financial assistance. It does not, lndude
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs), 28 C.F.R, pl. 42
(U.S. Depantment of Juslice Regulations ~ Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Execulive Order No. 13279 (equal prolection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamenial principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Depariment of Juslice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
AcY.(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Proleclions, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activilies in conneclion with federal grants and contracts.

The centificale set out below is a materia!l representalion of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False cenificalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension ol payments, suspension or termination of grants, of government wide suspension of

debarment.
Exhdit G
Contractor Inllls
C ortfication af CAmplence whs 1 squit sments periaining 10 Fecer sl Mond serimination, £ qual Treasment of F s ssed Orpanications
90 W sdstiows protecions
e
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In the event a Federal or State count or-Federal or State administrative agancy makes a finding of
discrimination alter a due process hearing on the grounds of race, cok, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Depanment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

v

The Contractor identified in Sectaon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Secuons 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisionis, to execute the following
centification: ;

1. By signing and submitting this propoaal {conlract) the Contractor agrees to compty with the provisions
indicaled above.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training lnstitute, Inc, d/b/a
Community Health Institute

February 4, 2019

Date Name: ]on:m \{artL /
’ Titte: Regional Decior

Exhidk G
Conlector lmmls
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Pan C - Eavironmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor-facility owned or leased or
contracled for by an enlity and used routinely or regutady for the provision ol health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, il the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, of loan guarantee. The
law does not apply lo children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facifities vsed for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary panalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an adminisiralive’ compliance order on the responsible entity,

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, 10 execute the following
< carification: - : .

1. "By signing and submitting this conlract, the Contraclor agrees lo make reasonable eﬂon§ o comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Pani C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Convractor Name! SI Rescarch & Training Institute. nc. dfbla
ommupily Health Institute

February 4, 2019

Dale P - Name: {5 q,,{slb{v‘ {
) Title: chf':z(ll Direclor

Exhidh H - Cenlifcation Regarding . Contractor InRigts
Environmantal Tobacco Smoke 1419
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accounlability Act, Public Law 104-191 and

- with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Idenlifiable Health information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Assaciate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Caontractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Refinltions.

8. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associale” has the meaning given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Enlity" has the meaning given such term in section 160. 103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record §g§'shall have the same meaning as the lerm "designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Dala Aqgreqation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45CFR
Section 164.501. ‘ :

f. “Heallh Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term *health careoperations”
in 45 CFR Seclion 164.501.

9. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and ClinicalHealth
Act, TitleXlll, Sublitie D, Part,1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2008.

i
h. "HIPAA™ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-181 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health -

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendmenls %herelo

I. " "Individual® shall have the same meaning as lhe term “individual” in 45 CFR Sechon 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a persona1 representalive in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(q).

j. "Privacy Rule® ' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heallh .
Informalion at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Deparimeni of Health and Human Services.

k. “Piolected Health Information™ shall have lhe same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limiled 1o the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity

3014 : Exhidi | ‘ Controclor mnmu:ﬁg_
- Heolth Insurancs Ponoblity Act

Businasa Assoclale Agreemani - :
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. “Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Heallh and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rulg” shall-mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Elecironic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpan C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Upsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not .

secured by a technolody standard that renders prolected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute,

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164 as amended from lime to time, and the
HITECH
Act,

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall nol use, disclose, maintain or transmil
PH) in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper managemen! and administration of the Business Associale;
il Asrequired by law, pursuant-{o the terms sel forth in paragraph d. below; or
Ih. - For dala aggregahon purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHIto a
third party, Business Associale must oblain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and -
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was’
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to nolify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA.Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PH! in response to a
requesl for disclosure on the basis thal it is required by law, without first nolifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Enlity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
lo seek appropriate relief. If Covered Enlity objects to such disclosure, theBusiness

) b
312014 Exhivlt 1 Contractor Inllial!
Hoalh Insuranca Porobllity At
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Pago 20l 6 Dalo 2/4/19



DocuSign Envelope ID: FA569BD6-99E4-4898-87DC-27AA30FD6309

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e.

(3)

a.

b.

C.

€.

o4

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all

remedies. . #

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

" safeguards of PHI pursuant fo the Privacy and Securty Rule, the Business Associate

shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such addilional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Qbliaations and Actlyities of Business Assgclate.

The Business Associate shall notity the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associale becomes aware of any use or disclosure of prolected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured

protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact onthe
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when itbecomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be

limited to:

‘o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or 10 whom the
disclosure was made,

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed.

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health mformahon has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
.breach and immediately repor! the findings of the risk assessment in wriling to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. ;

Business Associale shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating 1o the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and lhe Privacy and
Secunty Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of ils business associates thal receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, 10 agree in writing to adhere to the same

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty lo return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entily
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s inlended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhbi 1 Contractor Inttials #‘
Health Insuronce Portobility Act

Buslnoss Associnle Agreement
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associales who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract pravisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the'use anddisclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the lerms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Enlrty
Business Associate shall provide accessto PHI in a Designated Record Sel to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Seclion 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request Irom Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incarporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Seclion 164.526. -

Business Associale shall documen! such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request byan
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written reques! from Covered Entity for-a
request for an accounling of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall makeavailable
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require 1o fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with reSpeci to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requesls access lo, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
direclly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two-(2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to-forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's requesl to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate 1o violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of terminalion of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, ar created or received by the Business Associate in cannection with the
Agreement, and shall nol retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
deslruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed toin
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue 1o extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or deslruction infeasible, for so long as Business

' Exnidhi | Coalracior lnmmé__
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(4)

(8)

(6}

2014

‘Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in ils sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall centify to
Covered Entity that the PH! has been deslroyed.

Qbligations of Covered Entity
Covered Entity shall notify Business Associale of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Seclion

164.520. to the extent that such change or limitalion may affect Business Associale's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
ol permission provided to Covered Enlity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
discloSed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant {o 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. '

Covered entity shall promptly nolify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
lo the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHL.

Iermination for Cauge

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreemenl the Covered Enlity may immedialely terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associale of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibil |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associale to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.-If Covered Entity

determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation fo the Secretary.

Miscellaneous
Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, bul not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Seclion in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. -

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree 10 take such action as is
necessary 10 amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered
Enlity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Assaociate acknowledges 1hat it has no ownership rights
wilh respeci lo the PHI provided by or crealed on behall of Covered Entity.

Interpretalion. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhidii) Conlraclor Initiols
Hoalh Insuranca Portobilty Act

Business Associaia Agroemeni
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®. Seqreqgation. if any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are-declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions.in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the prolections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the-
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit .

Depertment ol Health and Human Services ISI Rescarch & Training Ingtitute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institule

NamW
! :

Signature‘pf/gi(\qglged Representative

Signalure of Authorized Representalive

{5 RD Jonathon Stewari
Name of Aulhorized Representative Name of Authorized Represeniative
D@: PLTOR HQ 4S Regional Director
_Title of Authorizéd Representative Title of Authorized Representative
2 /71 ! q February 4, 2019

Date Date

312014 Exhibli | Contractor Inials q_
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'CERIIFCCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
TACT (F| (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime ewardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to repont on
data related to execulive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more, If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resull in a total award equal lo or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporling Subaward and Execulive Compensation Information), the
Depariment of Health end Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or conlracl award subject to the FFATA reponing requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program aumberfor grants
Program source
Award litle descriptive of the purpose of the funding aclion
Lecation of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation end names of. the top flive executives if;
10.1. More than 80%.of annual grass revenues are lrom the Federal government, and those
revenues are grealer than $25M annually and
+10.2. Compensalion information is nol already availabie thiough reporting to the SEC.

SPPNOLRLEWN -

Prime grant reCIprenls must submil FFATA required data by the end of the monlh plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Conlraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 1098-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Pan 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensalion Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Seclions 1.11 and 1,12 of the Genera! Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees lo provide needed information as outlined above 1o the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and o comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Acl.

"

Conlraclor Name: |SI Reseorch & 'rrai'ning Institute, inc, d/b/a
ityHealth Institute

February 4, 2019

Date Name Jonaiha
Tile: Regional

Exnibh J - Centication Regarding the Feders! Funding Contractor mzm%_
Accountablity And Transparency Act (FFATA) Complance .
CUDHAL11671) Pegot ol 2 Dsto _2/4/19
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As ine Contractor igentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | cemfy that Ihe responses fo the
below listed questions are rue end accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 14.5729117

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracls, subcontracts,
foans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperalive agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U,S, federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO X YES

I the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

Il the answer lo #2 above is YES, please answer Ihe following:

3. Does the public have accass to information gbout the compensation of the axeculives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securilies
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(0d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
19867

NO X YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated oMicers in your business or
organizalion are as lollows:

Name: : Amounl.
Name: Amount:
Name: _ Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: ) Amount:

Exhidit J - Cortliicatlon Regarding the Federa! Funding Contractor Initists
Accounlability And Transparancy Ad (FFATA) Complianca 24 to
CUDHHI110713 Page 2072 Date
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning if this document:

i

“‘Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring lo
situations where persons other lhan authodrized users and for an ather than
authorized purpose have access Or potential access to personally identifiable
information, wnether physical or electronic.  With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” In section
164.402 of Tille 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

"Computer Security Incident™ shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
.Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Compuler Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce. .

"Confidential Information™ or "Confidential Data® means al! confidential information
disclosed by one party to the olher such as all medical, health, financial, public
assislance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Trealment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health end
Human Services (DHHS) or sccessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, butl is no! limited to
Prolecled Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

"End User” means any person or enlity (e.g-., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subconiractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

"HIPAA™ means the Heallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.and the
requlations promulgated thereunder,

“Incident” means an act that poténtially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) lo gain unauthorized access 1o 8
system or its dala, unwanted disruplion or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes o system hardware,
firmware, or software characterislics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of ‘hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5, Lost update 10/09/18 Exhidll X . Contraclor Inhhi:,ép
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

10.

1.

12,

mail, all of which may have the polential to put the data al risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

*Open Wirglass Network™ means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, lested, and
approved, by means of the Slate, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequalely secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data. )

“Personal Information™ (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biomeétric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with olher personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to & specific individual, such as date and place of bith, mother's maiden
name, elc.

*Privacy Rule® shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health '
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the Uniled
States Department of Health and Human Services.

“Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of *Prolected Health Information® in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. '

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Prolected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Pant 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. )

"Unsecured Protecled Health Information™ means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard thal renders Proleclted Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable 1o unauthorized individuais and s
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organlzauon that is accredited by
the American National Standards Instilute.

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidentia! Information. .

1.

2.

The Contractor must nof use, disclose, maintain or transmil Confideatial Information
excep! as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including bul nol limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmil PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rute.

The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response 1o a

V5. Last updato 10/09/18 . Exhidll K Conlrecior Inhin
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0

request for disclosure on the basis thal il is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, elc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

restriclions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Coniractor must be bound by such
additional restriclions and must nol ‘disclose PHI in violation of such additiona)
restrictions and mus! abide by any addilional security safeguards..

4. The Contraclor-agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End -

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used fur

any other purposes that are nol indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access 1o the data 1o the authorized representatives

of DHMS for the purpose of mspechng to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

Il. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is transmiting DHHS dala conlaining
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumbd drive, as a method of transmitling DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Dala if
email is gncrypled and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons aulthorized to receive such inlormalion.

Encrypted Web- Sile. If'End User is employing the Web o transmit Confidential
Oata, the secure socket layers (SSL} musl be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitied via a Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file

- hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Slorage, to transmit

Confidential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only iransmit-Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when senlt to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices 1o transmit
Confidential Dala said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmil Confidential Data via an open
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10.

i

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communication. If End User is empleying remote communication o
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laplop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. . :
SSH Fila Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP 1o transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate ‘disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded lor 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Dala will be deteted every 24
hours).

Wireless Devices. I End User is transmitting Confidential Dala via wireless devices, all |
data must be encrypled to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND OISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will anly retain the dala and any derivative of (he data for the duration of this
Contract. After such lime, the Conlractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parlies must:

A

Retenlion

1. The Contractor agrees il will not slore, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing; cloud service or cloud slorage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Conlractor agrees to ensure proper securily monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH syslems
and/or Depariment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees lo provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in suppont of protecling Depaniment confidential information.

4. The Contraclor agrees to retain all elecironic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in @ secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Configentia! Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with ail applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operaling systems, the latest anti-virgl, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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.

' whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

The Contraclor agrees lo and ensures ils complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1.

If the Conlractor will mainlain any Confidentia! Information an ils systems {or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such dala upon reques! or coniract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a par of ongaing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery opefations. When no longer in use, electronic media conlaining State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance- with industry-accepled standards for secure delelion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically deslroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and cerfify in writing al
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department

upon _ request. The written cerification will include all details necessary 1o
demonslrale data has been properly desiroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional slandards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction,

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Conltractor agrees lo destroy all hard copies of Conﬁdenlral Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely deslroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of dala erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Conlractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
denvallve data or files, as follows:

1.

The Contractor will mamlam proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services,

The ‘Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, franslormalion, use, storage and secure destruclion) regardless of the
media used to store the dala (i.e., lape disk, paper, elc)
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10.

11,

The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access contiols 1o
coniractor systems that collecl, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

The Contiactor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect polential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Depantment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its E€nd
Users in support of protecting Oepartment confidential information.

I the Contractor will be sub-conlracling any core functions of the engagement
supporiing the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contraclor will maintain a
program of an inlernal process or processes lhal defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
malch those for the Contraclor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work wilth the Department 10 sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Depariment system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as panl of
oblaining and maintaining access to any Depariment system(s). Agreemenls will be
completed and signed by the Conlractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized. '

if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contraclor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is respansible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

The Conlractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System

Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabililies that may

occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed

annually, or an alternate time frame al the Departments discretion with agreement by

the Conlractor, or the Department may reques! the survey be completed when the -
scope of the engagement between the Oepartment and the Contracior changes.

The Contraclor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Depariment data offshore or oulside the boundaries of the United Stateés unless
prior express written consent is oblained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department. .

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to invéstigate the causes of the breach, promplly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all cosls of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited lo: credit mdniloring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call cenler services necessary due 1o
the breach, .

. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes. and regulations regargding the
.privacy and security of Confidential Information. and must in all olher respects

maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable 1o federal agencies. inctuding,
but not limited 10, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1874 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45

" C.F.R. Parts 160 and ,164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health

13.

information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to proteci the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access 1o it. The safeguards must provide a tevel and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of securily requirements

_ established by the State of New Hampshire, Depariment of information Technology.

14.

15.

16.

Refer lo Vendor Resources/Procurement al htips:/fwww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for \he Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to mainlain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and-the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Seclion VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems thal connect lo the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contracl to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contracl.

The Contracter must ensure‘that all End Users: .

a. comply ‘with such safegua}ds as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
- under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all limes.

¢. ensure thal laplops and other electronic devices/media coniammg PHI, PI, or
PFiare encrypted and password-prolected

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only u encrypled and being
sent 1o and being received by email addresses of persons authorized fo:
receive such information.
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e. limil disclosure of the Confidential information 1o the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable dala derived from DHHS Data, mus! be slored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifigble information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypled at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
slored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data mus! be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as delermined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand Ihat their user credentials (user name and password) mus! not be
shared with anyone. End.Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the sile directly or mdnrecﬂy through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the righ! to conduct onsite inspections 1o monitor compliance with” this
Conlract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Dala
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. g

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer. of any-
Security Incidenls and Breaches immedialely, at lhe email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidenls and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance wilh the agency's documenled Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's cornpliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures mus! also address how the Conlraclor will:

1. Ideniify Incidents; )

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed-Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determing the risk (evel of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidenls; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, it so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidenlé and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reporied, &s
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. QHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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